
 

 

  
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY APRIL 6, 2020 IN THE CITY 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 

Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 

Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com  

Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com  

Council Member Tom Dean tdiowa@hotmail.com  

Council Member Jerry Sexton jerrysextonwb@gmail.com  

City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 

City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 

Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick leslie@westbranchiowa.org 
 

Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government 

business are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail 

communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure.  Electronic Meeting (Pursuant to 

Iowa Code section 21.8) An electronic meeting is being held because a meeting in person is 

impossible or impractical due to concerns for the health and safety of council members, staff and 

the public presented by COVID-19.  You can watch and/or participate in the meeting at the following 

link https://zoom.us/j/5322527574 or dial in phone number 1-312-626-6799 with Meeting ID 532 

252 7574.  A video of the meeting will also be made available April 8th on the City Website.  For 

your safety and the safety of others please explore all available opportunities to participate by phone 

or computer.  If you are unable to attend or participate by computer or phone, you may come to City 

Hall as an audience of no more than 10 will be allowed to gather.  First come, first to be granted 

access.  In accordance with Social Distancing Order by the Governor of the State of Iowa. 
 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies  
1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
1. None 
 

E. Public Comment 
Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments may be 

submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  

 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org
https://zoom.us/j/5322527574


 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to expedite the 

meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any item on the 

Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting March 16, 2020.  
2. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting March 30, 2020.  
3. Resolution 1884 – Approving a Temporary Water Supply Agreement with Crestview 

Specialty Care.  
4. Motion to Approve Pay Estimate Number 9 in the Amount of $18,703.02 for the 

College Street Bridge Replacement Project. 
 
5. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 
G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda   

1. Third (final) Reading of Ordinance 773 Amending Chapter 92 of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa.  “Eliminating discounted rates for 
consumption over 250,000” gallons per meter per month.   

2. Second Reading of Ordinance 775 Adding Chapter 78 of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of West Branch, Iowa; Entitled, “Golf Carts”.    

3. Resolution 1887 – Allowing the Implementation of a Trap / Neuter and Release Feral 
Cats Pilot Program within the City Limits.  

4. Resolution 1885 – Approving the West Branch High School Expansion Project Site 
Plan. 

 
5. Resolution 1883 – Approving either Contract (A) with Johnson County Refuse Inc., or 

Contract (B) with Allied Waste Services, LLC “Doing Business As” Republic Services, for 
Residential Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Services.  

6. Resolution 1886 – Approving Change Order #7 in the Amount of $17,554.02 for the 
College Street Bridge Replacement Project.   

7. Discussion Item: COVID-19 City Protocols.   
8. First Reading of Ordinance 774 Amending Chapters 45 entitled “Alcohol 

Consumption and Intoxication”; and Chapter 47 entitled “Municipal Park Policies 
And Regulations”. 
 

H. Reports  
1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. City Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment Regular Meeting 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for inspection 

on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are not approved until 

the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.)  

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council           March 16, 2020  

Council Chambers     Regular Meeting    7:00 p.m.                                                                                                      
  
Mayor Pro Tem Miller called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Roll call: Council members: 

Jodee Stoolman, Nick Goodweiler (via video/audio conference), Jerry Sexton and Tom Dean were present.  Mayor 

Laughlin was absent.  Miller welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond Jones, 

Deputy Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, City Attorney Kevin Olson, Police Chief Mike Horihan and 

Library Director Nick Shimmin.   
 
PRESENTATIONS 

Chief Horihan presented the new police vehicle to the Council.  Horihan said the 2020 Dodge Ram pick-up has been 

equipped and decaled and that Sergeant Hanna has been assigned the vehicle.  Horihan invited the Council to stop by 

the Police Department office and take a look at it. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to approve minutes for City Council meeting of March 2, 2020. 

Motion to approve additional Cubby Park purchases paid from an approved Cubby Park Project Budget of $25,000. 

Resolution 1881 - Approving 28E Agreements between the City of West Branch and the Boards of Trustees of Cass, 

Gower, Graham, Iowa, Scott and Springdale Townships for the purposes of fire protection, assistance for other 

emergencies and/or disasters relating to life and property or hazardous materials. 

Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
March claims and February Revenues 

 
EXPENDITURES      3/16/2020  
 
AERO RENTAL INC      EQUIPMENT RENTAL    1,072.50  
ALLIANT ENERGY      ALLIANT ENERGY    12,650.40  
ALTORFER INC      EQUIPMENT REPAIR PARTS   117.02  
AMAZON       BOOKS, SUPPLIES    574.05  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.      BOOKS     161.97  
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY     MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES   5.02  
CATHERINE STEEN      MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES   15.36  
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER     RECORDING FEES    34.00  
CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIES    WATER SOFTENER SERVICE   63.11  
DEWEYS JACK & JILL      SUPPLIES     29.45  
DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS     SUPPLIES     32.63  
ELECTRIC PUMP INC      SERVICE CALL    2,011.70  
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING & EQUIPMENT    SUPPLIES     603.96  
FRONTLINE PLUS FIRE & RESCUE     OUTDOOR SIREN MAINTENANCE   1,160.00  
HINKHOUSE GLENN OR PAMELA     BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT   1,184.87  
IOWA ASSN. MUN. UTILITIES     SAFETY TRAINING    655.37  
IOWA PARK AND RECREATION ASSOCIATION   CONFERENCE    235.00  
JAB INK GRAFIX & DESIGNS     VEHICLE SIGNAGE    790.00  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.     RECYCLING - FEBRUARY, 2020   4,013.75  
JOSHUA LANGFORD      BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT   1,106.48  
LENOCH & CILEK      SUPPLIES     7.96  
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS     LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS   1,281.12  
LINN COUNTY R.E.C.      STREET LIGHTS    189.18  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC     BUILDING MAINTENANCE   794.00  
MENARDS       MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES   300.19  
MIDWEST FRAME & AXLE     REPAIR PARTS    412.55  
MOORE'S WELDING INC     VEHICLE REPAIR    1,600.45  

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC.     SUPPLIES, WATER METER   2,054.80  
NELSON & SONS PLUMBING INC     SERVICE CALL    98.52  
PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCE     POSTAGE METER LEASE   102.39  
PYRAMID SERVICES INC.     REPAIR PARTS    87.13  
QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC     LAB ANALYSIS    759.00  
QUALITY ENGRAVED SIGNS     OFFICE SUPPLIES    27.46  
RACOM CORPORATION     RADIO REPAIR    657.50  
SAWYER, ALEX      BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT   2,389.71  
SHIMMIN, NICK      KEYS     60.00  
STATE HYGIENIC LAB      LAB ANALYSIS    26.00  
STATE LIBRARY OF IOWA     KIDS FIRST CONFERENCE 4-6-2020 125.00  
TRUCK EQUIPMENT INC     VEHICLE REPAIR    54.32  
UPS       SHIPPING     47.36  
USA BLUE BOOK      SUPPLIES     2,383.31  
WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSLLC    DVDS, PROGRAM & MAINT SUPPLIES 303.10  
WEX BANK       WEX BANK     1,169.41  
 
TOTAL            41,447.10  
 
PAYROLL        3/6/2020     44,840.30  
 
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
 
DAKOTA KRUSE      DEPOSIT REFUND    62.21  
CHARLES MILLER      DEPOSIT REFUND    18.06  
 
TOTAL            80.27  
 
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES          86,367.67  
     
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND    39,441.09  
022   CIVIC CENTER    997.51  
031   LIBRARY    7,678.41  
110   ROAD USE TAX    8,873.44  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   4,973.23  
600   WATER FUND    14,356.12  
610   SEWER FUND    10,047.87  
 
GRAND TOTAL    86,367.67 
 
 
REVENUE-FISCAL YEAR 2020  
FUND  FEBRUARY  
 
001 GENERAL FUND    21,704.81  
022 CIVIC CENTER    235.73  
031 LIBRARY    263.64  
036 TORT LIABILITY    188.77  
110 ROAD USE TAX    28,646.78  
112 TRUST & AGENCY                      1,076.51  
119 EMERGENCY TAX FUND   151.53  
121 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX   15,823.18  
125 TIF     1,490.32  
226 DEBT SERVICE    1,308.11  
500 CEMETERY PERPETUAL FUND  0.09  
502 KROUTH INTEREST FUND   0.03  
600 WATER FUND    41,719.07  
610 SEWER FUND    44,081.74  
740 STORM WATER UTILITY   5,113.54  
TOTAL     161,803.85 

 
Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Miller, Goodweiler, 

Dean, Stoolman, Sexton.  NAYS:  None.   Motion carried.   

 



 

 

PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA  
Discussion: The Animal Control Commission would like to recommend a proposal to Trap / Neuter and Release cats 

as a part of a pilot project within the city limits. 

Alan Beyer, Chairperson of the Animal Control Commission informed the Council that the commission has recently 

been discussing a trap, neuter and release (TNR) program that a group of residents proposed.  The purpose of the 

program is to help control a feral cat population in town.  Beyers said that two colonies have been identified and that 

approximately a half of dozen male cats would be targeted for the program.  Beyers noted that cats caught would be 

examined and approved by him before they were neutered and released.  Beyer said the cost for neutering was small 

and that the Animal Control Commission budget could handle that.  Horihan said he was not against the program.  

The Council discussed and agreed to move forward with the program and directed Jones to bring the item back for a 

vote. 

 

Second Reading of Ordinance 773 - Amending Chapter 92 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa.  “Eliminating discounted rates for consumption over 250,000” gallons per meter per month. / Move to action. 

No discussion. 

Motion by Dean, second by Stoolman to approve the 2nd reading of Ordinance 773.  AYES:   Dean, Stoolman, 

Sexton, Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

 

First Reading of Ordinance 775 Adding Chapter 78 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa; 

Entitled, “Golf Carts”. / Move to action. 

Stoolman asked if the ordinance was warranted if state law would be enforced moving forward.  Horihan stated that 

with the addition of requiring insurance and listing the streets carts were prohibited on, a local ordinance is needed to 

enforce the additional restrictions.  Horihan said his department would be doing additional education along with 

creating a brochure to have available at Cedar Edge Golf Course. 

Motion by Dean, second by Sexton to approve the 1st reading of Ordinance 775.  AYES:   Dean, Sexton, 

Goodweiler, Miller, Stoolman.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 
Resolution 1880 – Adopting the City of West Branch, IA Sewer Fee Adjustment Guidelines and Establishing a Policy 

for Determination of Abatement of Wastewater Fees. / Move to action. 

The council briefly discussed the new policy to go into effect immediately and had no additions or changes. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Sexton to approve Resolution 1880.  AYES:  Stoolman, Sexton, Dean, Miller, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 
Resolution 1882 – Amending Resolution 1724 An Agreement with Barnhart’s Custom Services LLC for site 

preparation to include additional invoicing of $39,298.88 for related services. / Move to action. 

Dean started by saying the site looked great and much better than he expected and thanked Barnhart Custom Services 

for their work.  Jones explained that additional work had been needed for clearing the site and that the City plans to 

have the concrete removed, crushed and sold.  Because of the extra work needed, additional expenses have been 

incurred.  Barnhart explained All American Concrete was scheduled to crush the concrete and asked the Council for 

permission to move forward.  The Council agreed and advised Barnhart to proceed.   

Motion by Dean, second by Stoolman to approve Resolution 1882.  AYES:  Dean, Stoolman, Goodweiler, 

Miller, Sexton.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
 

Resolution 1883 – Authorize the City Administrator to enter into negotiations with the vendor of choice (in order of 

ranking) for Residential Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Services. / Move to action. 

Jones explained that he had four respondents for the solid waste and recycling proposal.  Those who responded were; 

Johnson County Refuse (the City’s current contractor), Republic Services, ABD Disposal and Waste Management 

Systems.  Jones said that the Mayor, Deputy Clerk Brick and himself reviewed each of the proposals individually, 

rated them and then discussed the proposals as a group.  The result ended with three front runners varying in service 



 

 

levels, cart options and prices.  Steve Smith, Johnson County Refuse, the city’s current vendor for nineteen years 

explained his proposal and offered the city both a five year and eight contract, two cart size choices for trash and 

recycling with weekly pick-up.  Matt Pivit with Republic Services presented his proposal that offered one cart size for 

trash with weekly pick-up and two cart sizes for recycling with a bi-weekly pick-up.  ABC Disposal and Waste 

Management did not send a representative for the meeting.  Sexton prepared a side by side comparison of the 

proposals to help the Council compare the choices.  Miller and Dean indicated their loyalty to Johnson County Refuse 

based on current and past relationships and the high level of service they provide.  Miller also stated that he didn’t 

agree with the ranking process and that cost to the City shouldn’t be a factor in choosing contractors.  The Council 

requested to table the item and asked Jones to provide a choice for the Council to vote on.  

Motion by Sexton, second by Dean to TABLE Resolution 1883.  AYES:  Sexton, Dean, Miller, Stoolman, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones reported that last week community leaders and city staff met to discuss the COVID-19 virus and to develop a 

plan of action regarding possible future closures.  Jones said due to the constant developments of the pandemic the 

situation would be continually be monitored.  Jones updated the Council on a few other city projects and said that the 

first round of ‘courtesy’ nuisance letters were mailed out last week to residents for various violations.   

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Olson reported that a meeting was scheduled on Tuesday with the Fobian’s to discuss an easement agreement with 

regard to the College Street Bridge project. 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

None.    

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Dean asked if any progress had been made on the downstream flood mitigation.  Jones responded that Schechinger 

has been corresponding with the property owners but had no update at this time.  Sexton asked when staff would have 

an alcohol policy ready for Council consideration.  Jones said an internal meeting was scheduled for next week.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn the regular meeting by Dean, second by Stoolman.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council 

meeting adjourned at 8:37 p.m.  

       

 

 

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                           Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at westbranchiowa.org/city-of-west-branch/mayor-city-council/meetings/.   

The minutes are not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                               City Council                                             March 30, 2020  
Council Chambers           Electronic Meeting                                           7:00 p.m.                                                                                       

  
 

An Electronic Meeting (pursuant to Iowa Code Section 21.8) of the City Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar 

County, IA was held on Monday, March 30, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. because a meeting in person was impossible or 

impractical due to concerns for the health and safety of Council Members, Staff and the Public presented by 

COVID-19.   

 

Until further notice, all of our Council Meetings will be held electronically only.  Persons may still attend, observe 

and participate in the meeting at the Council Chambers, City Office, 110 N. Poplar St, West Branch, Iowa.  Social 

distancing practices shall be observed for any persons attending the meeting in person at City Hall. 
 

 

 Mayor Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Roll call (via Zoom video/audio 

platform): Council members: Colton Miller, Nick Goodweiler, Jerry Sexton and Tom Dean.  Jodee Stoolman was 

present in-person.  Staff: (via Zoom) Deputy Clerk Leslie Brick and Library/IT Director Nick Shimmin.  Laughlin 

welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond. 

 

DISCUSSION 

Laughlin welcomed each Council member as they signed into Zoom (an electronic meeting platform).  Instruction 

was provided by Library/IT Director Nick Shimmin on the functionality and features of Zoom and how the Council 

members will participate and interact virtually.  Shimmin said that Laughlin is listed as co-host of the meeting and 

would be able to enable/disable the microphone and video of those signed in to maintain order of the meeting.  

Shimmin said for members of the public who choose to attend the meeting in person, a laptop would be set up and 

displayed on the video screen along with the agenda and packet materials for viewing.  Shimmin said the laptop 

would also serve as the method for members of the public to address the Council.  It was advised that a staff member 

be present to facilitate such needs. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn the test electronic meeting by Miller, second by Sexton.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City 

Council meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m.    

       

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                           Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 2 

https://westbranchiowa.org/city-of-west-branch/mayor-city-council/meetings/


 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 6, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1884 – Approving a Temporary Water Supply Agreement with 

Crestview Specialty Care. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  March 30, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: 
 

 

The City of West Branch has previously agreed to supply bulk water to Crestview in the event of a 

temporary outage so that they can maintain operations for their residents.  The current agreement, 

(previously approved by Resolution 1601) is set to expire on June 30, 2020.   

 

Resolution 1884 will extend the agreement until June 30, 2023. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 1884 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1884 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A TEMPORARY WATER SUPPLY AGREEMENT WITH 

CARE INITIATIVES, INC (D/B/A CRESTVIEW SPECIALTY CARE). 

 

 

  WHEREAS, Care Initiatives, Inc. (d/b/a Crestview Specialty Care) desires to renew a 

Temporary Water Supply Agreement with the City of West Branch whereby the City provides 

Crestview Specialty Care with non-potable water in the case of a water outage; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the current agreement is set to expire on June 30, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the City Council hereby approves a temporary water supply 

agreement attached as “Exhibit A” with Care Initiatives, Inc. (d/b/a Crestview Specialty Care). 

 

  Passed and approved this 6th day of April, 2020. 

 

  

             

      _________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 6, 2020 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Pay Estimate Number #9 in the Amount of $18,703.02 

for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / Eric Gould, V&K 

DATE:  April 1, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This pay estimate in the amount of $18,703.02 which covers work completed under the contract 

between the City of West Branch and Taylor Construction, Inc. for the College Street Bridge 

Replacement project.  

 

Pay Estimates to date on the College Street Bridge Replacement Project:  

 Pay estimate 1 - $361,163.95  

 Pay estimate 2 - $248,327.73  

 Pay estimate 3 - $360,690.11  

 Pay estimate 4 - $208,192.56  

 Pay estimate 5 - $154,055.39  

 Pay estimate 6 - $214,380.09 

 Pay estimate 7 - $105,583.06 

 Pay estimate 8 - $60,598.60 

 Pay estimate 9 - $18,703.02 

 

 

Note: Pay Estimates by law are approved when a public bid is accepted and awarded. These items 

do not require additional passage by ordinance. On July 8th of 2019 the City Council voted to 

review change orders on the consent agenda in the form of a motion for reasons of transparency. 

This approach also cuts staff preparation time. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 4 



PAY ESTIMATE NO.

Taylor Construction, Inc. COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
7314 Columbus Street; P.O. Box 110 WEST BRANCH, IOWA
New Vienna, IA 52065 BROS-8252(605)--8J-16

Contract Amount
Contract ID: 16-8252-605 Contract Date
Account ID: Pay Period

Unit
1 Unit
2 CY
3 CY
4 CY
5 CY
6 CY
7 CY
8 Ea.
9 SY

10 SY
11

SY
12 Ton
13 LS
14 LS
15 CY
16 CY
17 CY
18 LB
19 LB
20 LF
21

LF
22

LF
23 Ea.
24 Ea.
25 Ea.
26 Ea.
27 Ea.
28 Ea.
29 Ea.
30 Ea.
31 Ea.
32 Ea.
33 LF
34 LF
35 Ea.
36

LF
37

LF
38

LF
39

LF
40

LF

VEENSTRA & KIMM, INC.                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
860 22nd Avenue, Suite 4  • Coralville, Iowa 52241-1565

319-466-1000 • 319-466-1008(FAX) • 888-241-8001(WATS)

March 31, 2020 9

$1,666,025.10
February 14, 2019

 $         1,590.00 
2102-2710070 Excavation, Cl 10, Roadway & Borrow 495 10.50$            $          5,197.50 495  $         5,197.50 
2101-0850002 Clearing and Grubbing 130 10.00$            $          1,300.00 159

35554 October 29, 2019 - November 30, 2019

BID ITEMS - DIVISION I

Item Code Description
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

Quantity 
Completed

Value 
Completed

 $       12,375.00 
2105-8425005 Topsoil, Furnish and Spread 130 38.00$            $          4,940.00 255  $         9,690.00 
2104-2710020 Excavation, Cl 10, Channel 1,125 11.00$            $        12,375.00 1125

 $       11,817.50 
2102-2713090 Excavation, Cl 13, Waste 359 12.00$            $          4,308.00 359  $         4,308.00 
2102-2710090 Excavation, Cl 10, Waste 1,630 7.25$              $        11,817.50 1630

 $       10,724.00 
2301-0685550 Bridge Approach Pvm't, as per plan 502.8 80.00$            $        40,224.00 502.8  $       40,224.00 
2214-5145150 Pavement Scarification 1,532 7.00$              $        10,724.00 1532

 $       15,104.00 
2213-7100400 Relocation of Mail Boxes 620.00$          $                     -    $                    -   
2115-0100000 Modified Subbase 400 32.00$            $        12,800.00 472

 $       15,000.00 
2401-6745650 Removal of Existing Structures 1 800.00$          $             800.00 1  $            800.00 
2401-6745625 Removal of Existing Bridge 1 15,000.00$     $        15,000.00 1

 $       67,298.00 
2315-8275025 Surfacing, Driveway, Cl A Crushed Stone 155 23.50$            $          3,642.50 157.11  $         3,692.09 

2301-1033070 Standard or Slip Form PCC Pvm't, Cl C, 
Cl 3 Durability, 7" 1,748 38.50$            $        67,298.00 1748

 $     222,840.00 
2404-7775000 Reinforcing Steel 8,794 1.05$              $          9,233.70 8794  $         9,233.70 
2403-0100010 Structural Concrete (Bridge) 371.4 600.00$          $      222,840.00 371.4

 $       10,500.00 
2402-2721000 Excavation, Class 21 150 150.00$          $        22,500.00 150  $       22,500.00 
2402-2720000 Excavation, Class 20 210 50.00$            $        10,500.00 210

 $         6,669.00 
2414-6445100 Structural Steel Pedestrian Hand 

Railing, 4'-6 Height 75.3 225.00$          $        16,942.50 
75.3

 $       16,942.50 

2414-6445100 Structural Steel Pedestrian Hand 
Railing, 10 In. Height 51.3 130.00$          $          6,669.00 

51.3

 $       62,824.30 
2414-6424119 Concrete Barrier Railing, Aesthetic 174 215.00$          $        37,410.00 174  $       37,410.00 
2404-7775005 Reinforcing Steel, Epoxy Coated 57,113 1.10$              $        62,824.30 57113

 $                    -   
2435-0140148 Manhole, St Sewer, SW-401, 48 In. 1 3,850.00$       $          3,850.00 1  $         3,850.00 
2435-0130348 Manhole, San Sewer, SW-303, 48 In. 2 7,250.00$       $        14,500.00 

 $                    -   
2416-0100024 Aprons, Concrete, 24 In. Dia. 1 1,450.00$       $          1,450.00 1  $         1,450.00 
2416-0100015 Aprons, Concrete, 15 In. Dia. 1,200.00$       $                     -   

 $       11,700.00 
2435-0251224 Intake, SW-512, 24 In. 1,500.00$       $                     -    $                    -   
2435-0250400 Intake, SW-504 2 5,850.00$       $        11,700.00 2

 $         7,500.00 
2435-0250300 Intake, SW-503 1 5,000.00$       $          5,000.00 1  $         5,000.00 
2435-0250100 Intake, SW-501 3 2,500.00$       $          7,500.00 3

 $       94,500.00 
2502-8212036 Subdrain, Longitudinal, (Shoulder) 6"Dia 923 15.00$            $        13,845.00 923  $       13,845.00 
2501-0201042 Piles, Steel, HP 10 X 42 2,100 45.00$            $        94,500.00 2100

 $         2,750.00 
2435-0600010 Manhole Adjustment, Minor 1 650.00$          $             650.00 1  $            650.00 
2435-0251300 Intake, SW-513 1 2,750.00$       $          2,750.00 1

 $       13,920.00 
2503-0114218 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 

RCP, 2000D (Class III), 18 In. 60.00$            $                     -    $                    -   

2503-0114215 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 
RCP, 2000D (Class III), 15 In. 207 60.00$            $        12,420.00 

232

 $            450.00 
2503-0114212 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 

RCP, 2000D (Class III), 12 In. 21 56.50$            $          1,186.50 
22

 $         1,243.00 

2502-8221303 Subdrain Outlet, DR-303 9 75.00$            $             675.00 6

 $       34,147.50 
2503-0200036 Remove Storm Sewer Pipe Less Than or 

Equal to 36 In. 940 20.00$            $        18,800.00 1008  $       20,160.00 

2503-0114224 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 
RCP, 2000D (Class III), 24 In. 471 72.50$            $        34,147.50 

471

V&K Job No. 368266 1 of 7



Unit
41 SY
42 SY
43 Ton
44 SY
45 Ea.
46 SY
47 SY
48 SY
49 SF
50 SY
51 SY
52 SY
53 SY
54 Ea.
55 LF
56 LF
57 Ea.
58 LF
59 Ea.
60 Ea.
61 Ea.
62 LS
63 LS
64 LS
65 Ea.
66 LF
67 LF
68 LF
69 LF
70 Ea.
71 Ea.
72 Ea.
73 Ea.
74 Ea.
75 Ea.
76 Ea.
77 Ea.
78 Ea.
79 Ea.
80 Ea.
81 Ea.
82 Ea.
83 Ea.
84 Ea.
85 Acre
86 Acre
87 Acre
88

Mgal
89 Ea.
90 LF
91

LF
92

LF
93 LF
94 Ea.
95 Ea.

Value 
Completed

2507-2638650 Bridge Wing Armoring - Erosion Stone 50 50.00$            $          2,500.00 50  $         2,500.00 
Item Code Description

Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

Quantity 
Completed

 $         1,728.00 
2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes and Utility Accesses 8 425.00$          $          3,400.00 6  $         2,550.00 
2510-6745850 Removal of Pavement 144 12.00$            $          1,728.00 144

 $         1,320.00 
2507-6800061 Revetment, Class E 841 42.25$            $        35,532.25 813.41  $       34,366.57 
2507-3250005 Engineering Fabric 660 2.00$              $          1,320.00 660

 $         5,336.00 
2511-7528101 Detectable Warnings 52 30.00$            $          1,560.00 52  $         1,560.00 
2511-7526006 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 6 In. 229 46.00$            $        10,534.00 116

 $         2,002.00 
2511-7526004 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 4 In. 191 36.75$            $          7,019.25 135  $         4,961.25 
2511-6745900 Removal of Sidewalk 308 6.50$              $          2,002.00 308

 $       27,514.55 
2515-6745600 Removal of Paved Driveway 64 12.50$            $             800.00 108  $         1,350.00 
2515-2475095 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 9.5 In. 362 63.50$            $        22,987.00 433.3

 $         5,691.55 
2515-2475008 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 8 In. 142 52.50$            $          7,455.00 125.3  $         6,578.25 
2515-2475006 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 6 In. 134 44.50$            $          5,963.00 127.9

 $         9,175.60 
2523-0000100 Lighting Poles 2 3,900.00$       $          7,800.00 2  $         7,800.00 
2519-4200020 Remvl & Reinstall of Fence, Chain Link 140 65.54$            $          9,175.60 140

 $            250.00 
2519-3300600 Fence, Safety 1,040 5.00$              $          5,200.00 425  $         2,125.00 
2518-6910000 Safety Closure 2 125.00$          $             250.00 2

 $            600.00 
2524-6765110 Removal of Type A Sign 4 25.00$            $             100.00 4  $            100.00 
2524-6765010 Remove and Reinstall Sign as per plan 4 150.00$          $             600.00 4

 $         9,000.00 
2523-0000310 Handholes and Junction Boxes 3 1,400.00$       $          4,200.00 3  $         4,200.00 
2523-0000200 Electrical Circuits 600 15.00$            $          9,000.00 600

 $     123,750.00 
2549-0006320 Urethane Chimney Seal 4 725.00$          $          2,900.00 4  $         2,900.00 
2533-4980005 Mobilization 0.75 165,000.00$   $      123,750.00 0.75

 $       15,000.00 
2528-8445110 Traffic Control 0.50 4,350.00$       $          2,175.00 0.5  $         2,175.00 
2526-8285000 Construction Survey 0.75 20,000.00$     $        15,000.00 0.75

 $                    -   
2554-0112012 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12 In. 225.00$          $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0112008 Water Main, Trenched,DIP, 8 In. 65.00$            $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0112006 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 6 In. 92.50$            $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0112004 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 4 In. 150.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Cross, 12 In. X 8 In 1,375.00$       $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 45° Bend, 8 In. 625.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 22.5° Bend, 8 In. 725.00$          $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 11.25° Bend, 8 In 600.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 8 In. X 6 In. 750.00$          $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 6 In. X 4 In. 585.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 12 In. X 8 In. 1,250.00$       $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Reducer, 8 In. X 6 375.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0207008 Valve, Gate, DIP, 8 In. 1,650.00$       $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0207006 Valve, Gate, DIP, 6 In. 1,250.00$       $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0204110 Water Service Stub, Copper, 1 In. 1,725.00$       $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 8 In. X 8 In. 850.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2601-2634100 Mulching 0.50 2,500.00$       $          1,250.00 0.5  $         1,250.00 
2599-9999005 Removal of Hydrant Assembly 800.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0210201 Fire Hydrant Assembly, WM-201 5,250.00$       $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0207012 Valve, Gate, DIP, 12 In. 2,800.00$       $                     -   

 $                    -   
2601-2643300 Mobilization for Watering 4 350.00$          $          1,400.00  $                    -   

2601-2643110 Watering for Sod, Special Ditch 
Control, or Slope Protection 0.07 60.00$            $                 4.20 

 $         1,250.00 
2601-2642120 Stabil Crop-Seeding & Fertilizing (Urban) 0.50 1,500.00$       $             750.00 0.5  $            750.00 
2601-2636044 Seeding and Fertilizing (Urban) 0.50 2,500.00$       $          1,250.00 0.5

 $         1,358.00 
2602-0000500 Open-Throat Curb Intake Sediment Filter 60 20.00$            $          1,200.00 10  $            200.00 

2602-0000309 Perimeter and Slope Sediment Control 
Device, 9 In. Dia. 80 7.00$              $             560.00 194

 $                    -   
2602-0000101 Maintenance of Silt Fence or Silt Fence 

for Ditch Check 715 0.50$              $             357.50  $                    -   

2602-0000020 Silt Fence 715 2.00$              $          1,430.00 

Division I Price: 1,094,972.80$    1,078,246.86$   

 $         1,000.00 
2602-0010020 Mobilizations, Emergency Erosion Contro 1 1,000.00$       $          1,000.00  $                    -   
2602-0010010 Mobilizations, Erosion Control 1 500.00$          $             500.00 2

V&K Job No. 368266 2 of 7



Unit
1 Unit
2 CY
3 CY
4 CY
5 CY
6 CY
7 CY
8 Ea.
9 SY

10 SY
11

SY
12 Ton
13 LS
14 LS
15 CY
16 CY
17 CY
18 LB
19 LB
20 LF
21

LF
22

LF
23 Ea.
24 Ea.
25 Ea.
26 Ea.
27 Ea.
28 Ea.
29 Ea.
30 Ea.
31 Ea.
32 Ea.
33 LF
34 LF
35 Ea.
36

LF
37

LF
38

LF
39

LF
40

LF
41 SY
42 SY
43 Ton
44 SY
45 Ea.
46 SY
47 SY
48 SY

BID ITEMS - DIVISION II

Item Code Description
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

 $            735.00 
2102-2710090 Excavation, Cl 10, Waste 1,170 7.25$              $          8,482.50 1170  $         8,482.50 
2102-2710070 Excavation, Cl 10, Roadway & Borrow 70 10.50$            $             735.00 70

Quantity 
Completed

Value 
Completed

2101-0850002 Clearing and Grubbing 10.00$            $                     -    $                    -   

 $         9,234.00 
2115-0100000 Modified Subbase 345 32.00$            $        11,040.00 440  $       14,080.00 
2105-8425005 Topsoil, Furnish and Spread 50 38.00$            $          1,900.00 243

 $         2,796.00 
2104-2710020 Excavation, Cl 10, Channel 11.00$            $                     -    $                    -   
2102-2713090 Excavation, Cl 13, Waste 233 12.00$            $          2,796.00 233

 $                    -   
2301-1033070 Standard or Slip Form PCC Pvm't, Cl C, 

Cl 3 Durability, 7" 1,624 38.50$            $        62,524.00 1650
 $       63,525.00 

2301-0685550 Bridge Approach Pvm't, as per plan 80.00$            $                     -   

 $         3,100.00 
2214-5145150 Pavement Scarification 1,246 7.00$              $          8,722.00 1246  $         8,722.00 
2213-7100400 Relocation of Mail Boxes 2 620.00$          $          1,240.00 5

 $                    -   
2402-2720000 Excavation, Class 20 50.00$            $                     -    $                    -   
2401-6745650 Removal of Existing Structures 800.00$          $                     -   

 $              94.00 
2401-6745625 Removal of Existing Bridge 15,000.00$     $                     -    $                    -   
2315-8275025 Surfacing, Driveway, Cl A Crushed Stone 4 23.50$            $               94.00 4

 $                    -   
2404-7775005 Reinforcing Steel, Epoxy Coated 1.10$              $                     -    $                    -   
2404-7775000 Reinforcing Steel 1.05$              $                     -   

 $                    -   
2403-0100010 Structural Concrete (Bridge) 600.00$          $                     -    $                    -   
2402-2721000 Excavation, Class 21 150.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   

2416-0100015 Aprons, Concrete, 15 In. Dia. 1 1,200.00$       $          1,200.00 1  $         1,200.00 

2414-6445100 Structural Steel Pedestrian Hand 
Railing, 4'-6 Height 225.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2414-6445100 Structural Steel Pedestrian Hand 

Railing, 10 In. Height 130.00$          $                     -    $                    -   

2414-6424119 Concrete Barrier Railing, Aesthetic 215.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2435-0250100 Intake, SW-501 4 2,500.00$       $        10,000.00 3  $         7,500.00 
2435-0140148 Manhole, St Sewer, SW-401, 48 In. 3,850.00$       $                     -   

 $         1,450.00 
2435-0130348 Manhole, San Sewer, SW-303, 48 In. 1 7,250.00$       $          7,250.00 1  $         7,250.00 
2416-0100024 Aprons, Concrete, 24 In. Dia. 1 1,450.00$       $          1,450.00 1

 $         1,500.00 
2435-0251300 Intake, SW-513 1 2,750.00$       $          2,750.00 1  $         2,750.00 
2435-0251224 Intake, SW-512, 24 In. 1 1,500.00$       $          1,500.00 1

 $                    -   
2435-0250400 Intake, SW-504 2 5,850.00$       $        11,700.00 2  $       11,700.00 
2435-0250300 Intake, SW-503 5,000.00$       $                     -   

 $         5,235.00 
2502-8221303 Subdrain Outlet, DR-303 4 75.00$            $             300.00 7  $            525.00 
2502-8212036 Subdrain, Longitudinal, (Shoulder) 6 In. 349 15.00$            $          5,235.00 349

 $                    -   
2501-0201042 Piles, Steel, HP 10 X 42 45.00$            $                     -    $                    -   
2435-0600010 Manhole Adjustment, Minor 650.00$          $                     -   

 $       15,630.00 
2503-0114224 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 

RCP, 2000D (Class III), 24 In. 185 72.50$            $        13,412.50 178.5  $       12,941.25 

2503-0114218 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 
RCP, 2000D (Class III), 18 In. 170 60.00$            $        10,200.00 260.5

 $         1,158.25 

2503-0114215 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 
RCP, 2000D (Class III), 15 In. 227 60.00$            $        13,620.00 259  $       15,540.00 

2503-0114212 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 
RCP, 2000D (Class III), 12 In. 50 56.50$            $          2,825.00 20.5

 $                    -   
2507-6800061 Revetment, Class E 42.25$            $                     -    $                    -   
2507-3250005 Engineering Fabric 2.00$              $                     -   

 $         4,460.00 
2507-2638650 Bridge Wing Armoring - Erosion Stone 50.00$            $                     -    $                    -   

2503-0200036 Remove Storm Sewer Pipe Less Than or 
Equal to 36 In. 223 20.00$            $          4,460.00 223

 $         1,527.50 
2511-7526004 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 4 In. 116 36.75$            $          4,263.00 432  $       15,876.00 
2511-6745900 Removal of Sidewalk 235 6.50$              $          1,527.50 235

 $         1,008.00 
2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes and Utility Accesses 2 425.00$          $             850.00 2  $            850.00 
2510-6745850 Removal of Pavement 73 12.00$            $             876.00 84

 $         5,382.00 2511-7526006 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 6 In. 185 46.00$            $          8,510.00 117

V&K Job No. 368266 3 of 7



Unit
49 SF
50 SY
51 SY
52 SY
53 SY
54 Ea.
55 LF
56 LF
57 Ea.
58 LF
59 Ea.
60 Ea.
61 Ea.
62 LS
63 LS
64 LS
65 Ea.
66 LF
67 LF
68 LF
69 LF
70 Ea.
71 Ea.
72 Ea.
73 Ea.
74 Ea.
75 Ea.
76 Ea.
77 Ea.
78 Ea.
79 Ea.
80 Ea.
81 Ea.
82 Ea.
83 Ea.
84 Ea.
85 Acre
86 Acre
87 Acre
88

Mgal
89 Ea.
90 LF
91

LF
92

LF
93 LF
94 Ea.
95 Ea.

 $            300.00 
2515-2475006 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 6 In. 202 44.50$            $          8,989.00 242.5  $       10,791.25 
2511-7528101 Detectable Warnings 10 30.00$            $             300.00 10

Item Code Description
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

Quantity 
Completed

Value 
Completed

 $            200.00 
2518-6910000 Safety Closure 2 125.00$          $             250.00 2  $            250.00 
2515-6745600 Removal of Paved Driveway 16 12.50$            $             200.00 16

 $                    -   
2515-2475095 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 9.5 In. 63.50$            $                     -    $                    -   
2515-2475008 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 8 In. 52.50$            $                     -   

 $                    -   
2523-0000200 Electrical Circuits 15.00$            $                     -    $                    -   
2523-0000100 Lighting Poles 3,900.00$       $                     -   

 $         2,300.00 
2519-4200020 Remvl & Reinstall of Fence, Chain Link 65.54$            $                     -    $                    -   
2519-3300600 Fence, Safety 260 5.00$              $          1,300.00 460

 $              50.00 
2526-8285000 Construction Survey 0.25 20,000.00$     $          5,000.00 0.25  $         5,000.00 
2524-6765110 Removal of Type A Sign 2 25.00$            $               50.00 2

 $                    -   
2524-6765010 Remove and Reinstall Sign as per plan 1 150.00$          $             150.00 1  $            150.00 
2523-0000310 Handholes and Junction Boxes 1,400.00$       $                     -   

 $            725.00 
2554-0112004 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 4 In. 5 150.00$          $             750.00 2  $            300.00 
2549-0006320 Urethane Chimney Seal 1 725.00$          $             725.00 1

 $         2,175.00 
2533-4980005 Mobilization 0.25 165,000.00$   $        41,250.00 0.25  $       41,250.00 
2528-8445110 Traffic Control 0.50 4,350.00$       $          2,175.00 0.5

 $         1,125.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 11.25° Bend, 8 In 3 600.00$          $          1,800.00 3  $         1,800.00 
2554-0112012 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12 In. 5 225.00$          $          1,125.00 5

 $         2,497.50 
2554-0112008 Water Main, Trenched,DIP, 8 In. 1,395 65.00$            $        90,675.00 1395  $       90,675.00 
2554-0112006 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 6 In. 30 92.50$            $          2,775.00 27

 $         1,375.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Reducer, 8 In. X 6 2 375.00$          $             750.00 2  $            750.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Cross, 12 In. X 8 In 1 1,375.00$       $          1,375.00 1

 $         2,900.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 45° Bend, 8 In. 1 625.00$          $             625.00 2  $         1,250.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 22.5° Bend, 8 In. 2 725.00$          $          1,450.00 4

 $            750.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 8 In. X 8 In. 1 850.00$          $             850.00 1  $            850.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 8 In. X 6 In. 1 750.00$          $             750.00 1

 $         2,500.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 6 In. X 4 In. 1 585.00$          $             585.00 1  $            585.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 12 In. X 8 In. 2 1,250.00$       $          2,500.00 2

 $       13,200.00 
2554-0207012 Valve, Gate, DIP, 12 In. 1 2,800.00$       $          2,800.00 1  $         2,800.00 
2554-0207008 Valve, Gate, DIP, 8 In. 8 1,650.00$       $        13,200.00 8

 $       17,250.00 
2554-0207006 Valve, Gate, DIP, 6 In. 2 1,250.00$       $          2,500.00 2  $         2,500.00 
2554-0204110 Water Service Stub, Copper, 1 In. 10 1,725.00$       $        17,250.00 10

 $         1,250.00 
2601-2636044 Seeding and Fertilizing (Urban) 0.50 2,500.00$       $          1,250.00 0.5  $         1,250.00 
2601-2634100 Mulching 0.50 2,500.00$       $          1,250.00 0.5

 $       15,750.00 
2599-9999005 Removal of Hydrant Assembly 3 800.00$          $          2,400.00 3  $         2,400.00 
2554-0210201 Fire Hydrant Assembly, WM-201 3 5,250.00$       $        15,750.00 3

 $                    -   
2602-0000020 Silt Fence 165 2.00$              $             330.00  $                    -   
2601-2643300 Mobilization for Watering 4 350.00$          $          1,400.00 

 $            750.00 
2601-2643110 Watering for Sod, Special Ditch 

Control, or Slope Protection 0.05 60.00$            $                 3.00  $                    -   

2601-2642120 Stabil Crop-Seeding & Fertilizing (Urban 0.50 1,500.00$       $             750.00 0.5

 $            600.00 
2602-0010010 Mobilizations, Erosion Control 1 500.00$          $             500.00 1  $            500.00 
2602-0000500 Open-Throat Curb Intake Sediment Filter 10 20.00$            $             200.00 30

 $                    -   

2602-0000309 Perimeter and Slope Sediment Control 
Device, 9 In. Dia. 7.00$              $                     -    $                    -   

2602-0000101 Maintenance of Silt Fence or Silt Fence 
for Ditch Check 165 0.50$              $               82.50 

 $                    -   

Division II Price: 426,527.00$    453,050.25$   

2602-0010020 Mobilizations, Emergency Erosion Contr 1 1,000.00$       $          1,000.00 

V&K Job No. 368266 4 of 7



Unit
96 CY
97 CY
98 CY
99 CY

100 CY
101 SY
102 SY
103 Ton
104 Ea.
105 Ea.
106 Ea.
107 Ea.
108 Ea.
109 Ea.
110 LF
111 Ea.
112

LF
113

LF
114

LF
115 SY
116 Ea.
117 SY
118 SY
119 SY
120 SF
121 Ea.
122 LS
123 LS
124 LS
125 Ea.
126 LF
127 Ea.
128 Acre
129 Acre
130 Acre
131

Mgal
132 Ea.
133 LF
134

LF
135

LF
136 LF
137 Ea.
138 Ea.

Value 
Completed

2102-2710070 Excavation, Cl 10, Roadway & Borrow 50 8.00$              $             400.00 50  $            400.00 
Item Code Description

Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

Quantity 
Completed

BID ITEMS - DIVISION III

 $         2,772.00 
2115-0100000 Modified Subbase 170 38.25$            $          6,502.50 263  $       10,059.75 
2105-8425005 Topsoil, Furnish and Spread 90 38.50$            $          3,465.00 72

 $         9,346.75 
2102-2713090 Excavation, Cl 13, Waste 143 8.25$              $          1,179.75 143  $         1,179.75 
2102-2710090 Excavation, Cl 10, Waste 763 12.25$            $          9,346.75 763

 $       16,562.98 
2416-0100012 Aprons, Concrete, 12 In. Dia. 2 1,050.00$       $          2,100.00 2  $         2,100.00 
2303-0000100 HMA Mixture, Com Mix (Binder) per pla 120 126.30$          $        15,156.00 131.14

 $            202.50 
2301-1033070 Standard or Slip Form PCC Pvm't, Cl C, 

Cl 3 D bilit  7"
847 38.50$            $        32,609.50 870.8  $       33,525.80 

2214-5145150 Pavement Scarification 810 0.25$              $             202.50 810

 $                    -   
2435-0250400 Intake, SW-504 1 5,750.00$       $          5,750.00 1  $         5,750.00 
2435-0250100 Intake, SW-501 1 2,500.00$       $          2,500.00 0

 $                    -   
2435-0140148 Manhole, St Sewer, SW-401, 48 In. 1 2,750.00$       $          2,750.00 1  $         2,750.00 
2435-0130348 Manhole, San Sewer, SW-303, 48 In. 1 7,500.00$       $          7,500.00 

 $            150.00 
2503-0114212 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 

RCP, 2000D (Class III), 12 In. 111 50.00$            $          5,550.00 142  $         7,100.00 

2502-8221303 Subdrain Outlet, DR-303 6 75.00$            $             450.00 2

 $         4,400.00 
2502-8212036 Subdrain, Longitudinal, (Shoulder) 6 In. 499 15.00$            $          7,485.00 499  $         7,485.00 
2435-0251100 Intake, SW-511 2 2,200.00$       $          4,400.00 2

 $         1,102.50 
2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes and Utility Accesses 2 350.00$          $             700.00 2  $            700.00 
2510-6745850 Removal of Pavement 105 10.50$            $          1,102.50 105

 $         2,677.50 
2503-0200036 Remove Storm Sewer Pipe Less Than or 

Equal to 36 In. 115 10.00$            $          1,150.00 144  $         1,440.00 

2503-0114218 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 
RCP, 2000D (Class III), 18 In. 31 52.50$            $          1,627.50 51

 $            920.00 
2511-7528101 Detectable Warnings 40 30.00$            $          1,200.00 40  $         1,200.00 
2511-7526006 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 6 In. 20 46.00$            $             920.00 20

 $            540.00 
2511-7526004 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 4 In. 158 36.75$            $          5,806.50 158  $         5,806.50 
2511-6745900 Removal of Sidewalk 72 7.50$              $             540.00 72

 $            500.00 
2533-4980005 Mobilization 1 5,000.00$       $          5,000.00 1  $         5,000.00 
2528-8445110 Traffic Control 1 500.00$          $             500.00 1

 $            375.00 
2526-8285000 Construction Survey 1 7,000.00$       $          7,000.00 1  $         7,000.00 
2518-6910000 Safety Closure 3 125.00$          $             375.00 3

 $         1,250.00 
2601-2634100 Mulching 0.20 3,000.00$       $             600.00 0.2  $            600.00 
2599-9999005 Removal of Hydrant Assembly 1 1,250.00$       $          1,250.00 1

 $            725.00 
2554-0112024 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 24 In. 20 150.00$          $          3,000.00 20  $         3,000.00 
2549-0006320 Urethane Chimney Seal 1 725.00$          $             725.00 1

 $                    -   

2601-2643300 Mobilization for Watering 4 350.00$          $          1,400.00  $                    -   

2601-2643110 Watering for Sod, Special Ditch 
Control, or Slope Protection 0.03 60.00$            $                 1.80 

 $            600.00 
2601-2642120 Stabil Crop-Seeding & Fertilizing (Urban 0.20 2,000.00$       $             400.00 0.2  $            400.00 
2601-2636044 Seeding and Fertilizing (Urban) 0.20 3,000.00$       $             600.00 0.2

 $            560.00 

2602-0000500 Open-Throat Curb Intake Sediment Filter 20 25.00$            $             500.00 20  $            500.00 

2602-0000309 Perimeter and Slope Sediment Control 
Device, 9 In. Dia. 40 14.00$            $             560.00 40

 $                    -   
2602-0000101 Maintenance of Silt Fence or Silt Fence 

for Ditch Check 120 1.00$              $             120.00  $                    -   

2602-0000020 Silt Fence 120 5.00$              $             600.00 

Division III Price: 144,525.30$    139,181.03$   

 $            500.00 
2602-0010020 Mobilizations, Emergency Erosion Contr 1 1,000.00$       $          1,000.00  $                    -   
2602-0010010 Mobilizations, Erosion Control 1 500.00$          $             500.00 1

V&K Job No. 368266 5 of 7



Unit
27 Ea.

105 Ea.

116 Ea.

8001 Ea.

8002 Ea.

8003 LF

8004 Ea.

8005 Ea.

8006 CY

8007 CY

8008 SY

8009 Ea.

8010 Ea.

8011 Ea.

8015 Ea.

8016 LF

8017 Ea.

8018 LF

8019 Ea.

8021 SY

52 SY

25 Ea.

45 Ea.

8001 Ea.

8005 Ea.

8006 CY

8007 CY

8012 LF

8013 CY

8014 Ea.

8020 Ea.

8022 SY

63.50$            $        10,858.50 171  $       10,858.50 

MATERIALS STORED SUMMARY
Description # of Units Unit Price Extended Cost

Total -$                      

NON PARTICIPATING CHANGE ORDER ITEMS

Item Code Description
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

Quantity 
Completed

Value 
Completed

 - 

2435-0600020 Manhole Adjustment 1 5,280.00$       $          5,280.00 1  $         5,280.00 

2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes and Utility Accesses -1 350.00$          $            (350.00) -

 - 

2435-0130348 Manhole, San Sewer, SW-303, 48 In. -1 7,500.00$       $         (7,500.00) -  - 

2435-0250100 Intake, SW-501 -2 2,500.00$       $         (5,000.00) -

 $            600.00 

2504-0220000 San Swr Service Relocation 2 1,810.60$       $          3,621.20 2  $         3,621.20 

2599-9999005 Valve Removal 1 600.00$          $             600.00 1

 $         1,017.50 

2554-0112012 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12" 52 110.00$          $          5,720.00 56.75  $         6,242.50 

2554-0202200 Fittings by Count DI, Sleeve 12" 1 1,017.50$       $          1,017.50 1

 $         4,950.00 

2435-0250300 Intake, SW-503 2 2,500.00$       $          5,000.00 2  $         5,000.00 

2113-0001100 Subgrade Stabil Mat'l Geogrid TX160 705 6.60$              $          4,653.00 750

 $         2,633.24 

2102-2710070 Excavation Class 10 Roadway & Borrow 188 21.00$            $          3,954.93 188.33  $         3,954.93 

2552-0000220 Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill Mat' 99 26.51$            $          2,633.24 99.33

 $         6,050.98 

2599-9999007 Air Release Assembly 1 2,475.00$       $          2,475.00 1  $         2,475.00 

2554-0205120 Water Service Stub 34 177.97$          $          6,050.98 34

 $         3,520.00 

2599-9999005 SW-511 Intake Modifications 2 1,925.00$       $          3,850.00 2  $         3,850.00 

2554-0202200 Fittings by Count, DI, 45 Bend, 12" 4 880.00$          $          3,520.00 4

1 600.00$             

2599-9999006

2503-0110008

 - 

2435-0600020 Manhole Adjustment 2 5,280.00$       $        10,560.00 2  $       10,560.00 

2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes and Utility Accesses -2 425.00$          $            (850.00) -

 $         5,376.53 

PARTICIPATING CHANGE ORDER ITEMS
2435-0130348 Manhole, San Sewer, SW-303, 48 In. -2 7,250.00$       $       (14,500.00) -  - 

2515-6745600 Removal of Paved Driveway 171.5 31.35$            $          5,376.53 171.5

2515-2475095 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 9.5 In. 171

 $         1,354.50 

2504-0240036 Remove San Sewer Pipe ≤ 36" 45 62.76$            $          2,837.38 45.21  $         2,837.38 

2102-2710070 Excavation & Backfill w/Native Material 153 21.00$            $          3,213.00 64.5

 $         3,621.20 

2552-0000220 Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill Mat' 50 26.51$            $          1,316.75 49.67  $         1,316.75 

2504-0220000 San Swr Service Relocation 2 1,810.60$       $          3,621.20 2

 $         2,200.00 

6100-2301010 PCC Cold Weather Protection 977.5 1.00$              $             977.50 977.5  $            977.50 

2435-0251100 Intake, SW-511 1 2,200.00$       $          2,200.00 1

 $         4,519.23 

2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes &Utility Accesses 2 1,210.00$       $          2,420.00 2  $         2,420.00 

2599-9999003 Excavation & Backfill w/Native Material 97 46.59$            $          4,519.23 97

Total Change Orders: 70,499.93$      97,660.93$     

2435-0700020

1 350.00$             

40 36.85$           1,474.00$           40 1,474.00$          

Nylo-Plast 8" Drop-In Grate

Stm Swr GMain, Trch, PVC, C900 8"

Connect to Existing Intake

1 350.00$         350.00$              

1 600.00$         600.00$              

V&K Job No. 368266 6 of 7



100%

The amount is recommended for approval for payment in accordance with the terms of the contract.

Prepared By: Recommended By: Approved By:

Taylor Construction, Inc. Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. West Branch, Iowa

Leland Belding

Engineer

Total Approved Total Completed

Contract Price 1,666,025.10$        1,670,478.14$      

SUMMARY

Change Order No. 6

Change Order No. 7

Change Order No. 4

Change Order No. 5

Approved Change Order (list each) Change Order No. 1

Change Order No. 2

Change Order No. 3

Retainage (3%) 30,000.00$           

Total Earned Less Retainage 1,738,139.07$      
Total Previously Approved (list each) Pay Estimate No. 1 361,163.95$           

Pay Estimate No. 2 248,327.73$           

Revised Contract Price 1,736,525.03$        1,768,139.07$      

Stored -$                      

Total Earned 1,768,139.07$      

Pay Estimate No. 7 105,583.06$           

Pay Estimate No. 8 60,598.60$             

Pay Estimate No. 5 154,055.39$           

Pay Estimate No. 6 214,380.09$           

Pay Estimate No. 3 360,690.11$           

Pay Estimate No. 4 214,637.12$           

Title: Title: Title:

Date: Date: March 31, 2020 Date:

18,703.02$         

Signature: Signature: Signature:

Name: Name: Name:

Total Previously Approved 1,719,436.05$      

Percent Complete Amount Due This Request 18,703.02$           

V&K Job No. 368266 7 of 7



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 6, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 

progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  March 31, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to City Council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 5 













 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 6, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Third (Final) Reading of Ordinance 773 Amending Chapter 92 of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa.  “Eliminating 

discounted rates for consumption over 250,000” gallons per meter per 

month. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  March 11, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: 

Revenue sufficiency is the primary financial objective for most water utilities that operate as 

enterprises. They must be financially self-sufficient, recovering not only the cost of daily operations 

but also funding capital improvements to fulfill their central public health mission. They strive to 

design rate structures and set rate levels in a manner that equitably charges a customer based on the 

cost-of-service. However, rates and rate structures can go well beyond these main objectives and 

provide an excellent avenue to help a utility achieve some of its goals and policies. 
 
This staff recommendation addresses the following areas that a rate structure should consider:  

 Promotion of Conservation 

 Affordability 

 Economic Development, and 

 Short-term Revenue Stability: 
 
The attached Ordinance 773 makes a small amendment to strike out the following language: 
 

$4.59 per 1,000 gallons, with a 1,700-gallon minimum, payable monthly effective June 20, 

2006. 
 
$5.23 per 1,000 gallons, with a 1,700-gallon minimum, payable monthly effective July 1, 

2012.  All consumption over 250,000 gallons per meter per month stays at this rate. 
 
Please see on the attached copy of Chapter 92 the strike out is highlighted with red lines stricken 

through the aforementioned language.  The effective date on the ordinance has also been amended 

to May 1st. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Third Reading of Ordinance 772 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

  



 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 773 

 

ORDINANCE 773 AMENDING CHAPTER 92 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA; “ELIMINATING DISCOUNTED RATES FOR 

CONSUMPTION OVER 250,000 GALLONS PER METER PER MONTH. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has recommended updating the City’s Water Rate Policy for 

reasons of conservation, sustainability and revenue stability ; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Administrator has proposed to remove language relating to 

discounted or lower rates for water users that exceed 250,000 gallons of water per month; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Amendment. Chapter 92 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa, is 

hereby amended and incorporated into this Ordinance by this reference. 

 

2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

4. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect May 1st 2020 after its 

passage, approval and publication as required by law. 

 

 

First reading:  March 2, 2020 

Second reading: March 16, 2020 

Third Reading: April 6, 2020 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 6, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading of Ordinance 775 Adding, Chapter 78 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa; Entitled, “Golf Carts”. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  March 11, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: 

  

The purpose of this item is to address issues related to safety and well-being of the citizens of the 

City of West Branch by prohibiting the unsafe use of golf carts on the public roads in the city.  We 

have received several complaints regarding the use of Golf Carts.  Particularly regarding operations 

by under aged children which may endanger the safety of persons driving, bicycling or walking on 

the roads or the safety of motorists, cyclists, pedestrians, or other children passengers on the Golf 

Cart.  This item was brought to the City’s attention by a citizen driven proposal, it was refined by city 

staff (primarily the police department) and presented with this first reading of a new code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Second Reading of Ordinance 775 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 775 

 

ORDINANCE 775 ESTABLISHING A NEW CHAPTER 78 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA; ENTITLED “GOLF 

CARTS”. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has recommended establishing a City of West Branch Policy 

for reasons of safety and well-being of the citizens; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the operations of a Golf Cart by under aged children could endanger the 

safety of persons driving, bicycling or walking on the roads or the safety of motorists, cyclists, 

pedestrians, or other children passengers on the Golf Cart; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this is a practice as well as other risky or prohibited behaviors that involve 

the golf cart operations are addressed within this ordinance; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Establishing. Chapter 78 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa, is 

hereby developed and incorporated into this Ordinance by this reference. 

 

2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

4. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval 

and publication as required by law. 

 

 

First reading:  March 16, 2020 

Second reading: April 6, 2020 

Third Reading: April 20, 2020 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 6, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1887 – Allowing the Implementation of a Trap / Neuter and 

Release Feral Cats Pilot Program within the City Limits. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Dr. Alan Beyers, Chairman of the Animal Control Board. 

DATE:  March 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
Research shows that Trap-Neuter-Return (TNR) is the humane, effective approach for community 

cats. TNR improves cats’ lives, addresses community concerns, stabilizes colonies, and helps cats 

and people co-exist. This wide variety of research can be used by TNR advocates to support their 

advocacy efforts. Legislators, too, can turn to this research as confirmation that TNR is the only way 

to address community cats. 

 

Such activity despite its potential benefit would be a violation of our current code of ordinances.  

This request would like to have the City Council consider placing a moratorium (a temporary stay) 

on this portion Chapter 55.10; entitled, “Animals at Large Prohibited. 

 

The commission wants to implement TNR on a small portion of a feral cat colony and to study the 

outcomes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

There are mixed reviews as to the case studies on TNR; as well as, the opinions of staff on this topic.  

However, since the pilot program is intended to be limited in measure and scope.  And limited 

program duration; therefore, staff has no recommendation and yields to the opinions and 

recommendation of the Animal Control Board and Commission Chairman Dr. Beyers.  

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Pros  



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Pros (cont.) 



 

 

 

 

 

The Cons  



 

 

 

The Current City Code 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1887 

 

RESOLUTION ALLOWING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF A TRAP, NEUTER, AND 

RELEASE FERAL CATS PILOT PROGRAM WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS. 

 

 

  WHEREAS, The trap-neuter-return (TNR) is a management technique in which community 

cats are humanely trapped, evaluated, spayed or neutered by a licensed veterinarian, ear-tipped to show 

they’ve been sterilized, vaccinated against rabies and distemper,* and then returned to their original 

habitat. 
 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Animal Control Commission, would like to investigate and test  

TNR as a potential effective management tool for controlling feral cat population in West Branch; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Dr. Alan Beyers a retired trained professional veterinarian will be collecting data 

and coordinating this program; and 

 

WHEREAS, the program is to be evaluated annually and is subject to cancellation at any time; 

and 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Cedar County, Iowa, that the City Council hereby approves a temporary exemption for TNR cats from 

current prohibition at large or stray animal ordinance.   

 

Passed and approved this 6th day of April, 2020. 

 

  

             

      _________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 6, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1885 – Approving the West Branch High School Expansion 

Project Site Plan. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  March 30, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 
The West Branch Community School District submitted a proposed site plan for improvements to 

the West Branch High School which includes a building addition, more parking, trail improvements 

and a secondary driveway access. 

 

City Staff and the City Engineer has reviewed the proposed site plan and provided comments to the 

school district.  Planning & Zoning has reviewed the site plan and approved it at their March 24, 

2020 meeting and have recommended the City Council approve it as well.    

 

Note:  A traffic study was completed and turn lanes will be required, however the Commission felt 

the on-site improvements could be approved at this time so as not to delay the project timeline.  A 

separate resolution will need to approve future improvements for the project with regard to the (off-

site) street improvements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1885 / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



LBrick
Typewritten Text

LBrick
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A

LBrick
Typewritten Text

LBrick
Typewritten Text

LBrick
Typewritten Text



GENERAL NOTES

1. ALL CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC OR PRIVATE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH IOWA STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS),

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE DRAWINGS.

2. ALL DIMENSION ARE TO BACK OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. THE LOCATIONS OF UTILITY MAINS, STRUCTURES, AND SERVICE CONNECTIONS PLOTTED ON THIS DRAWING ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY AND

WERE OBTAINED FROM RECORDS MADE AVAILABLE TO SHIVE-HATTERY, INC.  THERE MAY BE OTHER EXISTING UTILITY MAINS, STRUCTURES

AND SERVICE CONNECTIONS NOT KNOWN TO SHIVE-HATTERY, INC. AND NOT SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.  THE VERIFICATION OF EXISTENCE

OF, AND THE DETERMINATION OF THE EXACT LOCATION OF, UTILITY MAINS, STRUCTURES AND SERVICE CONNECTIONS SHALL BE THE

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR(S).

4. NOTIFY UTILITY COMPANIES WHOSE FACILITIES ARE SHOWN ON THE PLANS OR KNOWN TO BE WITHIN CONSTRUCTION LIMITS OF THE

SCHEDULE PRIOR TO EACH STAGE OF CONSTRUCTION. NOTIFY THE APPROPRIATE PRIVATE UTILITY A MINIMUM OF 48 HOURS PRIOR TO

BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION ON ANY FACILITIES OWNED OR OPERATED BY THAT UTILITY.

5. PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, COORDINATES, ELEVATIONS, AND UTILITIES AT CRITICAL

LOCATIONS TO VERIFY EXACT HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL LOCATIONS. IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES SO THE

CONFLICT MAY BE RESOLVED.

6. ALL UTILITY CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING LINES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RULES AND REGULATIONS AND TO THE

SATISFACTION OF THE APPLICABLE UTILITY OWNER(S).

7. IOWA CODE 480, UNDERGROUND FACILITIES INFORMATION, REQUIRES VERBAL NOTICE TO IOWA ONE-CALL 1-800-292-8989, NOT LESS THAN 48

HOURS BEFORE EXCAVATING, EXCLUDING WEEKENDS AND HOLIDAYS.

8. NOTIFY THE APPROPRIATE GOVERNING AUTHORITY 48-72 HOURS PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY.  THE

CITY OF WEST BRANCH SHALL BE THE PUBLIC AGENCY RESPONSIBLE FOR INSPECTION DURING CONSTRUCTION OF THE PUBLIC PORTIONS

OF THE PROJECT.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH PRIVATE UTILITIES REGARDING RELOCATION, ADJUSTMENT, OR TEMPORARY SUPPORT OF THEIR

FACILITIES.

10. THE MEANS OF THE WORK AND THE SAFETY OF THE CONTRACTOR'S EMPLOYEES ARE SOLELY THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.

11. NO WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED BEYOND THE PROJECT LIMITS WITHOUT PRIOR AUTHORIZATION FROM THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

12. A PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING SHALL BE HELD FOLLOWING ISSUANCE OF THE NOTICE TO PROCEED BUT PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK.

13. THE SAFE AND ORDERLY PASSAGE OF TRAFFIC AND PEDESTRIANS SHALL BE PROVIDED WHERE CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS ABUT PUBLIC

THROUGH-FARES AND ADJACENT PROPERTY.

14. ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR SUB-CONTRACTORS SHALL BE RETURNED TO THE ORIGINAL CONDITION OR

BETTER, EXCEPT WHERE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION IS INDICATED ON THE PLANS.

15. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TRAFFIC AND PEDESTRIAN CONTROL MEASURES (SIGNS, BARRICADES, FLAGGERS, ETC.) IN COMPLIANCE WITH

THE MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (MUTCD) LATEST EDITION.

16. ALL CONSTRUCTION STAKING, SCHEDULING, AND PAYMENT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.

17. PROTECT ALL EXISTING FEATURES (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WALLS, TREES, LANDSCAPING, DRIVEWAYS, SIDEWALKS, CURBS,

PAVEMENT, UTILITIES, ETC.) NOT SPECIFICALLY NOTED FOR REMOVAL. FEATURES NOT DESIGNATED FOR REMOVAL THAT ARE DAMAGED OR

REMOVED BY THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REPLACED BY THE CONTRACTOR AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

18. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN POSITIVE DRAINAGE ON THE SITE THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION. ANY DAMAGE CAUSED BY A FAILURE TO

MAINTAIN POSITIVE DRAINAGE SHALL BE REPAIRED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

19. CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST ALL VALVES, MANHOLES, CASTINGS, GAS VENTS, ETC., TO MATCH THE NEW SURFACE.  ADJUSTMENT SHALL BE

COORDINATED WITH THE UTILITY COMPANIES AND THE COST FOR ALL ADJUSTMENTS SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO THE CONSTRUCTION.  AT NO

ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER, REPAIR ANY DAMAGE TO SAID STRUCTURES AND APPURTENANCES THAT OCCUR DURING CONSTRUCTION.

20. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO BUILDING PLANS FOR BUILDING DIMENSIONS, STOOP SIZES AND LOCATIONS, AND BUILDING UTILITY

ENTRANCE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS.

21. SITE CLEAN-UP SHALL BE PERFORMED ON A DAILY BASIS.  SIDEWALKS, PARKING LOTS, ROADWAYS, ETC. SHALL BE KEPT CLEAN AT ALL

TIMES.

22. KEEP ADJACENT PUBLIC STREETS AND IMPROVED LAND FREE FROM SOIL AND DEBRIS GENERATED BY THE PROJECT.

27. CONTROL DUST FROM ALL WORK AND STAGING AREAS.

28. ALL OPEN EXCAVATIONS SHALL BE PROTECTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS.

29. REPLACE ANY PROPERTY MONUMENTS REMOVED OR DESTROYED BY CONSTRUCTION.  MONUMENTS SHALL BE SET BY A LAND SURVEYOR

REGISTERED TO PRACTICE IN THE STATE OF IOWA.

30. CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES ARE TO BE LIMITED TO THE EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY, TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS, OR LIMITS OF

THE PROJECT AS INDICATED ON THE PLANS.  IF ADDITIONAL AREAS ARE NEEDED FOR STAGING, STORAGE, ETC., IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S

RESPONSIBILITY TO OBTAIN WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE PROPERTY OWNER(S).  COPIES OF THE AGREEMENTS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO

THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO THE USE OF PROPERTY.

31. ALL INSPECTIONS REQUIRED FOR PUBLIC OR PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE FACILITATED BY THE OWNER.

32. REPAIR OR REPLACE EXISTING FACILITIES (CURBS, PAVEMENT, UTILITIES, ETC.) TO REMAIN, AT NO ADDITIONAL EXPENSE TO THE OWNER.

33. IT IS INTENDED THAT ALL COSTS OF MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, TOOLS, LABOR, AND INCIDENTALS BE PAID FOR UNDER THE ITEMS LISTED ON

THE BIDDER'S PROPOSAL.  BEFORE SUBMITTING A BID ON THIS PROJECT, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL EXAMINE ALL DRAWINGS,

SPECIFICATIONS, SPECIAL PROVISIONS, AND THE JOB SITE.  IF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR DELETIONS OCCUR IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS,

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT SAME TO THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND SHIVE-HATTERY, INC. IN WRITING AND OBTAIN WRITTEN

CLARIFICATION AND/OR INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO PROCEED.

34. WORK WHICH DOES NOT CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CONTRACT WILL BE CONSIDERED UNACCEPTABLE.  UNACCEPTABLE

WORK, WHETHER THE RESULT OF POOR WORKMANSHIP, USE OF DEFECTIVE MATERIALS, DAMAGE THROUGH CARELESSNESS OR ANY OTHER

CAUSE, FOUND TO EXIST PRIOR TO THE FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE WORK, SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED IN AN ACCEPTABLE MANNER,

AS REQUIRED BY SHIVE-HATTERY, INC. AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.  WORK DONE CONTRARY TO THE INSTRUCTIONS OF

SHIVE-HATTERY, INC., WORK DONE BEYOND THE LINES SHOWN ON THE PLANS, OR ANY EXTRA WORK DONE WITHOUT AUTHORITY WILL NOT

BE PAID FOR.

35. A LIMITED NUMBER OF SUBSURFACE INVESTIGATIONS HAVE BEEN CONDUCTED ON THE SITE AND CAN BE FOUND IN THE GEOTECHNICAL

ENGINEERING REPORT PREPARED BY TERRACON PROJECT NUMBER 06205005.  IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO ASCERTAIN

SUBSURFACE INFORMATION THAT MAY AFFECT COSTS.  IF ADVERSE  SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS ARE ENCOUNTERED, THE CONTRACTOR

SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER REPRESENTATIVE IMMEDIATELY.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE AND ACQUAINT HIM/HERSELF WITH ALL

EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO BIDDING/CONSTRUCTION.  POTENTIAL CONTRACTORS MAY MAKE A SUBSURFACE INVESTIGATION TO

SATISFY THEMSELVES AS TO SITE AND SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS.  ANY INVESTIGATION SHALL BE CLEARED THROUGH THE OWNER PRIOR TO

COMMENCEMENT.  A JOINT UTILITY MEETING AND LOCATE WILL BE REQUIRED PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION OPERATIONS.

SITE PREPARATION NOTES

1. PROVIDE WASTE AREAS OR DISPOSAL SITES FOR EXCESS MATERIAL (EXCAVATED MATERIAL OR BROKEN CONCRETE) WHICH IS NOT

DESIRABLE TO BE INCORPORATED INTO THE WORK INVOLVED ON THIS PROJECT.  NO PAYMENT FOR OVERHAUL WILL BE ALLOWED FOR

MATERIAL HAULED TO THESE SITES.  NO MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED WITHIN THE EASEMENTS, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY STATED IN THE PLANS

OR APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.  DISPOSAL SITES MUST BE APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.  CONTRACTOR SHALL APPLY NECESSARY

MOISTURE TO THE CONSTRUCTION AREA AND TEMPORARY HAUL ROADS TO PREVENT THE SPREAD OF DUST.  OFF-SITE DISPOSAL SHALL BE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS.

2. WHERE A SECTION OF PAVEMENT, CURB AND GUTTER, OR SIDEWALK IS CUT OR OTHERWISE DAMAGED BY THE CONTRACTOR, THE ENTIRE

SECTION SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED.  PAVEMENT, CURBS, GUTTERS, AND SIDEWALKS SHALL BE REMOVED A MINIMUM OF TWO FEET

BEYOND THE EDGE OF THE TRENCH CUT AND TO THE NEAREST JOINT.

3. DOUBLE SAWCUT EDGES OF PAVEMENT FULL DEPTH PRIOR TO REMOVAL TO PREVENT DAMAGE TO ADJACENT SLABS AND FIXTURES.

4. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO PROTECT ALL TREES AND SHRUBS IN PROJECT AREA FROM DAMAGE DUE TO

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY UNLESS SHOWN ON THE PLANS OR DIRECTED BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

5. REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF EXISTING TREES AND SHRUBS WITHIN CONSTRUCTION LIMITS SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO THE GRADING PORTION

OF THE PROJECT.  STUMPS ARE TO BE GROUND TO TWO FEET BELOW FINISHED GRADE. TREES THAT QUALIFY FOR ENDANGERED BAT

HABITAT ARE TO BE FELLED BETWEEN OCTOBER 1ST AND MARCH 31ST.

6. ALL FENCES WHICH ARE IMPACTED BY THIS PROJECT ARE TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED TO AN EQUAL OR BETTER CONDITION.  SALVAGED

MATERIALS MAY BE USED UPON APPROVAL OF THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.  FENCES SHALL NOT BE REMOVED UNTIL PROPERTY OWNER

HAS BEEN NOTIFIED. TEMPORARY FENCING MAY BE REQUIRED OVERNIGHT DURING CONSTRUCTION AND SHOULD BE INCIDENTAL TO THE

PROJECT.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY DEMOLITION PERMITS AND COORDINATE ALL DEMOLITION WORK WITH THE MUNICIPALITY AND

OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE TO ENSURE PROTECTION AND MAINTENANCE OF EXISTING SITE FEATURES NOT NOTED FOR REMOVAL.

8. ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES AND DEVICES SHALL BE INSTALLED AND FUNCTIONAL BEFORE THE SITE IS

OTHERWISE DISTURBED. THEY SHALL BE KEPT OPERATIONAL AND MAINTAINED CONTINUOUSLY THROUGHOUT THE PERIOD OF LAND

DISTURBANCE UNTIL PERMANENT SITE STABILIZATION HAS BEEN ACHIEVED (SEE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND DETAILS).

9. THE PURPOSE OF THIS DRAWING IS TO CONVEY THE OVERALL SCOPE OF DEMOLITION WORK AND IT IS NOT INTENDED TO COVER ALL DETAILS

OR SPECIFICATIONS REQUIRED TO COMPLY WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED DEMOLITION PRACTICES. CONTRACTOR SHALL THOROUGHLY

FAMILIARIZE THEMSELVES WITH THE SITE, SCOPE OF WORK, AND ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AT THE JOB SITE PRIOR TO BIDDING AND

COMMENCING THE WORK. THE DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES, OR

PROCEDURES USED TO COMPLETE THE WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND IS LIABLE FOR THE SAFETY OF

THE PUBLIC AND CONTRACTOR'S EMPLOYEES DURING THE COURSE OF THE PROJECT.

10. THE DEMOLITION PLAN IS INTENDED TO SHOW REMOVAL OF KNOWN SITE FEATURES AND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY PROVIDED TO

THE ENGINEER FOR DESIGN. THERE MAY BE OTHER SITE FEATURES, UTILITIES, STRUCTURES, AND MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS BOTH BURIED AND

ABOVE GROUND THAT ARE WITHIN THE LIMITS OF WORK THAT MAY REQUIRE REMOVAL FOR THE PROPOSED SITE IMPROVEMENTS BUT THAT

ARE NOT SHOWN HEREIN. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REMOVAL OF SUCH ITEMS AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

11. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE RESPECTIVE UTILITY COMPANIES PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY SITE DEMOLITION OPERATIONS TO

COORDINATE DISCONNECTION AND REMOVAL OF EXISTING UTILITIES WITHIN THE PROPOSED AREA OF WORK.

12. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ANY SHUT DOWNS OF EXISTING ROADWAYS AND UTILITIES WITH THE NECESSARY GOVERNING

AUTHORITIES.

13. ALL EXISTING BUILDINGS, FOUNDATIONS, CONCRETE OR ASPHALT PAVEMENT OR WALKS, CURB AND GUTTER, AND MISCELLANEOUS

STRUCTURES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO FENCES, POLES, YARD LIGHTS, ELECTRICAL PANELS, WHEEL STOPS, AND MISCELLANEOUS

DEBRIS) NOTED TO BE REMOVED SHALL BE DEMOLISHED, REMOVED FROM THE SITE, AND LEGALLY DISPOSED OF BY THE CONTRACTOR.

14. VOIDS LEFT BY ANY ITEM REMOVED UNDER ANY PROPOSED BUILDINGS, PAVEMENTS, OR WALKS OR WITHIN 24 INCHES THEREOF SHALL BE

BACKFILLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUDAS SPECIFICATION AND THE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS AND GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING REPORT.

15. AS SOON AS DEMOLITION WORK HAS BEEN COMPLETED, FINAL GRADE OF BACKFILL IN DEMOLITION AREAS SHALL BE COMPACTED PER

SUDAS SPECIFICATIONS AND THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING REPORT TO PRESENT A NEAT, WELL DRAINED APPEARANCE, AND TO

PREVENT WATER FROM DRAINING UNNECESSARILY ONTO ADJACENT PROPERTIES. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY DIVERSION

SWALES OR OTHER MEANS OF MAINTAINING ADEQUATE SITE DRAINAGE.

16. CONTRACTOR SHALL UTILIZE CARE WHEN WORKING NEAR EXISTING UTILITIES TO REMAIN. ANY DAMAGE TO EXISTING UTILITIES NOT NOTED

TO BE REMOVED SHALL BE REPAIRED AT CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE AND TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE OWNER AND/OR ENGINEER.

17. ALL FIRE ACCESS LANES WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA SHALL REMAIN IN SERVICE, CLEAN OF DEBRIS, AND ACCESSIBLE FOR USE BY

EMERGENCY VEHICLES.

18. ALL EXISTING SANITARY SEWERS, STORM SEWERS, WATER MAINS OR IRRIGATION LINES AND APPURTENANCES NOTED FOR REMOVAL WITHIN

THE AREA OF THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE AND DISPOSED OF BY THE CONTRACTOR. ALL

ABANDONED SEWER LINES SHALL BE PLUGGED AT BOTH ENDS WITH A MINIMUM OF TWO (2) FEET LONG NON-SHRINK CONCRETE MORTAR

PLUGS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

19. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE ENGINEER IF A FIELD OR DRAIN TILE IS ENCOUNTERED AND SHALL INDICATE THE METHOD OF

RESOLVING THE CONFLICT.  THE ENGINEER SHALL APPROVE THE PROPOSED METHOD. A RECORD OF THE LOCATION OF ALL FIELD TILE OR

DRAIN PIPE ENCOUNTERED SHALL BE KEPT BY THE CONTRACTOR AND TURNED OVER TO THE OWNER AND/OR ENGINEER UPON COMPLETION

OF THE PROJECT AND ACCURATELY SHOWN ON THE RECORD DRAWINGS. EXISTING FIELD TILE LINES ENCOUNTERED IN THIS PROJECT SHALL

BE REPAIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING WAYS:

19.1. CONNECT TILE TO THE NEAREST STORM SEWER.

19.2. DAYLIGHT TO FINISHED GROUND.

19.3. REPAIR TILE AND MAINTAIN SERVICE.

GRADING NOTES

1. NO ROCK EXCAVATION IS ANTICIPATED ON THIS PROJECT, SHOULD ROCK BE ENCOUNTERED DURING CONSTRUCTION, NOTIFY THE OWNER'S

REPRESENTATIVE.

2. STRIP EXISTING VEGETATION WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS AND AREAS TO RECEIVE FILL. HAUL OFF SITE BY CONTRACTOR.

3. STRIP EXISTING TOPSOIL WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS AND AREAS TO RECEIVE FILL.  STOCKPILE TOPSOIL FOR REUSE. EXCESS TOPSOIL MAY

BE STOCKPILED ON SITE AT A LOCATION APPROVED BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

4. PROOFROLL ALL FILL AREAS TO IDENTIFY SOFT OR DISTURBED AREAS IN THE SUBGRADE.  ALL UNSUITABLE MATERIAL IDENTIFIED SHALL BE

REMOVED AND REPLACED WITH STRUCTURAL FILL AND RECOMPACTED TO 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY.  PROOFROLL WITH 25 TON

MINIMUM GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT.

5. REMOVE AND RECOMPACT AREAS OF SUBGRADE WHICH ARE SOFT OR UNSTABLE TO MEET SPECIFIED LIMITS FOR DENSITY AND MOISTURE

CONTENT. PAVED AREAS TO BE COMPACTED TO 95%.

6. SCARIFY AND RECOMPACT THE TOP 12 INCHES OF SUBGRADE IN ALL CUT AREAS AFTER ROUGH GRADING IS COMPLETED.  COMPACT THE

ENTIRE PAVING SUBGRADE TO 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY TO WITHIN 12 INCHES OF FINAL SUBGRADE.  THE FINAL 12 INCHES OF

FILL TO BE COMPACTED TO 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY (ASTM D698).

7. DO NOT PLACE, SPREAD, OR COMPACT ANY FILL MATERIAL DURING UNFAVORABLE WEATHER CONDITIONS AND DO NOT RESUME

COMPACTION OPERATIONS UNTIL MOISTURE CONTENT AND DENSITY OF IN-PLACE FILL MATERIAL ARE WITHIN SPECIFIED LIMITS.

8. PLACE FILL MATERIAL IN 8 INCH MAXIMUM LIFTS AND COMPACTED TO 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY IN PAVED AREAS AND 98%

STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY FOR BUILDING PAD.  FILL MATERIAL SHALL BE FREE FROM ORGANIC MATTER, DEBRIS, AND OTHER

DELETERIOUS SUBSTANCES.

9. FILLS PLACED BELOW LAWN AREAS SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 90% OF MATERIALS MAXIMUM STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY (ASTM D698).

10. FILL MATERIAL OBTAINED FROM OFF-SITE SOURCES SHALL BE SOIL OR SOIL AND ROCK MIXTURE FREE FROM ORGANIC MATTER AND OTHER

DELETERIOUS SUBSTANCES.  IT SHALL CONTAIN NO ROCKS OR LUMPS OF 6 INCHES IN GREATEST DIMENSION AND NOT MORE THAN 15% OF

THE ROCKS OR LUMPS SHALL BE LARGER THAN 2-1/2 INCHES IN GREATEST DIMENSION.

11. FILL PLACED WITHIN THE BUILDING AREA AND IN AREAS TO BE PAVED SHOULD CONSIST OF APPROVED MATERIALS WHICH ARE FREE OF

ORGANIC MATTER AND DEBRIS.  THE FILL SHOULD BE PLACED AND COMPACTED IN LIFTS OF 8 INCHES OR LESS IN LOOSE THICKNESS. THE

HIGHER DEGREE OF FILL COMPACTION BELOW FLOORINGS IN THE BUILDING AREAS SHOULD EXTEND LATERALLY BEYOND THE EXTERIOR

EDGES OF PERIMETER FOOTINGS AT LEAST 8 INCHES OUTSIDE OF BUILDING PERIMETER. REFERENCE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT AND

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER FOUNDATION DESIGN.

12. MAINTAIN OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT OF FILL MATERIALS TO ATTAIN REQUIRED COMPACTION DENSITY.  REFER TO THE GEOTECHNICAL

ENGINEERING REPORT FOR OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT RANGES FOR FILL MATERIALS.  PLACE FILL MATERIAL OF LOW PLASTICITY

COHESIVE SOILS WITHIN -2% TO +3% OF OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT.  FOR GRANULAR MATERIAL, THE ACCEPTABLE RANGE IS -3% TO +3%

OF OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT.

13. ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT PAVED OR HARD SURFACE ON THE SITE SHALL RECEIVE MINIMUM 6 INCHES OF TOPSOIL.  SCARIFY AREAS TO

RECEIVE TOPSOIL TO A DEPTH OF 3 INCHES.  REMOVE ALL STONES, WOOD AND OTHER DEBRIS LARGER THAN 2 INCHES FROM AREAS TO

RECEIVE TOPSOIL. DO NOT COMPACT TOPSOIL.

14. GRADING TOLERANCES: GRADE AREAS ADJACENT TO BUILDING LINES AND DRAIN AWAY FROM STRUCTURES TO PREVENT PONDING. FINISH

SURFACES FREE FROM IRREGULAR SURFACE CHANGES, AND AS FOLLOWS

14.1. UNPAVED AREAS NEAR BUILDINGS, PARKING AREAS AND SIDEWALKS: +/- 0.10 FEET

14.2. UNPAVED AREAS AWAY FROM BUILDINGS, PARKING AREAS AND SIDEWALKS: +/-0.15 FEET

14.3. GRADING SURFACES OF FILL UNDER BUILDING SLAB +0.04 FEET TO -0.10 FEET

14.4. SUBGRADE SURFACES: +/- 0.15 FEET

15. CONTRACTOR SHALL CAREFULLY PRESERVE ALL SITE BENCHMARKS AND REFERENCE POINTS DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS.

16. CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE POSITIVE DRAINAGE TO ALL STORM DRAINAGE STRUCTURES. AREAS OF SURFACE PONDING SHALL BE

CORRECTED BY THE CONTRACTOR AT NO ADDITIONAL EXPENSE TO THE OWNER.

17. MAXIMUM CROSS SLOPES AND LONGITUDINAL SLOPES FOR ALL CONCRETE SIDEWALKS AND ADA ACCESSIBLE ROUTES SHALL NOT EXCEED

2% AND 5%, RESPECTIVELY.

18. MAXIMUM SLOPES WITHIN THE ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING AREAS SHALL NOT EXCEED 2% IN ANY DIRECTION.

19. MAXIMUM GRADE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN PAVEMENT SURFACES AND ADJACENT CONCRETE SIDEWALKS FOR THE ACCESSIBLE ROUTE TO

THE BUILDING SHALL NOT EXCEED 1/4 INCH VERTICAL OR 1/2 INCH WHEN BEVELED.

20. ALL ADA ACCESSIBLE EXTERIOR DOORWAY LOCATIONS REQUIRE AN EXTERIOR LANDING THAT IS A MINIMUM OF FIVE (5) FEET IN LENGTH

WITH A SLOPE NOT EXCEEDING 2% IN ANY DIRECTION.

21. EXCAVATION SHORING SHALL BE DONE AS NECESSARY FOR THE PROTECTION OF THE WORK AND FOR THE SAFETY OF PERSONNEL.

SHORING SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL O.S.H.A AND LOCAL REGULATIONS.

22. ALL UNSUITABLE OR EXCESS MATERIAL SHALL BE DISPOSED OF LEGALLY OFFSITE OR AS DIRECTED BY THE PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE IN

THE FIELD.

23. EXCAVATED TOPSOIL SHALL BE STOCKPILED ON THE SITE IN AREAS  DESIGNATED BY THE PROJECT ENGINEER UNTIL SUCH TIME THAT THIS

TOPSOIL CAN BE USED FOR FINAL GRADING.

24. ALL TESTING, INSPECTION AND SUPERVISION OF SOIL QUALITY, UNSUITABLE SOIL REMOVAL AND ITS REPLACEMENT AND OTHER SOILS

RELATED OPERATIONS SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER.

25. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SMOOTH VERTICAL CURVES THROUGH THE HIGH AND LOW POINTS INDICATED BY SPOT ELEVATIONS ON THE

PLANS. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE UNIFORM SLOPES BETWEEN NEW AND EXISTING GRADES AND AVOID ANY RIDGES AND/OR

DEPRESSIONS.

26. ALL PROPOSED GRADING, PAVEMENT, APRONS, CURBS, WALKS, ETC. SHALL MATCH EXISTING GRADES FLUSH.

27. ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED TOP OF RIM ELEVATIONS FOR STORM, SANITARY, WATER AND OTHER UTILITY STRUCTURES SHALL BE

ADJUSTED TO MEET FINISHED GRADE WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS.

28. FINISH CONTOURS AND SPOT ELEVATIONS SHOWN ARE TO TOP OF PAVEMENT OR TO TOP OF TOPSOIL, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

UTILITY NOTES

1. ALL SEWERS AND DRAINS SHALL FOLLOW DIVISION 4 SUDAS SPECIFICATION SECTIONS.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REPAIRING ALL EXISTING UTILITIES DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION. IF GROUNDWATER

MONITORING WELLS ARE DAMAGED DURING THE PROJECT, THEY MUST BE REPAIRED BY A STATE CERTIFIED WELL CONTRACTOR.

3. VERIFY THE ELEVATION OF POSSIBLE CONFLICTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTING PROPOSED WATER MAINS, SANITARY SEWERS,

STORM SEWERS, ETC.  ANY CONFLICTS MUST IMMEDIATELY BE BROUGHT TO THE ENGINEER'S ATTENTION.

4. SITEWORK UTILITY CONTRACTOR TO EXTEND ALL PIPING TO WITHIN 5 FEET OF BUILDING AND CAPPED FOR CONNECTION BY BUILDING

UTILITY CONTRACTOR UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED.  COORDINATE ALL INVERT ELEVATIONS AND PIPING LOCATIONS WITH BUILDING

PLANS.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL EXCAVATE AND VERIFY IN FIELD ALL EXISTING UTILITY LOCATIONS, SIZES, CONDITIONS AND ELEVATIONS AT PROPOSED

POINTS OF CONNECTION PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY UNDERGROUND CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER AND

ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR CONFLICTS PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH CONSTRUCTION.

6. ADJUSTMENTS TO EXISTING UTILITY STRUCTURE MANHOLE RIM ELEVATIONS REQUIRE BARREL SECTIONS TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED

AS NEEDED TO ADJUST TO THE PROPOSED ELEVATION.  ONLY 12 INCHES OF RISERS WILL BE ALLOWED.  ALL MANHOLE CASTINGS EXTENDING

INTO PAVEMENT SHALL MATCH PAVEMENT ELEVATIONS WITH ADDITIONAL ADJUSTMENTS AS NECESSARY.

7. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE FRANCHISE UTILITIES.

8. SEE STRUCTURAL PLANS FOR FOUNDATION DRAIN DESIGN.

9. ALL PROPOSED CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING UTILITY STRUCTURES OR PIPING SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE GOVERNING

AUTHORITY REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTINUOUSLY MAINTAIN ALL EXISTING SEWER SYSTEMS DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS AS NECESSARY TO

PREVENT SILT OR DEBRIS ACCUMULATION.

11. THE CONTRACTOR WILL MAINTAIN A RECORD DRAWING SET WITH WITNESS DIMENSIONS TO ALL CONNECTIONS.  THESE DRAWINGS WILL BE

SUBMITTED TO THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

TRENCH, EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL NOTES

1. TRENCH, EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL SHALL SHALL FOLLOW DIVISION 3 SUDAS SPECIFICATION SECTIONS.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE PROVISIONS TO HANDLE WATER ENCOUNTERED DURING CONSTRUCTION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN

APPROVAL FROM THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE OF THE PROPOSED METHOD OF DEWATERING.

3. HDPE AND PVC STORM SEWER PIPE BEDDING SHALL BE SW-103 CLASS F-2, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON THE PLANS.

4. RCP STORM SEWER PIPE BEDDING SHALL BE SW-102 CLASS R-2, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON THE PLANS.

5. SANITARY SERVICE PIPE BEDDING SHALL BE SW-103 CLASS F-3, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON THE PLANS.

6. WATER PIPE BEDDING SHALL BE PER SW-104 CLASS P-1, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON THE PLANS OR DIRECTED BY THE LOCAL

MUNICIPALITY.

WATER NOTES

1. ALL WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NOTES IN THE PLANS AND THE STANDARDS,

SPECIFICATIONS, CODES AND ORDINANCES OF THE LOCAL GOVERNING AUTHORITIES. IN CASE OF CONFLICT, THE MORE STRINGENT CODE

SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE.

2. WATER PIPE AND STRUCTURES SHALL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUDAS DIVISION 5.

3. ALL WATER VALVES EXTENDING THROUGH PAVEMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH SLIDE TYPE VALVE BOXES AND SHALL MEET SUDAS

SPECIFICATION SECTION 5020.

4. ALL PROPOSED WATER SHALL FOLLOW PROPOSED GRADES WITH 5 FEET OF COVER, TYP. UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON PLANS.

5. WATER MAIN SHALL BE POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) PIPE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION (AWWA) STANDARD

C900 DR18 WITH PUSH-ON JOINTS CONFORMING TO ASTM C900, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

6. A WATERTIGHT PLUG SHALL BE PLACED IN THE END OF THE WATER MAIN PIPE AT THE END OF EACH CONSTRUCTION DAY.

7. UPON COMPLETION OF THE WATERMAIN CONSTRUCTION, ALL WATER MAIN SHALL BE TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING

MINIMUM STANDARDS:

7.1. HYDROSTATIC PRESSURE AND LEAKAGE TESTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND SHALL BE

WITNESSED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNING AUTHORITY.

7.2. DISINFECTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL REQUIREMENTS AND THE METHODS STATED IN AWWA STANDARD C651 AND WITNESSED

BY THE LOCAL GOVERNING AUTHORITY.

8. WATER SERVICE LINES 2 INCHES IN DIAMETER OR SMALLER SHALL BE TYPE 'K' COPPER TUBING CONFORMING TO ASTM B88-14. NO

COUPLINGS SHALL BE PERMITTED BETWEEN THE CORPORATION AND CURB STOPS OR BETWEEN THE CURB STOP AND THE BUILDING.

9. SERVICE BOXES SHALL BE OF SUFFICIENT LENGTH TO PERMIT THE TOP TO BE INSTALLED FLUSH WITH THE FINISHED GRADE. EACH SERVICE

BOX SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH A CAP WITH THE WORD "WATER" CAST IN THE TOP.

10. PRESSURE CONNECTIONS TO THE EXISTING WATER MAIN SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUDAS DIVISION 5

SPECIFICATIONS AND SHALL INCLUDE THE INSTALLATION OF A FULL STAINLESS STEEL TAPPING SLEEVE AND VALVE.

11. TEMPORARY CONNECTIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES TO NEWLY INSTALLED OR EXISTING WATER MAINS SHALL BE MADE AND

METERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL REQUIREMENTS.

12. BENDS, TEES, AND CROSSES ON 4 INCH AND GREATER WATER LINES SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH THRUST BLOCKING OR RESTRAINED JOINTS

PER SUDAS DIVISION 5 AND SUDAS CHAPTER 4.

STORM SEWER NOTES

1. STORM SEWER PIPE AND STRUCTURES SHALL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUDAS DIVISIONS 4 AND 6.

2. ALL STORM SEWER CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NOTES IN THE PLANS AND THE STANDARDS,

SPECIFICATIONS, CODES, AND ORDINANCES OF THE LOCAL GOVERNING AUTHORITIES. IN CASE OF CONFLICT, THE MORE STRINGENT CODE

SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE.

3. RCP STORM SEWER PIPE SHALL BE REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE, CLASS III, PER ASTM C76. ALL RCP STORM SEWERS 36 INCH DIAMETER AND

SMALLER SHALL HAVE TONGUE AND GROOVE JOINTS WRAPPED WITH ENGINEERING FABRIC. WHERE CROSSING WATER LINES, A RUBBER

O-RING OR PROFILE GASKET COMPLYING WITH ASTM C443 IS REQUIRED. ALL RCP STORM SEWER SHALL BE MARKED WITH THE DATE OF

MANUFACTURE AND ASTM CLASS, AND SHALL BE MANUFACTURED BY AN IDOT CERTIFIED FACILITY.. NO LIFT HOLES ARE ALLOWED IN RCP

STORM SEWERS. THE MINIMUM WALL THICKNESS FOR ALL RCP STORM SEWER SHALL BE B-WALL (AS DEFINED IN ASTM C76 AND ASTM C655).

4. HDPE STORM SEWER PIPE SHALL BE TYPE S CORRUGATED EXTERIOR AND SMOOTH INTERIOR HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE PIPE PER

AASHTO M294 WITH WATERTIGHT JOINTS CONFORMING TO ASTM D3212.

5. PVC STORM SEWER PIPE SHALL BE POLYVINYL CHLORIDE SDR 35 PIPE PER ASTM D3034 WITH WATERTIGHT JOINTS CONFORMING TO ASTM

D3212, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

6. REQUIRED STORM STRUCTURE RIM ADJUSTMENTS SHALL BE MADE WITH  ADJUSTING RINGS NOT TO EXCEED A MAXIMUM OF TWELVE (12)

INCHES IN OVERALL HEIGHT.  JOINTING MATERIAL  SHALL BE USED ON ALL JOINTS BETWEEN THE ELEMENTS PER SUDAS DIVISION 6.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONNECT ALL DRAINS INTO STORM INTAKES.  SUBDRAINS SHALL BE CAPPED INSIDE INTAKE WHERE SUBDRAIN IS

DRAINING AWAY.

SANITARY SEWER NOTES

1. ALL SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NOTES IN THE PLANS AND THE STANDARDS,

SPECIFICATIONS, CODES AND ORDINANCES OF THE LOCAL GOVERNING AUTHORITIES. IN CASE OF CONFLICT, THE MORE STRINGENT CODE

SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE.

2. ALL SANITARY SEWER PIPE AND STRUCTURES SHALL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUDAS DIVISION 4 AND 6.

3. ALL SANITARY SEWER PIPE SHALL BE POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) C900, SDR 35 PIPE PER ASTM D3034 WITH WATERTIGHT JOINTS

CONFORMING TO ASTM D3212, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. WHERE SANITARY SEWER PIPE IS NOTED AS PVC C900, THE PIPE SHALL BE IN

ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION (AWWA) C900 WITH WATERTIGHT, PRESSURE RATED JOINTS CONFORMING TO

ASTM D3139.

4. ALL SANITARY CLEANOUTS SHALL FOLLOW SUDAS SPECIFICATION SW-203.

5. SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMMENCE AT THE EXISTING MANHOLE(S) AND/OR CONNECTION POINT(S) INDICATED ON THE

PLANS.

6. A WATERTIGHT PLUG SHALL BE INSTALLED AND LEFT IN PLACE AT THE POINT OF COMMENCEMENT UNTIL THE REMAINDER OF THE PROPOSED

SEWERS HAVE BEEN CONSTRUCTED, PROPERLY TESTED AND DEEMED READY FOR FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

7. SANITARY SEWER MANHOLES SHALL BE PRECAST CONCRETE AND SHALL BE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DETAILS

IN THE PLANS.

8. A FLEXIBLE TYPE JOINT SHALL BE FURNISHED AT POINTS OF ENTRY INTO AND EXITING FROM MANHOLE STRUCTURES. THIS FLEXIBLE JOINT

MAY CONSIST OF A SLEEVE OF HIGH QUALITY SYNTHETIC RUBBER WITH A SUBSTANTIAL SERRATED FLANGE WHICH IS CAST DIRECTLY INTO

THE WALL OF THE MANHOLE BASE TO FORM A WATERTIGHT SEAL AND PROTRUDES OUTSIDE OF THE MANHOLE WALL TO CONNECT WITH THE

PIPE ENTERING/EXITING THE MANHOLE. WHEN THIS TYPE OF FLEXIBLE JOINT IS USED, THE SLEEVE SHALL SLIP OVER THE END OF THE PIPE

ADJACENT TO THE MANHOLE BASE AND SHALL BE SECURED BY MEANS OF A STAINLESS STEEL STRAP CLAMP EQUIPPED WITH A DRAW BOLT

AND NUT.

9. REQUIRED SANITARY STRUCTURE RIM ADJUSTMENTS SHALL BE MADE WITH  ADJUSTING RINGS NOT TO EXCEED A MAXIMUM OF TWELVE (12)

INCHES IN OVERALL HEIGHT.  JOINTING MATERIAL  SHALL BE USED ON ALL JOINTS BETWEEN THE ELEMENTS PER SUDAS DIVISION 6.

10. WHEN CONNECTING TO AN EXISTING SEWER MAIN BY MEANS OTHER THAN AN EXISTING WYE, TEE, OR MANHOLE, THE FOLLOWING METHOD

SHALL BE USED:

10.1. CIRCULAR SAW-CUT OF SEWER MAIN BY PROPER TOOLS ('SEWER-TAP' MACHINE OR SIMILAR) AND PROPER INSTALLATION OF

HUB-WYE SADDLE OR HUB-TEE SADDLE.

PAVEMENT GENERAL NOTES

1. ALL SLOPES IN PAVEMENT SHALL BE UNIFORM TO AVOID PONDING.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS TO BACK-OF-CURB UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

3. REMOVE AND REPLACE OR RESTORE ALL STREET SIGNS, PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SIDEWALK LAMPS, SIDEWALKS, STEPS, LANDSCAPE

STRUCTURES, CURB AND GUTTER, STREETS, DRIVES, AND ALL OTHER SURFACE STRUCTURES REMOVED OR OTHERWISE DAMAGED DURING

THE COURSE OF THE WORK.  SIDEWALKS SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED TO NEAREST JOINT BEYOND CONSTRUCTION AREA.

4. COMPACT SUBGRADE BENEATH PAVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GRADING NOTES.

5. MODIFIED SUBBASE FOR PAVEMENTS SHALL MEET THE LIMITS OF GRADUATION NO.14 IOWA DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR HIGHWAY

AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION SECTION 4123.

6. ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED PER SUDAS SECTION 7030.

7. ALL PCC PAVEMENT SHALL BE PROTECTED ACCORDING TO SUDAS SECTION 7010-3.04

PAVEMENT MARKING NOTES

1. PAINT PARKING STRIPING AND SIDEWALK CURBS TRAFFIC PER OWNER DIRECTION AND LOCAL CODES WHERE SHOWN ON PLANS.  MINIMUM

CURING TIME FOR PAVING SHALL BE 7 DAYS.

2. PAINT ADA SYMBOLS AND STRIPING PER LOCAL CODES WHERE SHOWN ON PLANS.

3. PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE FAST DRY TRAFFIC LANE MARKING PAINT CONFORMING TO IOWA DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR

HIGHWAY AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION, SECTION 4183.03. IF REQUIRED, REFLECTORIZED SPHERES FOR TRAFFIC PAINT

SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF IOWA DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR HIGHWAY AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION,

SECTION 4182.

4. PAINTING SHALL NOT BEGIN UNTIL PAVEMENT SURFACE HAS BEEN POWER BROOMED AND HAND SWEPT AS NECESSARY TO REMOVE LOOSE

MATERIALS AND DIRT; AND NOT BEFORE ADEQUATE CURING TIME HAS BEEN OBTAINED ON THE PAVEMENT.

5. APPLY PAINT AT MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDED RATES IN TWO SEPARATE COATS FOR ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS. ALL STRIPES ARE 4

INCHES WIDE UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. ADA SYMBOLS SHALL CONFORM TO APPLICABLE ADA REGULATIONS.

PCC PAVEMENT NOTES

1. CONCRETE SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 4000 PSI AT 28 DAYS WITH 6-1/2 PERCENT± 1/2% AIR ENTERTAINMENT AND

LIMESTONE AGGREGATE 1-1/2 INCH MAXIMUM SIZE.  PROVIDE CONTROL JOINTS 14' O/C MAXIMUM (7" PAVEMENT) OR 12' O/C MAXIMUM (6"

PAVEMENT) UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  INSTALL TYPE "KD" OR TYPE "LD" JOINTS AT 14' O/C MAXIMUM (7" PAVEMENT) OR 12' O/C MAXIMUM

(6" PAVEMENT) UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. MATERIALS AND CONSTRUCTION FOR PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENTS SHALL MEET

THE REQUIREMENT OF IOWA DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST REVISION, SECTION 2301.

THE PARAGRAPHS FOR MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT SHALL NOT APPLY.

2. CURBS SHALL BE CAST INTEGRAL WITH CONCRETE PAVEMENT UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  EDGES SHALL BE ROUNDED BUT NOT ROLLED.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE THE ENGINEER A PAVEMENT POURING DIAGRAM TO THE OWNER AND ENGINEER FOR APPROVAL PRIOR

TO PAVEMENT OPERATIONS.  DESIGN FILE AND ADDITIONAL PAVEMENT ELEVATIONS AT JOINTS CAN BE COORDINATED WITH ENGINEER TO

FACILITATE STAKING, LAYOUT, AND DESIGNED DRAINAGE PATTERNS UPON REQUEST.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE THE ENGINEER A FINAL PAVEMENT JOINTING PLAN FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL PRIOR TO

CONSTRUCTION.

5. ALL JOINT TYPES REFERRED TO IN THE FOLLOWING NOTES OR ELSEWHERE ON THE PLANS ARE DETAILED IN IOWA SUDAS STANDARD DETAIL

7010.101.

6. WHERE ACCESS DRIVES INTERSECT EACH OTHER OR WHERE ACCESS DRIVES INTERSECT PARKING AREAS, THE JOINTING PLAN SHALL BE

CONSTRUCTED PER IOWA SUDAS STANDARD DETAIL 7010.904.

7. PAVEMENT LONGITUDINAL JOINTS SHALL BE TYPE "KT-1" OR "L-1", TYP.

8. PAVEMENT TRANSVERSE JOINTS SHALL BE TYPE "C", TYP.

9. ALL JOINTS, INCLUDING "KT" OR "L" TYPE JOINTS, SHALL BE SEALED PER IOWA SUDAS STANDARD DETAIL 7010.101 DETAIL "A" AND IOWA

SUDAS STANDARD SPECIFICATION SECTION 3.02 K.

10. INSTALL 1 INCH EXPANSION JOINT AT ALL LOCATIONS WHERE PAVEMENT ABUTS A BUILDING, STOOP, OR BACK-OF-CURB.

SURFACE RESTORATION

1. ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT PAVED OR HARD SURFACE ON THE SITE SHALL RECEIVE 4 INCHES OF TOPSOIL. SCARIFY AREAS TO RECEIVE

TOPSOIL TO A DEPTH OF 3 INCHES. REMOVE ALL STONES, WOOD, AND OTHER DEBRIS LARGER THAN 2 INCHES FROM AREAS TO RECEIVE

TOPSOIL. DO NOT COMPACT TOPSOIL.

2. ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED, FERTILIZED, AND MULCHED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUDAS SPECIFICATION SECTION 9010. SPRING

SEEDING SHALL BE COMPLETED BETWEEN MARCH 1 AND MAY 31. FALL SEEDING SHALL BE COMPLETED BETWEEN AUGUST 10 AND

SEPTEMBER 30.

3. CONTRACTOR TO SUBMIT PROPOSED SUDAS SEED MIX, FERTILIZER, AND MULCH PRODUCTS FOR OWNER APPROVAL PRIOR TO APPLICATION.

4. ALL SEEDED AREAS SHALL BE MULCHED WITH HYDRAULIC MULCHES PER SUDAS SPECIFICATION SECTION 9010.2.07.B.

5. MAINTAIN ANY SEEDED AREAS UNTIL AND ADEQUATE STAND OF GRASS HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED. RESEED ANY AREAS AS NECESSARY

DURING MAINTENANCE PERIOD.

GENERAL SITE

EXISTING STRUCTURE

PLAN MARK DESCRIPTION

LEGEND

GUARD POST/ BOLLARD

MAILBOX

PARKING METER

HANDICAPPED PARKING

NAIL FOUND

SHRUB

DECIDUOUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE

SINGLE POLE SIGN

LEGEND

DOUBLE POLE SIGN

TRAFFIC SIGNAL WITH ARM

PLAN MARK

SURVEY

DESCRIPTION

BENCH MARK

LEGEND

IRON ROD - FOUND

IRON ROD - SET

SECTION CORNER FOUND

MONUMENT SET

RIGHT OF WAY MARKER

STATION MARKER

MONITORING WELL

X CUT SET

X CUT FOUND

FLOODLIGHT

UTILITIES

DESCRIPTIONPLAN MARK

HANDHOLE

SIGNAL BOX

LIGHT POLE OVERHANG

SIREN POLE

UTILITY POLE

LIGHT POST

FIRE HYDRANT

GUY ANCHOR

FLARED END SECTION

VALVE

UTILITY END CAP

POST INDICATOR VALVE

CLEANOUT

CABLE TV PEDESTAL

JUNCTION BOX

MANHOLE

DRAINAGE MANHOLE

ELECTRICAL MANHOLE

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

SANITARY MANHOLE

TELEPHONE MANHOLE

VAULT BOX

CURB INLET

INTAKE - CIRCLE

INTAKE - SQUARE

INTAKE - RECTANGLE

RA-5 INTAKE

RA-3 INTAKE

RA-8 INTAKE

SOIL BORING

GAS METER

ELECTRIC METER

TRANSFORMER

WATER METER

WIRE FENCE

X

WOOD FENCE

CHAINLINK FENCE

CONTROL POINT

621

620 MAJOR CONTOUR

MINOR CONTOUR

WATER MANHOLE

GUARD RAIL

RAILROAD

TREE LINE

AIR CONDITIONER

RECORD BEARING/DISTANCE

(00)

00
MEASURED BEARING/DISTANCE

POB
POINT OF BEGINNING

POR
POINT OF REFERENCE

FLAGPOLE

W

WATER IRRIGATION VALVE

WATER SHUTOFF VALVE

UTILITY POLE W/ TRANSFORMER

TRAFFIC SIGNAL

NAIL SET

UTILITY MARKER

RAILROAD CROSSING SIGNAL

YARD HYDRANT

FIRE DEPARTMENT VALVE

GAS REGULATOR

ROOF DOWNSPOUT

TRAFFIC MANHOLE

GENERAL SITE DESIGN

PLAN MARK DESCRIPTION

LEGEND

SLOPE ARROW

FLOW ARROW

G

U

T

C

TOP OF CURB AND GUTTER ELEVATION

SPOT ELEVATION

6

2

5

.

0

0

LEGEND

UTILITY LINES

EXISTING LINE TYPE DESCRIPTION

ELECTRIC - OVERHEAD

ELECTRIC - UNDERGROUND

GAS MAIN

WATER MAIN

SANITARY SEWER

STORM SEWER

TELEPHONE - OVERHEAD

TELEPHONE - UNDERGROUND

CABLE LINE - OVERHEAD

CABLE LINE - UNDERGROUND

FIBER OPTICS

PROCESS/HEATING STEAM

SILT FENCE

LIMITS

PROPOSED LINE TYPE

TRAFFIC FLOW

RIGHT-TURN ARROW

THRU ARROW

LEFT/ THRU ARROW

RIGHT/ THRU ARROW

LEFT-TURN ARROW

LEFT/ RIGHT/ THRU ARROW

2%

SANITARY FORCE MAIN

THE LOCATIONS OF UTILITY MAINS, STRUCTURES, AND SERVICE

CONNECTIONS PLOTTED ON THIS DRAWING ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY AND

WERE OBTAINED FROM RECORDS MADE AVAILABLE TO SHIVE-HATTERY,

INC.  THERE MAY BE OTHER EXISTING UTILITY MAINS, STRUCTURES, AND

SERVICE CONNECTIONS NOT KNOWN TO SHIVE-HATTERY, INC., AND NOT

SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

UTILITY NOTE

FIBER OPTIC BOX

Civil General Notes & Legends

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
REVIEW

C001

03/18/2020

3/18/2020 3:24:57 PM

Owner

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data,
notes and other documents and instruments prepared by
OPN Architects, Inc. as instruments of service shall remain
the property of OPN Architects, Inc.  OPN Architects, Inc.
shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved
rights, including the copyright thereto.

© 2019 OPN Architects, Inc.

A

19181716151413121110987654

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

PRIN
TED:

R

S

T

U

20 21 22 23 24 25

Project

Sheet Name

Key Plan

Shive - Hattery

222 Third Avenue SE, Ste. 300
Cedar Rapids, IA  52401
P. 319.364.0227
Contact: Nick Hatz

Civil Engineer

Raker Rhodes Engineering, LLC

112 E. Washington Street, Ste. B
Iowa City, IA 52240
P. 319.333.7850
Contact: Brad Hill

Structural Engineer

Modus Engineering

118 E. College St., Ste. 200
Iowa City, IA  52240
P. 319.248.4600
Contact: Tyler Luttenegger

Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing / Technology  Engineer

Schuler Shook

219 Main Street SE, Ste. 200
Minneapolis, MN  55414
P. 612.802.1536
Contact: Jody Kovalick

Theatre Planning and Lighting Design

24 1/2 S Clinton St., Suite 1
Iowa City, IA 52240
P:  319-248-5667
F:
www.opnarchitects.com

321

19181716151413121110987654 20 21 22 23 24 25321

Sheet NumberPRELIMINARY.  NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.

Sheet Issue Date

OPN Project No.

26

26

27

27

28

28

29

29

V

W

X

Y

Threshold Acoustics, LLC

141 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 2080
Chicago, IL  60804
P. 312.386.1400
Contact: Brandon Cudequest

Acoustic & Audio/Visual Design

WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL
ADDITION AND RENOVATION

19248000

West Branch Community School
District

Revision Description Date
SITE PLAN SHEET LIST

Sheet Number Sheet Title

C001

Civil General Notes & Legends

C002

2019 Existing Conditions & Topographic Survey

CD01

Existing Conditions & Demolition Plan

C101 Site Plan

C201

Grading & Drainage Plan

C251 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan

C301

Utility Plan

C302 Storm Sewer Plan

L101 Overall Site Plan

L151

Site Plan Enlargements

L301 Site Details

A200 Exterior Views

A201

Exterior Elevations - Composite

ME006 MEP Photometric Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIV

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB



NOTE: THIS SHEET IS FOR REFERENCE ONLY FOR THE

EXISTING CONDITIONS AND UTILITIES LOCATED ON SITE

AT THE TIME OF TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY.

2019 Existing Conditions &
Topographic Survey

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
REVIEW

C002

03/18/2020

3/18/2020 3:25:57 PM

Owner

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data,
notes and other documents and instruments prepared by
OPN Architects, Inc. as instruments of service shall remain
the property of OPN Architects, Inc.  OPN Architects, Inc.
shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved
rights, including the copyright thereto.

© 2019 OPN Architects, Inc.

A

19181716151413121110987654

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

PRIN
TED:

R

S

T

U

20 21 22 23 24 25

Project

Sheet Name

Key Plan

Shive - Hattery

222 Third Avenue SE, Ste. 300
Cedar Rapids, IA  52401
P. 319.364.0227
Contact: Nick Hatz

Civil Engineer

Raker Rhodes Engineering, LLC

112 E. Washington Street, Ste. B
Iowa City, IA 52240
P. 319.333.7850
Contact: Brad Hill

Structural Engineer

Modus Engineering

118 E. College St., Ste. 200
Iowa City, IA  52240
P. 319.248.4600
Contact: Tyler Luttenegger

Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing / Technology  Engineer

Schuler Shook

219 Main Street SE, Ste. 200
Minneapolis, MN  55414
P. 612.802.1536
Contact: Jody Kovalick

Theatre Planning and Lighting Design

24 1/2 S Clinton St., Suite 1
Iowa City, IA 52240
P:  319-248-5667
F:
www.opnarchitects.com

321

19181716151413121110987654 20 21 22 23 24 25321

Sheet NumberPRELIMINARY.  NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.

Sheet Issue Date

OPN Project No.

26

26

27

27

28

28

29

29

V

W

X

Y

Threshold Acoustics, LLC

141 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 2080
Chicago, IL  60804
P. 312.386.1400
Contact: Brandon Cudequest

Acoustic & Audio/Visual Design

WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL
ADDITION AND RENOVATION

West Branch Community School
District

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-BARB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-BLRD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-WETL-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-WETL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-SLOP-STEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-SLOP-PROT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-SLOP-CRIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-SLOP-BUFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-SLOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-FWAY-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-FWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-500Y-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-500Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-100Y-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-100Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WATR-CNTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WALL-WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WALL-ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WALL-CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WALL-BLCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-ROCK-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-POND-SPWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-POND-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-LSCP-TLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-LSCP-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-LSCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-LSCP-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FURN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-VYNL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-GRDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-CNST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-CLNK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WATR-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LINETYPES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SENSITIVE AREAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STEM-HPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STEM-COND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-SSWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-SSWR-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-SSWR-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-SSWR-FORC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-NGAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-NGAS-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-NGAS-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-FIBR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-FIBR-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-FIBR-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-ELEC-UNDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-ELEC-OVHD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-ELEC-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-ELEC-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-COMM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-COMM-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-COMM-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-CHIL-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-CHIL-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-CHIL-SPLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-CHIL-RTRN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WELL-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WELL-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WATR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WATR-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WATR-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STRM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STRM-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STRM-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STEM-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STEM-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STEM-LPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-TRFC-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-TRFC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-GEOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-GEOT-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTHERMAL TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATURAL GAS TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNICATION TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHILLED WATER TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEAM TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-MRKG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-GRVL-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-GRVL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-CURB-GUTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-CURB-BACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-CONC-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-CNTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-ASPH-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-ASPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BRDG-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BRDG-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BRDG-CNTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BRDG-ABUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BRDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG-PRCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG-OVHD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG-DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-RAIL-TRAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-RAIL-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-RAIL-SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-RAIL-CNTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK-DOME-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK-DOME

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK-RAMP-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-JT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-PBLK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-PAVR



7

6

0

7
6
5

7

5

8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7

6

2

7
6
2

7
6
2

7
6
2

7

6

2

7
6
3

7
6
3

7
6
3

7

6

4

7
6
6

7
6
7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7
6
5

7

6

3

7
6
3

7

6

4

7
6
6

7
6
7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7
6
5

7
7
0

7
7
0

7
6
6

7
6
7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7

6

9

7
6
5

7
7
0

7

7

0

7

6

4

7

6

4

7
6
6

7

6

7

7

6

8

7

6

9

7
7
1

7

7

1

7
7
2

7
7
2

7

7

1

7

7

2

7

7

0

7
6
6

7

6

7

7

6

8

7

6

9

7

7

1

7

7

2

7

7

3

7

6

5

7

7

0

7

7

0

7

6

6

7

6

6

7

6

7

7

6

7

7
6
8

7

6

8

7

6

9

7
6
9

7

7

1

7
7
1

7
7
2

7

7

2

7

7

3

7
7
3

7
7
0

7

7

0

7

6

7

7

6

7

7
6
8

7

6

8

7
6
9

7

6

9

7
7
1

7

7

1

7
7
2

7

7

2

7
7
3

7

7

3

7

5

0

7

5

5

7

6

0

765

7
7
0

7

4

7

7

4

8

7

4

9

7

5

1

7

5

2

7

5

3

7

5

4

7

5

6

7

5

7

7

5

8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7
6
2

7

6

3

7

6

4

766

767

768

7
6
9

7
7
1

7
7
2

7
7
3

7

4

0

7

4

5

7
5
0

7
5
5

760

7
6
5

7

4

1

7

4

2

7

4

3

7
4
4

7
4
6

7

4

7

7

4

8

7

4

8

7
4
9

7
5
1

7
5
2

7
5
3

7
5
4

7
5
6

7
5
7

7
5
8

7
5
9

761

7
6
2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

6

7

6

5

7
6
6

7
6
7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7

6

0

7

6

5

7
7
0

7
7
0

7

5

6

756

7

5

7

7
5
8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

6

7

6

7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7
6
9

7
4
5

7
5
0

7
5
5

7
6
0

7

4

2

7

4

2

7
4
3

7

4

3

7

4

4

7
4
6

747

7

4

8

7

4

8

7

4

8

7
4
9

7
5
1

7
5
2

7
5
3

7
5
4

7
5
6

7
5
7

7
5
8

7
5
9

7
6
1

7
6
2

7
6
3

7
5
0

7
4
6

7
4
6

7
4
7

7

4

7

7
4
8

7
4
9

7
5
1

7

5

0

7
5
5

7

6

0

7

6

5

7

5

1

7

5

2

7

5

3

7

5

4

7
5
6

7
5
7

7
5
8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

6

7

6

7

7
6
8

7

4

0

7

4

5

7

5

0

750

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

9

7

4

1

7

4

2

7

4

3

7

4

4

7

4

6

7

4

7

7
4
8

7
4
9

7

5

1

751

7
3
0

7

3

5

7

4

0

7

4

5

7

3

1

732

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

8

7

3

9

7

4

1

7

4

2

7

4

3

7

4

4

W. MAIN STREET

DA
W

SO
N

 D
RI

VE

MAINTAIN TWO WAY TRAFFIC AT

ALL TIMES. REFER TO SUDAS

STANDARD SPECIFICATION

8030.102 FOR WORK OFF OF

PAVEMENT WITH MINOR

ENCROACHMENT INTO TRAVELED

WAY.

DEMOLISH CONCRETE

ISLAND, TYP.

REMOVE EXIST.

LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

REMOVE EXIST. SIGN &

RETURN TO OWNER, TYP.

REMOVE FOUR (4) EXIST. SIGNS

& RETURN TO OWNER, TYP.

REMOVE FOUR (4)

EXIST. SIGNS &

RETURN TO

OWNER, TYP.

DEMOLISH CONCRETE

ISLAND, TYP.

DEMOLISH

LANDSCAPE

ISLAND, TYP.

REMOVE & RELOCATE

FIRE HYDRANT &

VALVE, TYP.

DEMOLISH CONCRETE

SIDEWALK, TYP.

DEMOLISH LANDSCAPE

ISLAND, TYP.

REMOVE FOUR (4)

EXIST. SIGNS &

RETURN TO

OWNER, TYP.

REMOVE EXIST.

LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

REMOVE ELECTRICAL

BOXES, TYP. SEE E

SERIES FOR DETAILS.

REMOVE EXIST. SIGN &

RETURN TO OWNER, TYP.

REMOVE CLEANOUTS, TYP.

REMOVE EXIST.

LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

REMOVE TREES & LANDSCAPING. COORDINATE

REPLANTING OR DISPOSAL WITH OWNER, TYP.

REMOVE FOUR (4)  BOLLARDS

& RETURN TO OWNER, TYP.

DEMOLISH 22 LF OF

CONCRETE RETAINING

WALL, TYP. APPROX. 3' TALL.

DEMOLISH 62 LF OF

CONCRETE RETAINING

WALL, TYP. APPROX. 3' TALL.

REMOVE TWO (2) EXIST.

SIGNS, ONE (1) MAILBOX,

& ONE (1) FLAGPOLE &

RETURN TO OWNER, TYP.

REMOVE ELECTRICAL BOX, TYP.

REMOVE STORM INTAKE &

PIPE. CONTRACTOR TO

VERIFY SIZE & LOCATION

BEFORE REMOVAL, TYP.

REMOVE EXIST.

LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

SEE E SERIES

FOR DETAILS.

REMOVE EXIST.

LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

SEE E SERIES

FOR DETAILS.

DEMOLISH LANDSCAPE

ISLAND, TYP.

REMOVE & RELOCATE MECHANICAL PADS &

EQUIPMENT. SEE MECHANICAL SHEETS, TYP.

DEMOLISH CONCRETE RETAINING

WALL, TYP. APPROX 1' TALL.

DEMOLISH LANDSCAPE

ISLAND, TYP.

REMOVE & RELOCATE

FIRE HYDRANT &

VALVE, TYP.

GRIND DOWN 238 LF OF

CONCRETE CURB TO BE

FLUSH WITH EXIST.

PAVEMENT, TYP.

REMOVE, SALVAGE, &

REINSTALL 424 LF OF

CHAINLINK FENCE

REMOVE EXIST.

LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

SEE E SERIES

FOR DETAILS.

REMOVE

ELECTRICAL

CONDUIT, TYP.

SEE E SERIES

FOR DETAILS.

REMOVE STORM INTAKE &

PIPE. CONTRACTOR TO

VERIFY SIZE & LOCATION

BEFORE REMOVAL, TYP.

REMOVE

ELECTRICAL

CONDUIT, TYP.

SEE E SERIES

FOR DETAILS.

DEMOLISH CONCRETE

SIDEWALK, TYP.

REMOVE

ELECTRICAL

CONDUIT, TYP.

SEE E SERIES

FOR DETAILS.

REMOVE EXIST.

LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

SEE E SERIES

FOR DETAILS.

REMOVE TWO (2) EXIST. SIGNS

& RETURN TO OWNER, TYP.

REMOVE EXIST. SIGN &

RETURN TO OWNER, TYP.

REMOVE & RELOCATE

APRON, TYP. SEE C302.

DEMOLISH 34 LF

CONCRETE

RETAINING WALL, TYP.

APPROX. 4' TALL.

REMOVE 385 LF OF

8" WATER LINE, TYP.

REMOVE 8" WATER

LINE, TYP.

REMOVE 4" SANITARY SEWER, TYP.

REMOVE 400 LF OF 6"

PCC CURB AND

GUTTER, TYP.

REMOVE 280 LF OF 6"

PCC CURB AND

GUTTER, TYP.

REMOVE 70 LF OF 6"

PCC CURB AND

GUTTER, TYP.

REMOVE 216 LF OF 6" PCC

CURB AND GUTTER, TYP.

REMOVE SHRUB. REFER TO L SERIES

FOR REPLANTING OR DISPOSAL, TYP.

REMOVE AND RELOCATE

EROSION STONE.

REMOVE POST.

REMOVE, SALVAGE, &

REINSTALL SIGNS, TYP.

REMOVE LANDSCAPING, TYP.

SEE L SERIES FOR DETAILS.

REMOVE STORM

PIPE, TYP.

REMOVE RIP RAP &

RELOCATE DOWNSTREAM

FOR STABILIZATION.

POWER POLE TO BE PROTECTED.

POWER POLE TO BE PROTECTED.

PROTECT WATER LINE AND VALVE.

PROTECT GAS LINE.

SANITARY MANHOLE TO BE

RAISED TO FINISHED GRADE

(APPROXIMATELY 2.5' FEET) SEE

C301 FOR DETAILS.

REMOVE 8"

WATER

LINE, TYP.

PROTECT

STORM INTAKE,

SEE C302 FOR

MODIFICATIONS.

PROTECT

STORM INTAKE,

SEE C302 FOR

MODIFICATIONS.

PROTECT SANITARY MANHOLE.

SEE C301 FOR MODIFICATIONS.

REMOVE EXIST.

LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

SEE E SERIES

FOR DETAILS.

REMOVE EXIST.

LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

SEE E SERIES

FOR DETAILS.

REMOVE EXIST.

LIGHTPOLE, TYP.

SEE E SERIES

FOR DETAILS.

BEGIN FENCE REMOVAL

END FENCE REMOVAL

652 LF OF SAWCUT

280 LF OF SAWCUT

SEE P SERIES FOR

SANITARY REMOVAL

3
9
.
8
'

1

8

.
4

'

2

8

.
6

'

2
9
.
3
'

2
2
.
4
'

9
.0

'

1
9
6
.
7
'

6
2
.
1
'

9
.6

'

3
7
.
7
'

2
0
.1

'

1
6
.5

'

2
1
.
3
'

8
0
.
9
'

1
8
7
.0

'

5
7
.
5
'

9
7
.5

'

1
2
5
.9

'

9
.
6
'

4

2

.

0

'

8
.
1
'

84" CULVERT TO BE MODIFIED.

SEE C302 FOR DETAILS.

EXISTING CONDITIONS & DEMOLITION PLAN NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR TO CONFIRM THE HORIZONTAL AND

VERTICAL LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES  AND

INFORM THE ENGINEER OF ANY POTENTIAL CONFLICTS

WITH PROPOSED UTILITIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

2. ALL UTILITIES AND PAVEMENT NOT SHOWN TO BE

REMOVED SHALL BE PROTECTED. IF DAMAGED, IT IS

THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO REPLACE

AND REPAIR.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH OWNER

PRIOR TO ANY SERVICE OR ACCESS DISRUPTIONS.

4. ADJUSTMENTS TO EXISTING MANHOLE RIM

ELEVATIONS REQUIRE BARREL SECTIONS TO BE

REMOVED AND REPLACED AS NEEDED TO ADJUST TO

THE PROPOSED ELEVATION.  ONLY 12" OF RISERS WILL

BE ALLOWED.  BOLT DOWN LIDS AND CASTINGS ARE

REQUIRED.

5. EXISTING LIGHTING, ELECTRICAL, AND

COMMUNICATION DEMOLITION AND MODIFICATION BY

ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR, SEE E-SHEETS.

PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

6. EXISTING EXTERIOR LIGHTING, BOLLARDS, SIGNAGE

AND SITE AMENITIES WITHIN SITE DISTURBANCE LIMITS

SHALL BE REMOVED AND SALVAGED TO OWNER,

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED FOR PROTECTION OR

DEMOLITION, TYP.

7. ALL PCC PAVEMENT AND SIDEWALK REMOVALS SHALL

BE SAW CUT FULL DEPTH REMOVED TO NEAREST

JOINT AND DISPOSED OFF-SITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH

APPLICABLE REGULATIONS.

LEGEND

ASSUME 7" ASPHALT FULL DEPTH

PAVEMENT REMOVAL LIMITS.

ASSUME 7" PCC FULL DEPTH

PAVEMENT REMOVAL LIMITS

OVER 6" GRANULAR

ASSUME 6" PCC SIDEWALK FULL

DEPTH REMOVAL LIMITS.

ASSUME 6" GRAVEL FULL DEPTH

REMOVAL LIMITS.

LANDSCAPING TURF REMOVAL

DOUBLE SAWCUT EXISTING

PAVEMENT EDGE FOR REMOVAL

TREE AND SHRUB REMOVAL.

INCLUDES STUMP REMOVAL

Existing Conditions &
Demolition Plan

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
REVIEW

CD01

03/18/2020

3/18/2020 3:26:18 PM

Owner

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data,
notes and other documents and instruments prepared by
OPN Architects, Inc. as instruments of service shall remain
the property of OPN Architects, Inc.  OPN Architects, Inc.
shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved
rights, including the copyright thereto.

© 2019 OPN Architects, Inc.

A

19181716151413121110987654

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

PRIN
TED:

R

S

T

U

20 21 22 23 24 25

Project

Sheet Name

Key Plan

Shive - Hattery

222 Third Avenue SE, Ste. 300
Cedar Rapids, IA  52401
P. 319.364.0227
Contact: Nick Hatz

Civil Engineer

Raker Rhodes Engineering, LLC

112 E. Washington Street, Ste. B
Iowa City, IA 52240
P. 319.333.7850
Contact: Brad Hill

Structural Engineer

Modus Engineering

118 E. College St., Ste. 200
Iowa City, IA  52240
P. 319.248.4600
Contact: Tyler Luttenegger

Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing / Technology  Engineer

Schuler Shook

219 Main Street SE, Ste. 200
Minneapolis, MN  55414
P. 612.802.1536
Contact: Jody Kovalick

Theatre Planning and Lighting Design

24 1/2 S Clinton St., Suite 1
Iowa City, IA 52240
P:  319-248-5667
F:
www.opnarchitects.com

321

19181716151413121110987654 20 21 22 23 24 25321

Sheet NumberPRELIMINARY.  NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.

Sheet Issue Date

OPN Project No.

26

26

27

27

28

28

29

29

V

W

X

Y

Threshold Acoustics, LLC

141 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 2080
Chicago, IL  60804
P. 312.386.1400
Contact: Brandon Cudequest

Acoustic & Audio/Visual Design

WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL
ADDITION AND RENOVATION

19248000

West Branch Community School
District

Revision Description Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM INTAKE FG 758.14 INV 18" RCP 753.69 W INV 18" RCP 753.59 E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM INTAKE FG 758.10 INV 18" RCP 755.40 E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM INTAKE FG 758.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM INTAKE FG 758.50 INV 12" HDPE 753.75 S INV 15" HDPE 753.65 N

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. SANITARY MANHOLE RIM 764.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BEEHIVE INTAKE RIM 765.76 INTAKE FILLED WITH SILT, UNABLE TO MEASURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM INTAKE FG 764.68 INV 6" PVC 762.03 S INV 12" HDPE 758.48 N

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM INTAKE FG 765.19 INV 6" PVC 762.09 S INV 12" HDPE 762.09 E INV 12" HDPE 761.59 W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. STORM INTAKE FG 764.95 INV 8" PVC 762.50 N INV 12" HDPE 762.40 W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM MANHOLE RIM 765.62 INV 6" PVC 759.82 NE INV 12" HDPE 758.32 S INV 12" HDPE 758.12 E INV 12" HDPE 756.62 N

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. SANITARY MANHOLE RIM 743.56 INV 8" PVC 736.86 S INV 8" PVC 736.76 NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE RIM 740.73 INV 8" PVC 734.78 SW INV 8" CLAY 734.78 W INV 8" CLAY 734.53 N GROUNDWATER INFILTRATION IN BOTTOM OF MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE RIM 746.99 INV 8" CLAY 741.79 N INV 8" CLAY 741.39 E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER VALVE PIT RIM 747.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BEEHIVE 6" INTAKE RIM 756.85 INV 754.16 E-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM BEEHIVE INTAKE RIM 753.30 INV 8" 750.65 NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BEEHIVE INTAKE RIM 758.47 INV 755.85 DIRECTION NOT VISIBLE FULL OF MULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BEEHIVE INTAKE RIM 762.39 INTAKE FILLED WITH SILT, UNABLE TO MEASURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY CLEANOUT RIM 773.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP INV 745.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HICKENBOTTOM INTAKE FG 750.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-WAY CLEANOUT RIM 765.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY CLEANOUT RIM 771.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY CLEANOUT RIM 772.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" INV 772.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" INV 748.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" FES INV 750.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" INV 756.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUAL 15" CMP INV S 744.89 INV N 744.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CULVERT INV W 745.22 INV E 743.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" INV 752.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" INV 745.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
84" RCP INV 729.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" HDPE INV 747.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" HDPE INV E 746.56 INV W 746.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. 12" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. 8" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. 8" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. 12" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60



BUILDING ADDITION

FFE = 766.0'

BUILDING ADDITION

FFE = 766.0'

WEST BRANCH

HIGH SCHOOL

W. MAIN STREET

DA
W

SO
N

 D
RI

VE

BUILDING ADDITION

FFE = 766.0'

BUILDING ADDITION

FFE = 766.0'

WEST BRANCH

HIGH SCHOOL

38

40

18

41

24

38

38

38

17

R

4

.

0

'

R

4

.

0

'

R

4

.
0

'

R

2

5

.

0

'

R

4

.

0

'

R

1

0

.
0

'

R

1

0

.

0

'

R

3

5

.

0

'

R

5

.

0

'

R

4

4

.

0

'

R

2

8

.

0

'

R

4

.

0

'

R

4

5

.

0

'

R

4

4

.

0

'

PROP. 7" PCC PARKING LOT EXTENSION.

SEE DTL. 1A/C111.

PROP. 7" PCC DRIVEWAY.

 SEE DTL. 1A/C111.

PROP. SPEED BUMP

PROP. PARKING LOT

RE-STRIPING, TYP.

SEE DTL. 1/C101.

PROP. 7" PCC

SEE DTL. 1A/C111.

PROP. DROP-OFF LANE.

PROP. ADA PARKING, TYP.

SEE DTL. 2/C101 & DTL. 3/C101.

PROP. TWO (2) ADA

PARKING SIGNS, TYP.

SEE DTL. 4/C101

PROP. 6" PCC SIDEWALK, TYP.

SEE DTL. 1B/C111.

PROP. CROSSWALK, TYP.

PROP. PARKING LOT

STRIPING, TYP.

SEE DTL. 1/C101.

PROP. ADA PARKING, TYP.

SEE DTL. 2/C101 & DTL. 3/C101.

PROP. SEVEN (7) ADA

PARKING SIGNS, TYP.

SEE DTL. 4/C101.

PROP. 6" PCC SIDEWALK, TYP.

SEE DTL. 1B/C111.

RELOCATED CHAIN

LINK FENCE, TYP.

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT, TYP.

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT, TYP.

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT, TYP.

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT, TYP.

PROP. FIRE

HYDRANT, TYP.

SEE C301.

RELOCATED CURB DROP.

PROP. MESIC BASIN

WITH BIOCELL.

SEE DTL. 1/C201.

PROP. 6" PCC SIDEWALK, TYP.

SEE DTL. 1B/C111.

PROP. ROOF CANOPY.

SEE A SERIES

PROP. SITE LIGHTING, TYP.

SEE E SERIES.

PROP. CROSSWALK, TYP.

PROP. ROOF CANOPY.

SEE A SERIES

PROP. 6" PCC SIDEWALK, TYP.

SEE DTL. 1B/C111.

PROP. TRAFFIC

STRIPING, TYP.

PROP. CROSSWALK, TYP.

2' DETECTABLE WARNING STRIP,

TYP. AS PER SUDAS STANDARD

SPECIFICATION 7030.21.

PROP. FIRE

HYDRANT, TYP.

SEE C301.

R

4

5

.

0

'

R

2

7

.

0

'

PROP. RETAINING WALL.

SEE L & S SERIES.

R

5

.

0

'

9
.
8
'

EXISTING 100-YEAR

FLOOD PLAIN

APPROXIMATE

PROPERTY LINE

APPROXIMATE

EXISTING ROW

PROP. SANITARY, TYP.

SEE C301

PROP. STORM SEWER, TYP.

SEE C302

PROP. WATER, TYP.

SEE C301

R

4

5

.

0

'

12.0
'

R

8

.

0

'

R

8

.

0

'

R

8

.
0

'

R

8

.

0

'

PROP. FLAG POLE

SEE L SERIES

PROP. STAIRS

SEE L SERIES

PROP. STAIRS

SEE L SERIES

PROP. STORM SEWER, TYP.

SEE C302

PROP. STORM SEWER, TYP.

SEE C302

8
.
0
'

1
4
.
0
'

1
2
.
8
'

1
2
.
1
'

8
.
0
'

1
2
.
0
'

1
8
.
3
'

9
.0

'

1
8
.
5
'

2
4
.0

'

1
8
.0

'

1
8
.0

'

2
4
.0

'

1
8
.0

'

1
8
.0

'

2
4
.0

'

1
8
.0

'

1
8
.0

'

2
4
.
0
'

1
8
.5

'

9
.
0
'

9
.
0
'

9
.
0
'

9
.
0
'

2
4
.
0
'

1
8
.
5
'

9
.0

'

2
4
.
0
'

1
3
.
0
'

1
6
8
.0

'

9
.
0
'

9
.
0
'

9
.
0
'

9
.
0
'

9
.
0
'

9
.
0
'

9
.
0
'
5
.
0
'
9
.
0
'

9
.
0
'

5
.
0
'

9
.
0
'

6
.0

'

6
.
0
'

1
0
.
0
'

1
9
.
4
'

8
.
0
'

2
5
.7

'

2
3
.
0
'

8
.
0
'

8
.
0
'

8
.
0
'

1
2
.
5
'

1
2
.
0
'

9
.0

'

1
8
.
0
'

6
.
0
'

7
.
3
'

6
.
0
'

6.0
'

2
.
0
'

2

.
0

'

12.0
'

12.0
'

126.9
'

8
.
0
'

1
2
.
0
'

1
3
.0

'

8.0
'

6
.
0
'

1
6
.0

'

7
.
1
'

1
2
.
0
'

8
0
.
0
'

9
.
0
'

8
.0

'

1
2
.
5
'

EXISTING INTAKE, TYP

5
9
.0

'

APPROXIMATE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED 6' TRAIL

CITY OF WEST BRANCH

CONTACT PERSON

NICK HATZ

SHIVE-HATTERY INC.

222 THIRD AVE. SE SUITE 300

P.O. BOX 1803

CEDAR RAPIDS, IA 52401

PH (319) 364-0227 EXT.163621

FAX (319) 364-4251

NHATZ@SHIVE-HATTERY.COM

LEGEND

1

STANDARD STALL PAINT STRIPING

NOTE: ALL STRIPING SHALL CONFORM TO THE LATEST

EDTION OF  THE MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL

DEVICES (MUTCD) AND LOCAL STANDARDS.

VARIES (SEE PLAN)

4" TYP.

WATER-BORNE PAINT

(WHITE)

4" WIDE PAINT STRIPE, TYP.

(WHITE)

2
'
-
4

"
 
(
A

P
P

R
O

X
)

2'0" (APPROX)

2

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SYMBOL ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE STRIPING

3

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN

R7-8 ADA

PARKING SIGN

CONCRETE

FOOTING

10"

3
'
-
6

'
 
M

I
N

O
R

 
T

O
 
M

I
N

 
F

R
O

S
T

MOWING

EDGE

2" STEEL ROUND

OR SQUARE PIPE

SIGN (R7-I101)

SEE PLAN SEE PLAN

2

'

T

Y

P

.

4" WIDE PAINT, TYP.

(WHITE)

UNOBSTRUCTED

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESSIBLE

SYMBOL PER

DTL. 2/C101

5
.
0

'

M
I
N

.

4

PROPOSED BUILDING ADDITION

SEE C201 FOR FFE

7" PCC PAVEMENT

SEE DTL. 1A/C111

6" PCC PAVEMENT

SEE DTL. 1B/C111

OWNER

WEST BRANCH SCHOOL

900 W MAIN ST

ADDRESS

900 W MAIN ST.

WEST BRANCH, IA 52358

TOTAL PROJECT AREA

TOTAL PARCEL AREA = 1,742,400 SF/ 40 ACRES

PROJECT LIMITS = 189,745 SF/4.36 ACRES (100% OF PROJECT)

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS AREA

64,391 SQUARE FEET = 1.48 ACRES (34% OF PROJECT)

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS AREA

103,630 SQUARE FEET = 2.38 ACRES (55% OF PROJECT)

EXISTING PERVIOUS AREA

125,354 SQUARE FEET = 2.88 ACRES (66% OF PROJECT)

PROPOSED PERVIOUS AREA

86,115 SQUARE FEET = 1.98 ACRES (45% OF PROJECT)

FLOODPLAIN

A PORTION OF THIS LOCATION IS DETERMINED TO BE IN

ZONE "A" FLOOD PLAIN AREA. AS SHOWN IN THE FLOOD

INSURANCE RATE MAP COMMUNITY PANEL NO. #19031C0211C.

EFFECTIVE DATE AUGUST 19, 2013.

EXISTING ZONING

ZONING: P-1 (PUBLIC USE DISTRICT)

PROPOSED ZONING

ZONING: P-1 (PUBLIC USE DISTRICT)

SETBACKS

FRONT 50 FT

SIDES 20 FT

REAR 70 FT

PARKING REQUIREMENTS AND USE

USES: SCHOOLS - 1 SPACE FOR EACH CLASSROOM OR 

OFFICE SPACE PLUS ONE SPACE FOR EVERY TEN SEATS OF

AVERAGE SEATING IN THE MAIN AUDITORIUM, STADIUM OR

PLACE OF PUBLIC ASSEMBLY.

· 35 CLASSROOMS / OFFICE SPACES

· LARGEST ASSEMBLY = 2260 (1360 + 900)

PARKING LOT SPACES REQUIRED: 261 SPACES

PARKING LOT SPACES PROVIDED: 292 SPACES

EXISTING SPACES: 286 SPACES

PROPOSED SPACES: 292 SPACES

ADA STALLS REQUIRED: 7 STALLS

ADA STALLS PROVIDED: 7 STALLS

EXISTING ADA STALLS: 4 STALLS

PROPOSED ADA STALLS: 7 STALLS

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 7,

TOWNSHIP 79 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL

MERIDIAN, CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE SOUTH 1,291.88 FEET

ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID

SECTION 7 TO A POINT (THIS IS A ASSUMED BEARING FOR

PURPOSES OF THIS DESCRIPTION ONLY); THENCE NORTH 88°58'40"

EAST 1,393.50 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 00°00'20" WEST

1,398.15 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE RECORDED

COUNTY ROAD CENTER LINE; THENCE SOUTH 88°16'20" WEST

1,393.78 FEET ALONG SAID RECORDED COUNTY ROAD CENTER

LINE TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 89.10 FEET TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 44.4 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

RECORDED IN BK 97, PG 209 OF THE RECORDS OF THE CEDAR

COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE.

FFE = 766.0

EXISTING BUILDING FFE = +/- 776.0

PROJECT LOCATION

SITE PLAN

PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN REVIEW

C101

03/18/2020

3/18/2020 3:26:37 PM

Owner

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data,
notes and other documents and instruments prepared by
OPN Architects, Inc. as instruments of service shall remain
the property of OPN Architects, Inc.  OPN Architects, Inc.
shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved
rights, including the copyright thereto.

© 2019 OPN Architects, Inc.

A

19181716151413121110987654

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

PRIN
TED:

R

S

T

U

20 21 22 23 24 25

Project

Sheet Name

Key Plan

Shive - Hattery

222 Third Avenue SE, Ste. 300
Cedar Rapids, IA  52401
P. 319.364.0227
Contact: Nick Hatz

Civil Engineer

Raker Rhodes Engineering, LLC

112 E. Washington Street, Ste. B
Iowa City, IA 52240
P. 319.333.7850
Contact: Brad Hill

Structural Engineer

Modus Engineering

118 E. College St., Ste. 200
Iowa City, IA  52240
P. 319.248.4600
Contact: Tyler Luttenegger

Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing / Technology  Engineer

Schuler Shook

219 Main Street SE, Ste. 200
Minneapolis, MN  55414
P. 612.802.1536
Contact: Jody Kovalick

Theatre Planning and Lighting Design

24 1/2 S Clinton St., Suite 1
Iowa City, IA 52240
P:  319-248-5667
F:
www.opnarchitects.com

321

19181716151413121110987654 20 21 22 23 24 25321

Sheet NumberPRELIMINARY.  NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.

Sheet Issue Date

OPN Project No.

26

26

27

27

28

28

29

29

V

W

X

Y

Threshold Acoustics, LLC

141 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 2080
Chicago, IL  60804
P. 312.386.1400
Contact: Brandon Cudequest

Acoustic & Audio/Visual Design

WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL
ADDITION AND RENOVATION

19248000

West Branch Community School
District

Revision Description Date

VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA 26 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERIMETER 50FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REM 95 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA 26 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERIMETER 50FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REM 95 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA 26 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERIMETER 50FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REM 95 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-MRKG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-GRVL-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-GRVL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-CURB-GUTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-CURB-BACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-CONC-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-CNTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-ASPH-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-ASPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BRDG-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BRDG-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BRDG-CNTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BRDG-ABUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BRDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG-PRCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG-OVHD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG-DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-BARB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-BLRD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-WETL-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-WETL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-SLOP-STEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-SLOP-PROT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-SLOP-CRIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-SLOP-BUFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-SLOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-FWAY-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-FWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-500Y-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-500Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-100Y-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SENS-FLHA-100Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-RAIL-TRAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-RAIL-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-RAIL-SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-RAIL-CNTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK-DOME-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK-DOME

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK-RAMP-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-SWLK-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WATR-CNTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WALL-WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WALL-ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WALL-CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WALL-BLCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-ROCK-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-POND-SPWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-POND-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-LSCP-TLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-LSCP-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-LSCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-LSCP-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FURN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-VYNL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-GRDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-CNST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-CLNK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STEM-HPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STEM-COND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-SSWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-SSWR-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-SSWR-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-SSWR-FORC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-NGAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-NGAS-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-NGAS-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-FIBR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-FIBR-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-FIBR-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-ELEC-UNDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-ELEC-OVHD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-ELEC-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-ELEC-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-COMM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-COMM-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-COMM-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-CHIL-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-CHIL-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-CHIL-SPLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-CHIL-RTRN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-WATR-HTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
0-XREF

AutoCAD SHX Text
0-VPRT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0-TBLK

AutoCAD SHX Text
0-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0-PHTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
0-NPLT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WELL-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WELL-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WATR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WATR-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-WATR-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STRM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STRM-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STRM-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STEM-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STEM-STRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-STEM-LPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LINETYPES

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SENSITIVE AREAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-JT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-TRFC-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-TRFC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-SITE-FENC-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-PBLK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-PAVE-PAVR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-GEOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CX-UTIL-GEOT-TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA 26 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERIMETER 50FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REM 95 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
$

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE



BUILDING ADDITION

FFE = 766.0'

BUILDING ADDITION

FFE = 766.0'

WEST BRANCH

HIGH SCHOOL

W. MAIN STREET

DA
W

SO
N

 D
RI

VE

7

6

0

7
6
5

7

5

8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7

6

2

7
6
2

7
6
2

7
6
2

7

6

2

7
6
3

7
6
3

7
6
3

7

6

4

7
6
6

7
6
7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7
6
5

7

6

3

7
6
3

7

6

4

7
6
6

7
6
7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7
6
5

7
7
0

7
7
0

7
6
6

7
6
7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7

6

9

7
6
5

7
7
0

7

7

0

7

6

4

7

6

4

7
6
6

7

6

7

7

6

8

7

6

9

7
7
1

7

7

1

7
7
2

7
7
2

7

7

1

7

7

2

7

7

0

7
6
6

7

6

7

7

6

8

7

6

9

7

7

1

7

7

2

7

7

3

7

6

5

7

7

0

7

7

0

7

6

6

7

6

6

7

6

7

7

6

7

7
6
8

7

6

8

7

6

9

7
6
9

7

7

1

7
7
1

7
7
2

7

7

2

7

7

3

7
7
3

7
7
0

7

7

0

7

6

7

7

6

7

7
6
8

7

6

8

7
6
9

7

6

9

7
7
1

7

7

1

7
7
2

7

7

2

7
7
3

7

7

3

7

5

0

7

5

5

7

6

0

765

7
7
0

7

4

7

7

4

8

7

4

9

7

5

1

7

5

2

7

5

3

7

5

4

7

5

6

7

5

7

7

5

8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7
6
2

7

6

3

7

6

4

766

767

768

7
6
9

7
7
1

7
7
2

7
7
3

7

4

0

7

4

5

7
5
0

7
5
5

760

7
6
5

7

4

1

7

4

2

7

4

3

7
4
4

7
4
6

7

4

7

7

4

8

7

4

8

7
4
9

7
5
1

7
5
2

7
5
3

7
5
4

7
5
6

7
5
7

7
5
8

7
5
9

761

7
6
2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

6

7

6

0

7

6

5

7
7
0

7
7
0

7

5

6

756

7

5

7

7
5
8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

6

7

6

7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7
6
9

7
4
5

7

5

0

7
5
5

7
6
0

7

4

2

7

4

2

7
4
3

7

4

3

7

4

4

7
4
6

7
4
7

7

4

8

7

4

8

7

4

8

7

4

9

7

5

1

7

5

2

7

5

3

7

5

4

7
5
6

7
5
7

7
5
8

7
5
9

7
5
0

7
4
6

7
4
6

7
4
7

7
4
7

7
4
8

7
4
9

7
5
1

7

5

0

7
5
5

7

6

0

7

6

5

7

5

1

7

5

2

7

5

3

7

5

4

7
5
6

7
5
7

7
5
8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

6

7

6

7

7
6
8

7

4

0

7

4

5

7

5

0

750

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

9

7

4

1

7

4

2

7

4

3

7

4

4

7

4

6

7

4

7

7
4
8

7
4
9

7

5

1

751

7
3
0

7

3

5

7

4

0

7

4

5

7

3

1

732

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

8

7

3

9

7

4

1

7

4

2

7

4

3

7

4

4

W. MAIN STREET

LP 757.77

LP 757.12

LP 757.89

GRADING LIMITS, TYP.

PROPOSED PCC RETAINING

WALL. SEE L AND S SERIES.

7

6

0

7
6
5

7

5

8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

6

767

7
6
0

7
6
5

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7
6
6

7

6

0

765

7
6
1

7
6
2

7
6
3

7
6
4

766

7
6
0

7
6
5

7
6
1

7
6
2

7
6
3

7
6
4

7
6
5

7

6

2

7

6

3

7
6
4

7

6

6

7
6
7

7

4

0

7

4

5

7

5

0

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

9

7

4

1

7

4

2

7

4

3

7

4

4

7

4

6

7

4

7

7

4

8

7

4

9

7

5

1

7
4
0

7

4

5

7
3
9

7
4
1

7
4
2

7
4
3

7
4
4

7

4

6

7

4

0

7

4

5

7

5

0

7

5

5

7

4

1

7

4

2

7

4

3

7

4

4

7

4

6

7

4

7

7

4

8

7

4

9

7

5

1

7

5

2

7

5

3

7

5

4

7

5

6

PROPOSED 4' SEGMENTAL

BLOCK RETAINING WALL.

SEE L AND S SERIES.

7

6

0

7
5
8

7

5

9

7

6

0

7
5
9

7

6

5

7
6
3

7

6

4

7
6
6

7

3

0

7
3
5

7
3
1

7
3
2

7
3
3

7
3
4

736

737

738

EXISTING 100-YEAR

FLOODPLAIN

FFE = 766.0

EXISTING 4' SEGMENTAL

BLOCK RETAINING WALL.

BW 761.36

TW 763.70

BW 762.64

TW 763.04

1
.5

8
%

5

.

0

0

%

1
.7

6
%

3

.

8

4

%

1

.

8

2

%

1

.

8

0

%

3

.

8

9

%

1

.

6

3

%

1.52%

4

.
8

8

%

3

.

5

1

%

2

.

3

7

%

2

.

4

3

%

3

.

0

1

%

2

.

8

2

%

4

.

0

0

%

4

.
5

9

%

3

.

0

1

%

3

.

0

1

%

3

.

0

1

%

4

.
4

4

%

10:1

4:1

6

:
1

6

:
1

6

:
1

6

:
1

4
:1

4
:1

5

:

1

2

4

:

1

4:1

3

:

1

3
:
1

15:1

4

.

7

4

%

4

.

7

4

%

4

.

7

4

%

1
.
6
2
%

2
.
1
7
%

1

.

4

1

%

1

.
5

1

%

0
.
9
1
%

1

.

9

9

%

1
.5

4
%

1
.4

1
%

1

.

6

4

%

4

.
8

6

%

1

.

9

0

%

1

.

7

5

%

1

.

7

5

%
1

.

8

2

%

3

.
5

2

%

2
3
:
1

4
:
1

4

:
1

4

:
1

3
:
1

2

2

:

1

4

:

1

4
.
3
0
%

4
.
3
0
%

7

:
1

5

:

1

5

:

1

5

:
1

3

:
1

5

:
1

2
.
3
1
%

2

.
0

3

%

2
.
4
2
%

3:1

5

:

1

5

:
1

3
:
1

3

:

1

3
:
1

MESIC BASIN BIOCELL SECTION

GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN NOTES

1. MATCH FINISH GRADE 4 INCHES BELOW FINISH FLOOR

ELEVATION IN LANDSCAPE AND TURF AREAS UNLESS

NOTED OTHERWISE.

2. FINISHED GRADE CONTOURS ARE SHOWN AT 1' AND 5'

INTERVALS.

3. EXISTING GRADE CONTOURS ARE SHOWN AT 1' AND 5'

INTERVALS.

4. FINISHED GRADE IS TO TOP OF PAVEMENT AND TOP OF

TOPSOIL, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH OWNER FOR

ACCEPTABLE STAGING AREAS.

6. 6" MINIMUM THICKNESS OF TOP SOIL TO BE PLACED ON

SITE IN NON-PAVED AREAS TO REACH FINISHED

GRADE.  SUPERCEDES SUDAS SPECIFICATIONS.

7. REFER TO PAVING PLAN FOR DETAILED ELEVATIONS.

GRADE BREAKS

LEGEND

GRADING LEGEND

TC - TOP OF CURB ELEVATION

GU - GUTTER ELEVATION

TS - TOP OF SLAB ELEVATION

TW - TOP OF WALL ELEVATION

BW - BOTTOM OF WALL ELEVATION

FG - FINISHED GRADE ELEVATION

LP - LOW POINT

HP - HIGH POINT

GRADING LIMITS

DISTURBANCE LIMITS

INSERT BOXES

1

1
2

"
3

"
1

8
"

3
"

DOUBLE SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH

BIODEGRADABLE EROSION CONTROL

BLANKET TO BE PLACED WITH PLANTING

PLUGS OVER ENTIRE AREA SHOWN ON

GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN. PIN BLANKET

WITH BIODEGRADABLE STAKES PER

MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

MODIFIED SOIL; 75% SAND,

15% TOPSOIL, 10% COMPOST

CHOKE LAYER; 

3

8

" WASHED STONE CHIPS

(ASTM NO. 8, IDOT GRAD NO. 21)

1" CLEAN ROCK (ASTM NO. 57)

NON-WOVEN

GEOTEXTILE

FABRIC ALONG

SIDES OF SECTION

6
"
 
M

I
N

.

UNDISTURBED,

UNCOMPACTED,

NATIVE SOIL

SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR

PLANTING INFORMATION

BIOCELL WIDTH.

SEE GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN

SEE STORM SEWER PLAN

FOR PIPE INFORMATION

SCARIFY SUBGRADE BY SCRAPING

WITH BACKHOE. DO NOT COMPACT

Grading & Drainage Plan

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
REVIEW

C201

03/18/2020

3/18/2020 3:27:40 PM

Owner

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data,
notes and other documents and instruments prepared by
OPN Architects, Inc. as instruments of service shall remain
the property of OPN Architects, Inc.  OPN Architects, Inc.
shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved
rights, including the copyright thereto.

© 2019 OPN Architects, Inc.

A

19181716151413121110987654

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

PRIN
TED:

R

S

T

U

20 21 22 23 24 25

Project

Sheet Name

Key Plan

Shive - Hattery

222 Third Avenue SE, Ste. 300
Cedar Rapids, IA  52401
P. 319.364.0227
Contact: Nick Hatz

Civil Engineer

Raker Rhodes Engineering, LLC

112 E. Washington Street, Ste. B
Iowa City, IA 52240
P. 319.333.7850
Contact: Brad Hill

Structural Engineer

Modus Engineering

118 E. College St., Ste. 200
Iowa City, IA  52240
P. 319.248.4600
Contact: Tyler Luttenegger

Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing / Technology  Engineer

Schuler Shook

219 Main Street SE, Ste. 200
Minneapolis, MN  55414
P. 612.802.1536
Contact: Jody Kovalick

Theatre Planning and Lighting Design

24 1/2 S Clinton St., Suite 1
Iowa City, IA 52240
P:  319-248-5667
F:
www.opnarchitects.com

321

19181716151413121110987654 20 21 22 23 24 25321

Sheet NumberPRELIMINARY.  NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.

Sheet Issue Date

OPN Project No.

26

26

27

27

28

28

29

29

V

W

X

Y

Threshold Acoustics, LLC

141 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 2080
Chicago, IL  60804
P. 312.386.1400
Contact: Brandon Cudequest

Acoustic & Audio/Visual Design

WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL
ADDITION AND RENOVATION

19248000

West Branch Community School
District

Revision Description Date

EXISTING BUILDING FFE = +/- 776.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA 26 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERIMETER 50FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REM 95 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE



7

6

0

7
6
5

7

5

8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7

6

2

7
6
2

7
6
2

7
6
2

7

6

2

7
6
3

7
6
3

7
6
3

7

6

4

7
6
6

7
6
7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7
6
5

7

6

3

7
6
3

7

6

4

7
6
6

7
6
7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7
6
5

7
7
0

7
7
0

7
6
6

7
6
7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7

6

9

7
6
5

7
7
0

7

7

0

7

6

4

7

6

4

7
6
6

7

6

7

7

6

8

7

6

9

7
7
1

7

7

1

7
7
2

7
7
2

7

7

1

7

7

2

7

7

0

7
6
6

7

6

7

7

6

8

7

6

9

7

7

1

7

7

2

7

7

3

7

6

5

7

7

0

7

7

0

7

6

6

7

6

6

7

6

7

7

6

7

7
6
8

7

6

8

7

6

9

7
6
9

7

7

1

7
7
1

7
7
2

7

7

2

7

7

3

7
7
3

7
7
0

7

7

0

7

6

7

7

6

7

7
6
8

7

6

8

7
6
9

7

6

9

7
7
1

7

7

1

7
7
2

7

7

2

7
7
3

7

7

3

7

5

0

7

5

5

7

6

0

7
6
5

770

7

4

7

7

4

8

7

4

9

7

5

1

7

5

2

7

5

3

7

5

4

7

5

67

5

7

7

5

87

5

9

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7
6
6

767

768

769

771

772

7
7
3

7

4

0

7

4

5

7
5
0

7
5
5

760

7
6
5

7

4

1

7

4

2

7

4

3

7
4
4

7
4
6

7

4

7

7

4

8

7

4

8

7
4
9

7
5
1

7
5
2

7
5
3

7
5
4

7
5
6

7
5
7

7
5
8

7
5
9

761

7
6
2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

6

7

6

5

7
6
6

7
6
7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7

6

0

7

6

5

7
7
0

7
7
0

7

5

6

756

7

5

7

7
5
8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

6

7

6

7

7
6
8

7
6
9

7
6
9

7
4
5

7
5
0

7
5
5

7
6
0

7

4

2

7

4

2

7
4
3

7

4

3

7

4

4

7
4
6

747

7

4

8

7

4

8

7

4

8

7
4
9

7
5
1

7
5
2

7
5
3

7
5
4

7
5
6

7
5
7

7
5
8

7
5
9

7
6
1

7
6
2

7
6
3

7
5
0

7
4
6

7
4
6

7
4
7

7

4

7

7
4
8

7
4
9

7
5
1

7

5

0

7

5

5

760

7
6
5

7

5

1

7

5

2

7

5

3

7

5

4

7

5

6

7

5

7

7

5

8

759

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7
6
4

7
6
6

7

6

7

7
6
8

7

4

0

7

4

5

7

5

0

750

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

9

7

4

1

7

4

2

7

4

3

7

4

4

7

4

6

7

4

7

7
4
8

7
4
9

7

5

1

751

7
3
0

7

3

5

7

4

0

7

4

5

7

3

1

732

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7
3
7

7

3

8

7

3

9

7

4

1

7

4

2

7

4

3

7

4

4

W. MAIN STREET

DA
W

SO
N

 D
RI

VE

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

FILTER SOCK OR SILT FENCE, TYP.

TO COMPLETELY SURROUND

GRADING LIMITS

FILTER SOCK OR SILT FENCE, TYP.

TO COMPLETELY SURROUND

GRADING LIMITS

FILTER SOCK OR SILT FENCE, TYP.

TO COMPLETELY SURROUND

GRADING LIMITS

MESIC BASIN TO ACT AS TEMPORARY

SEDIMENTATION BASIN DURING

CONSTRUCTION. INTERIOR BIOCELL

NOT TO BE CONSTRUCTED UNTIL

SURROUNDING AREA IS COMPLETE TO

MINIMIZE SEDIMENT CONTAMINATION

CURB CUT INLET

PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

24' WIDE STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION

ENTRANCE WITH TEMPORARY 24"

CULVERT

100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN,TYP

7

5

5

7

6

0

7
6
5

7

5

6

7

5

7

7

5

8

7

5

9

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7

6

6

767

7
6
0

7
6
5

7

6

1

7

6

2

7

6

3

7

6

4

7
6
6

745

7

5

0

7
4
3

7
4
4

7

4

6

7

4

7

7

4

8

7

4

9

7

5

1

7

5

2

7

5

3

7
6
0

765

7
6
1

7
6
2

7
6
3

764

766

7
6
0

7
6
5

7
6
1

7
6
2

7
6
3

7
6
4

7
6
5

7

6

2

7

6

3

7
6
4

7

6

6

7
6
7

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN NOTES

1. EROSION/ SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES ARE REQUIRED REGARDLESS OF THE TIME OF YEAR. THIS PLAN AND ITS ASSOCIATED

REQUIREMENTS FOR THE PERMIT MUST BE IMPLEMENTED DURING WINTER MONTHS AS WELL.

2. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO CONTROL EROSION/ SEDIMENTATION ON THE SITE AT ALL TIMES. THE CONTROL MEASURES

SHOWN ON THE PLAN ARE A MINIMUM. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ADDITIONAL EROSION/ SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES AS

NECESSARY TO FULFILL THIS REQUIREMENT. CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO MAINTAIN SWPPP DOCUMENTATION.

3. THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO USE STABILIZATION CONTROLS ON ALL DISTURBED AREAS OF THE SITE REGARDLESS OF THE TIME

PERIOD BEFORE THEY WILL BE DISTURBED AGAIN. IN THE EVENT THAT CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY WITHIN A DISTURBED AREA WILL NOT

OCCUR FOR A PERIOD OF 14 OR MORE CALENDAR DAYS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL STABILIZATION MEASURES NO LATER THAN THE

14TH DAY AFTER CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY CEASED IN THAT AREA. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SEED DISTURBED AREAS AS SOON AS WORK IS

COMPLETED AS INDICATED ON THE PLANS AND PROJECT MANUAL.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL USE CONTROL MEASURES AS REQUIRED TO KEEP SOILS FROM LEAVING THE SITE EXCEPT IN CLOSED CONTAINERS.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL IMPLEMENT SITE SPECIFIC BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPS) AS SHOWN AND REQUIRED BY THE SWPPP/SESC.

ADDITIONAL BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED BY THE CONTRACTOR AS DICTATED BY SITE CONDITIONS OR THE

PROJECT GOVERNING AUTHORITIES AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER THROUGHOUT ALL PHASES OF CONSTRUCTION.

6. IF AFTER REPEATED FAILURE ON THE PART OF THE CONTRACTOR TO PROPERLY CONTROL SOIL EROSION, SEDIMENT AND/OR POLLUTION

FROM THE PROJECT SITE, THE GOVERNING AUTHORITIES RESERVE THE RIGHT TO EFFECT NECESSARY CORRECTIVE MEASURES AND

CHARGE ANY COSTS TO THE CONTRACTOR.

7. ALL BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES AND CONTROLS SHALL CONFORM TO THE APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL REQUIREMENTS,

STANDARDS, AND SPECIFICATIONS OR MANUAL OF PRACTICE.

6. ALL BMPS AND CONTROLS INSTALLED ON GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE SHALL REMAIN UNTIL CONSTRUCTION IS COMPLETED.

7. IN THE EVENT THAT SOILS LEAVE THE SITE, CLEANUP OF ALL SURROUNDING ROADS, DRIVES, AND PARKING LOTS SHALL BE PERFORMED ON

A DAILY BASIS AT A MINIMUM AND UPON REQUEST BY OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST. PAVEMENT IS TO BE SCRAPED OF

DEBRIS AND MUD AND BROOMED CLEAN. MUD TRACKS ARE TO BE REMOVED AS THEY ARE CREATED.

8. IF DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS ANY LOOSE MATERIALS ARE DEPOSITED IN THE FLOW LINE OF GUTTERS, DRAINAGE STRUCTURES,

OR DITCHES SUCH THAT THE NATURAL FLOW LINE OF WATER IS OBSTRUCTED, THIS LOOSE MATERIAL SHALL BE REMOVED.

9. ALL SEDIMENT SHALL BE PREVENTED FROM ENTERING ANY EXISTING STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEMS BY THE USE OF INLET PROTECTION OR

OTHER APPROVED FUNCTIONAL METHODS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING SEDIMENT RESULTING FROM

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PROJECT.

10. CONSTRUCTION ACCESS POINTS TO THE SITE SHALL BE PROTECTED IN SUCH A WAY AS TO PREVENT TRACKING OF MUD OR SOIL ONTO

PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES. ALL SEDIMENT SPILLED, DROPPED, WASHED OR TRACKED ONTO PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY MUST BE REMOVED

IMMEDIATELY BY THE CONTRACTOR.

11. MAINTAIN SILT FENCING AT ALL TIMES IN AN UPRIGHT POSITION. CLEAN SILT FROM FENCING/FILTER SOCKS ON A REGULAR BASIS AS PER THE

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. SILT FENCES MUST BE CLEANED OUT WHEN THEY ARE 50% FULL. FILTER SOCKS MUST BE CLEANED OUT WHEN

THEY ARE 33% FULL.

12. CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE/  RELOCATE SILT FENCING/ FILTER SOCKS AS NECESSARY THROUGHOUT THE PROJECT TO CONTROL EROSION/

SEDIMENTATION. SILT FENCE INSTALLATION IS TO FOLLOW SUDAS 9040.119. FILTER SOCK INSTALLATION IS TO FOLLOW SUDAS 9040.102.

13. REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY EROSION/ SEDIMENTATION CONTROLS NOT CALLED OUT TO REMAIN AFTER SITE HAS BEEN STABILIZED AND

APPROVED BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

14. CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE SILT FENCE/ FILTER SOCKS AROUND STOCKPILED OR EXCAVATED SOILS IF RAIN IS FORECASTED

BEFORE STOCKPILE IS RE-SPREAD.

15. CONTRACTOR TO USE EXTREME CAUTION WHILE INSTALLING SILT FENCE OR OTHER EROSION CONTROL DEVICES SO AS NOT TO DAMAGE

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

16. WHERE WATER IS PUMPED FROM EXCAVATIONS ON SITE, PROVISIONS SHALL BE MADE TO REMOVE SEDIMENT FROM THE WATER BEFORE IT

IS RELEASED. REFER TO SUDAS SECT. 3.04 FOR DEWATERING GUIDANCE.

17. WHERE WATER IS RELEASED FROM A DEWATERING SYSTEM, PRECAUTIONS SHALL BE TAKEN TO ENSURE THAT EROSION GULLIES DO NOT

FORM. WATER MUST BE FILTERED THROUGH AN APPROPRIATE FILTER DEVICE BEFORE DISCHARGING.

18. A 12" FILTER SOCK MAY BE SUBSTITUTED FOR SILT FENCE WHEN SLOPE IS LESS THAN 10%, FILTER SOCKS MUST BE STAKED IN PLACE.

19. EROSION CONTROL BLANKETS SHALL BE USED IN AREAS OF 4:1 SLOPE OR STEEPER.

20. SANITARY WASTE DISPOSAL: PORTABLE REST ROOM FACILITIES ARE NOT ANTICIPATED TO BE PLACED ON-SITE. IN THE EVENT THAT

PORTABLE REST ROOM FACILITIES ARE USED ON-SITE, THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO INSTALL AN EROSION CONTROL DEVICE AROUND

THE FACILITY TO MINIMIZE THE RADIUS OF THE AFFECTED ZONE IN THE EVENT OF A SPILL. WASTES SHALL BE COLLECTED AND DISPOSED OF

IN COMPLETE COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS. PORTABLE RESTROOM FACILITIES MUST NOT BE LOCATED

NEAR DRAINAGE WAYS.

21. IDENTIFICATION OF ALLOWABLE NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGES: DURING CONSTRUCTION THE NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGES, WHICH

INCLUDE WATER FLUSHED FROM WATER LINES, PAVEMENT WASHING (WHERE NO SPILLS OR LEAKS HAVE OCCURRED, UNLESS THE SPILLED

MATERIAL HAS BEEN CLEANED UP), VEHICLE WASHING, AND GROUNDWATER (DEWATERING), SHOULD BE DIRECTED AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE

TOWARDS VEGETATED AREAS AND AWAY FROM DRAINAGE WAYS. REFER TO THE IDNR NPDES GENERAL PERMIT NO. 2 FOR ALLOWABLE

NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGES.

22. POLLUTION AND SPILL PREVENTION PLANNING: POTENTIALLY HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ON THE CONSTRUCTION SITE INCLUDE FUEL,

LUBRICANTS, CURING COMPOUNDS, FERTILIZERS, GREASE AND CLEANING SOLVENTS. ALL REASONABLE PRECAUTIONS WILL BE TAKEN TO

PREVENT SPILLS. ANY SPILLED MATERIAL WILL IMMEDIATELY BE DIRECTED AWAY FROM STORM WATER INTAKES, DETENTION BASINS, OR

DRAINAGE WAYS. SPILLED MATERIALS WILL BE CLEANED AND, IF NECESSARY, SOIL REMEDIATION PRACTICES WILL BE USED, A RECORD OF

SPILLS WILL BE MAINTAINED BY THE MAIN CONTRACTOR.

23. CONCRETE, PAINT AND GROUT WASHOUT AREA: THE WASHOUT AREA IS TO BE CONSTRUCTED PER SUDAS SECT 11,050. PROTECT WITH AN

EROSION CONTROL DEVICE (IF USING FILTER SOCKS, STACK TWO (2) TALL). IF A PUMP TRUCK IS USED ON-SITE AND UNABLE TO USE THE

WASHOUT AREA, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DIG A PIT FOR WASTE MATERIAL. CONTRACTOR TO HAUL OFF ALL WASTE MATERIAL. ALL

LOCATIONS OF CONCRETE, PAINT AND GROUT WASHOUT AREAS MUST BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND IDENTIFIED ON THE PLAN

(RELOCATE AS REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION). THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO INSTALL A SIGN THAT DESIGNATES THE WASHOUT AREA.

24. SPILL KIT: THE LOCATION OF THE SPILL KIT MUST BE IDENTIFIED ON THE PLAN. THE SPILL KIT SHALL BE A SEALED STORAGE SHED LOCATED

NEAR THE CONSTRUCTION TRAILER OR FUELING AREA. THE SPILL KIT SHALL CONTAIN, BUT NOT BE LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING ITEMS: A

GARBAGE CAN, GLOVES, SAFETY GOGGLES, BROOM AND DUST PAN, AND OIL ABSORBENT CLAY CHIPS OR PADS. THE SPILL KIT SHALL BE

RESTOCKED AS SUPPLIES ARE USED. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL A SIGN THAT DESIGNATES THE SPILL KIT. RELOCATE AS REQUIRED

FOR CONSTRUCTION.

25. DUST CONTROL: THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMPLEMENT DUST CONTROL MEASURES WHERE DUST IS GENERATED. FREQUENT WATERING OF

THE SITE, SPRINKLED, VEGETATIVE COVER, MULCH, WINDBREAKS, TILLAGE, STONE AND SPRAY-ON CHEMICAL SOIL TREATMENTS

(PALLIATIVES) ARE POSSIBLE DUST CONTROL MEASURES. IF THE DUST CONTROL IS NOT ACCEPTABLE IT SHALL BE CHANGED AS DIRECTED

BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

26. STOCKPILED MATERIALS: CONTRACTOR TO IDENTIFY ALL LOCATIONS OF STOCKPILED MATERIALS ON THE STORMWATER POLLUTION

PREVENTION PLAN.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL EROSION/SEDIMENTATION CONTROLS AS REQUIRED TO CONTAIN MATERIALS ON-SITE

.  AT A MINIMUM, THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE SILT FENCE/ FILTER SOCKS AROUND STOCKPILED SOILS BEFORE STOCKPILE IS

RE-SPREAD.  CONTRACTOR IS ALSO REQUIRED TO SEED ANY SOILS STOCKPILED FOR MORE THAN 14 DAYS WITH OATS.

27. THE PERMITEE SHALL AMEND THE SWPPP WHENEVER THERE IS A CHANGE IN DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION OR MAINTENANCE OF A

STORMWATER BMP.

28. PRE-QUALIFIED PERSONNEL (PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR) SHALL INSPECT DISTURBED AREAS OF THE CONSTRUCTION SITE THAT HAVE

NOT BEEN FINALLY STABILIZED, STRUCTURAL CONTROL MEASURES, AND LOCATIONS WHERE VEHICLES ENTER OR EXIT THE SITE AT LEAST

ONCE EVERY SEVEN (7) CALENDAR DAYS AND WITHIN TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS OF THE END OF A RAINFALL EVENT THAT IS 0.5 INCH OR

GREATER (OR EQUIVALENT SNOWFALL). REQUIRED REPAIRS SHOULD BE COMPLETED WITHIN FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS OF THE INSPECTION.

THE CONTRACTOR IS THE CO-APPLICANT FOR

THE NPDES PERMIT AND IS REQUIRED TO DO

ALL REQUIRED RECORD KEEPING. ALL RECORDS

SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE OWNER'S

REPRESENTATIVE AS THEY ARE PRODUCED.

SWPPP DOCUMENT LOCATION

SPILL KIT TO BE INSTALLED AND

RELOCATED AS REQUIRED FOR

CONSTRUCTION

CONCRETE, PAINT, AND GROUT

WASHOUT AREA PER SUDAS SECT

11,050. CONTRACTOR TO HAUL OFF

WASTE MATERIAL. SUGGESTED

LOCATION. RELOCATE AS REQUIRED

FOR CONSTRUCTION.

DIRECTION OF DRAINAGE

LEGEND

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION

ENTRANCE/ EXIT

SEE SUDAS 9040.120

CONTRACTOR STAGING AREA FOR

PORTABLE RESTROOM FACILITIES,

TEMPORARY FUEL TANKS, WASTE

CONTAINERS AND OTHER

HAZARDOUS CHEMICALS. RELOCATE

AS REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION.

SILT FENCE SUDAS 9040.119  OR

FILTER SOCKS SUDAS 9040.102

SHALL HAVE "J" HOOKS AT MAXIMUM

200' INCREMENTS

PERMANENT REINFORCEMENT

MATTING. SEE SUDAS 9040.103

TEMPORARY SILT FENCE CHECK DAM

SEE SUDAS 9040.119 & SUDAS 9040.106

INLET PROTECTION

TEMPORARY REINFORCEMENT

MATTING. SEE SUDAS 9040.103

TEMPORARY TOP SOIL STOCKPILE

SITE INFORMATION

TOTAL DISTURBED AREA: 4.00 AC

PRE-DEVELOPED COEFFICIENT: 0.73

POST-DEVELOPED COEFFICIENT: 0.74

COMPOST FILTER TUBE DETAIL

1

COMPOST FILTER TUBE

TO BE STAKED IN

PLACE (STAKE EVERY 8'

FOR ADDED STABILITY)

DISTURBED AREA

D

I

R

E

C

T

I

O

N

 

O

F

 

F

L

O

W

PLACE COMPOST

FILTER TUBE

PERPENDICULAR

TO SLOPE

AREA TO BE

PROTECTED

TOP VIEW

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION 

3" MACADAM STONE

NATIVE SOIL

6" MIN DEPTH

INSTALL TENCATE - MIRAFI

RS380I GEOTEXTILE FILTER

FABRIC BELOW STONE

AND LAYDOWN AREA

2

ENTRANCE/ CONTRACTOR STAGING

NOTE: MINIMUM 50'

3H:1V OR FLATTER
SIDE SLOPES

12" MIN

8'x 8' MIN

OR AS REQUIRED TO

CONTAIN WASTE CONCRETE

12"

2'-0" MIN.

COMPACTED EMBANKMENT
MATERIAL OR FILTER SOCK, TYP.

BERM OR FILTER SOCK AROUND PERIMETER

GROUND SURFACE

SIGN TO INDICATE THE
LOCATION OF THE
CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA

CONCRETE WASHOUT DETAIL

3

PLASTIC LINING

Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
REVIEW

C251

03/18/2020

3/18/2020 3:28:03 PM

Owner

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data,
notes and other documents and instruments prepared by
OPN Architects, Inc. as instruments of service shall remain
the property of OPN Architects, Inc.  OPN Architects, Inc.
shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved
rights, including the copyright thereto.

© 2019 OPN Architects, Inc.

A

19181716151413121110987654

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

PRIN
TED:

R

S

T

U

20 21 22 23 24 25

Project

Sheet Name

Key Plan

Shive - Hattery

222 Third Avenue SE, Ste. 300
Cedar Rapids, IA  52401
P. 319.364.0227
Contact: Nick Hatz

Civil Engineer

Raker Rhodes Engineering, LLC

112 E. Washington Street, Ste. B
Iowa City, IA 52240
P. 319.333.7850
Contact: Brad Hill

Structural Engineer

Modus Engineering

118 E. College St., Ste. 200
Iowa City, IA  52240
P. 319.248.4600
Contact: Tyler Luttenegger

Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing / Technology  Engineer

Schuler Shook

219 Main Street SE, Ste. 200
Minneapolis, MN  55414
P. 612.802.1536
Contact: Jody Kovalick

Theatre Planning and Lighting Design

24 1/2 S Clinton St., Suite 1
Iowa City, IA 52240
P:  319-248-5667
F:
www.opnarchitects.com

321

19181716151413121110987654 20 21 22 23 24 25321

Sheet NumberPRELIMINARY.  NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.

Sheet Issue Date

OPN Project No.

26

26

27

27

28

28

29

29

V

W

X

Y

Threshold Acoustics, LLC

141 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 2080
Chicago, IL  60804
P. 312.386.1400
Contact: Brandon Cudequest

Acoustic & Audio/Visual Design

WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL
ADDITION AND RENOVATION

19248000

West Branch Community School
District

Revision Description Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE



BUILDING ADDITION

FFE = 766.0'

BUILDING ADDITION

FFE = 766.0'

WEST BRANCH

HIGH SCHOOL

W. MAIN STREET

DA
W

SO
N

 D
RI

VE

W. MAIN STREET

RELOCATED FIRE HYDRANT

& AUX. VALVE

FG 761.13

N 615665.78

E 2224057.07

INSTALL 8" 90° BEND

TS 759.72

N 615686.26

E 2224059.57

INSTALL 8" 45° BEND

TS 759.27

N 615655.96

E 2224291.86

INSTALL 8" 45° BEND

TS 760.90

N 615610.23

E 2224327.67

RELOCATED FIRE HYDRANT

& AUX. VALVE

FG 765.11

N 615449.86

E 2224287.07

INSTALL 8" 45° BEND

TS 764.68

N 615448.35

E 2224307.89

20.6 LF 6" PVC

42.7 LF 6" PVC

191.5 LF 8" PVC

58.1 LF 8" PVC

163.1 LF 8" PVC

66.8 LF 8" PVC

SAN A1 (PROP. SANITARY DOUBLE CLEANOUT

SEE P SERIES)

N 615599.87

E 2224288.39

RIM = 765.23

IE = 753.35 W

IE = 753.35 E

1

9

3

.
2

 
L

F

8

"

 
P

V

C

 
@

 
1

.
0

0

%

WATER/SANITARY CROSSING

TS 760.9

BOTTOM OF WATER: 755.15

TOP OF SANITARY: 753.65

SAN A2 (MODIFY EXIST. SANITARY MH TO FG.

ADJUST CONE TO BE OUTSIDE OF CURB

IN LANDSCAPED AREA.

INTERNAL DROP CONNECTION FOR PROP.

SAN PER SUDAS DETAIL SW-308.

CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY HORIZONTAL & VERTICAL

LOCATION PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OR FABRICATION)

N 615656.33

E 2224473.11

PROP. RIM = 758.69

EXIST. RIM = 757.12 PER PLANS

IE = 751.42 W

EXIST. IE = 750.12 S PER PLANS

EXIST. IE = 744.86 N PER PLANS

ADJUST SAN MH TO FG

PROP. RIM 765.49

EXIST. RIM 764.64

N 615623.96

E 2223952.75

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT, TYP.

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT, TYP.

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT, TYP.

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT, TYP.

PROP. STORM, TYP.

SEE C302

EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE

RIM 743.56

INV 8" PVC 736.86 S

INV 8" PVC 736.76 NW

EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE

RIM 740.73

INV 8" PVC 734.78 SW

INV 8" CLAY 734.78 W

INV 8" CLAY 734.53 N

GROUNDWATER INFILTRATION

IN BOTTOM OF MANHOLE

EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE

RIM 746.99

INV 8" CLAY 741.79 N

INV 8" CLAY 741.39 E

EXISTING WATER VALVE PIT

RIM 747.31

SANITARY CLEANOUT

RIM 773.61

SANITARY CLEANOUT

RIM 771.66

SANITARY CLEANOUT

RIM 772.28

6" INV 772.35

8" WATER

APPROX. 12" WATER

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF

MANHOLE WITH DROP BOWL

PER PLANS.

CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY.

RIM 757.12

INV 8" PVC 750.12 S

INV 8" PVC 744.86 N

CONNECT TO EXIST. WATER

WITH 8" TS&V

CAP NORTH END

LOCATION APPROX.

N 615434.02

E 2224242.69

EG 768.18

CONNECT TO EXIST. WATER

WITH 6" TS&V

N 615681.31

E 2224100.18

EG 759.55

CONNECT TO EXIST. WATER

WITH 8" TS&V

N 615678.87

E 2224103.67

EG 759.65

PROP. MESIC BASIN

WITH BIOCELL.

SEE DTL. 1/C201.

UTILITY PLAN NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR TO CONFIRM THE HORIZONTAL AND

VERTICAL LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES  AND

INFORM THE ENGINEER OF ANY POTENTIAL CONFLICTS

WITH PROPOSED UTILITIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

2. ALL WATER VALVES AND SANITARY CLEANOUTS

EXTENDING THROUGH PAVEMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED

WITH SLIP TYPE VALVE BOXES AND SHALL MEET

SUDAS SPECIFICATION SECTION 5020.

3. ALL PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER SHALL MEET SUDAS

SPECIFICATION SECTION 4010

4. ALL PROPOSED WATER SHALL FOLLOW PROPOSED

GRADES WITH 5'-6' OF COVER, TYP.

5. ALL WATER BENDS AND APPURTENANCES SHALL BE

MECHANICALLY RESTRAINED.

Utility Plan

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
REVIEW

C301

03/18/2020

3/18/2020 3:28:20 PM

Owner

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data,
notes and other documents and instruments prepared by
OPN Architects, Inc. as instruments of service shall remain
the property of OPN Architects, Inc.  OPN Architects, Inc.
shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved
rights, including the copyright thereto.

© 2019 OPN Architects, Inc.

A

19181716151413121110987654

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

PRIN
TED:

R

S

T

U

20 21 22 23 24 25

Project

Sheet Name

Key Plan

Shive - Hattery

222 Third Avenue SE, Ste. 300
Cedar Rapids, IA  52401
P. 319.364.0227
Contact: Nick Hatz

Civil Engineer

Raker Rhodes Engineering, LLC

112 E. Washington Street, Ste. B
Iowa City, IA 52240
P. 319.333.7850
Contact: Brad Hill

Structural Engineer

Modus Engineering

118 E. College St., Ste. 200
Iowa City, IA  52240
P. 319.248.4600
Contact: Tyler Luttenegger

Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing / Technology  Engineer

Schuler Shook

219 Main Street SE, Ste. 200
Minneapolis, MN  55414
P. 612.802.1536
Contact: Jody Kovalick

Theatre Planning and Lighting Design

24 1/2 S Clinton St., Suite 1
Iowa City, IA 52240
P:  319-248-5667
F:
www.opnarchitects.com

321

19181716151413121110987654 20 21 22 23 24 25321

Sheet NumberPRELIMINARY.  NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.

Sheet Issue Date

OPN Project No.

26

26

27

27

28

28

29

29

V

W

X

Y

Threshold Acoustics, LLC

141 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 2080
Chicago, IL  60804
P. 312.386.1400
Contact: Brandon Cudequest

Acoustic & Audio/Visual Design

WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL
ADDITION AND RENOVATION

19248000

West Branch Community School
District

Revision Description Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. 8" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. 12" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60



BUILDING ADDITION

FFE = 766.0'

BUILDING ADDITION

FFE = 766.0'

WEST BRANCH

HIGH SCHOOL

W. MAIN STREET

DA
W

SO
N

 D
RI

VE

W. MAIN STREET

STMH1 (CONNECT TO ROOF DRAIN

SEE P SERIES)

N 615642.04

E 2224239.15

FG = 765.96

IE = 756.49 NE

STMH2 (CONNECT TO EXIST. INTAKE)

N 615693.93

E 2224298.75

EXIST. FG = 758.10

IE = 755.50 SW

EXIST. IE = 755.40 E

79.0 LF

10" PVC @ 1.25%

STMH3 (CONNECT TO ROOF DRAIN

SEE P SERIES)

N 615637.76

E 2224064.43

RIM = 765.51

IE = 758.00 N

STMH4 (18" - SW-512)

N 615668.70

E 2224068.20

RIM = 761.09

IE = 756.75 S

IE = 756.35 NE

3
1
.
2
 
L
F

1
0
"
 
P

V
C

 
@

 
4
.
0
0
%

STMH5 (CONNECT TO EXIST. INTAKE)

N 615699.69

E 2224107.31

EXIST FG = 758.50

IE = 755.85 SW

STMH7 (SW-501)

N 615674.69

E 2224466.87

FORM GRADE = 757.93

IE = 751.34 W

IE = 751.24 E

STMH8 (48" SW-502)

N 615655.70

E 2224547.27

FORM GRADE = 757.13

IE = 747.94 W

IE = 753.56 SE

IE = 747.74 N

8

2

.
6

 
L

F

1

8

"
 
H

D

P

E

 
@

 
4

.
0

0

%

2

5

3

.
6

 
L

F

2

4

"
 
H

D

P

E

 
@

 
4

.
3

3

%

STMH10 (SW-501)

N 615569.91

E 2224555.97

FORM GRADE = 763.43

IE = 756.83 N

STMH11 (SW-501)

N 615642.25

E 2224561.75

FORM GRADE = 765.35

IE = 754.65 S

IE = 754.55 NW

72.6 LF

12" HDPE @ 3.00%

19.8 LF

12" HDPE @ 5.00%

STMH12 (24" - SW-512)

N 615951.57

E 2224608.39

RIM = 736.90

IE = 735.80 N

89.3 LF

12" HDPE @ 4.26%

STMH15 (CAST IN-PLACE MODIFIED 12'X12' SW-402

JUNCTION STRUCTURE WITH ACCESS MANHOLE.

CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE SHOP DRAWINGS.)

N 616065.24

E 2224540.89

RIM = 739.99

IE = 733.00 W

IE = 729.72 NW

IE = 729.62 E

81.9 LF

24 '' RCP (CLASS III) @ 4.88%

34.6 LF

72 '' RCP (CLASS III) @ 1.00%

50.6 LF

EXIST. 72" RCP @ 0.66%

49.9 LF

10" PVC @ 1.00%

24" FES

IE 736.76

N 615909.31

E 2224608.67

24" FES

IE 737.00

N 616047.83

E 2224453.38

EXISTING STORM INTAKE

FG 758.14

INV 18" RCP 753.69 W

INV 18" RCP 753.59 E

EXISTING STORM INTAKE

FG 758.17

EXISTING BEEHIVE INTAKE

RIM 765.76

INTAKE FILLED WITH SILT,

UNABLE TO MEASURE

EXISTING STORM INTAKE

FG 764.68

INV 6" PVC 762.03 S

INV 12" HDPE 758.48 N

EXISTING STORM INTAKE

FG 765.19

INV 6" PVC 762.09 S

INV 12" HDPE 762.09 E

INV 12" HDPE 761.59 W

EXISTING STORM INTAKE

FG 764.95

INV 8" PVC 762.50 N

INV 12" HDPE 762.40 W

EXISTING STORM MANHOLE

RIM 765.62

INV 6" PVC 759.82 NE

INV 12" HDPE 758.32 S

INV 12" HDPE 758.12 E

INV 12" HDPE 756.62 N

EXISTING BEEHIVE 6" INTAKE

RIM 756.85

INV 754.16 E-W

EXISTING STORM BEEHIVE INTAKE

RIM 753.30

INV 8" 750.65 NE

EXISTING BEEHIVE INTAKE

RIM 758.47

INV 755.85

DIRECTION NOT VISIBLE

FULL OF MULCH

EXISTING BEEHIVE INTAKE

RIM 762.39

INTAKE FILLED WITH SILT,

UNABLE TO MEASURE

12" INV 748.07

8" INV 756.83

24" CULVERT

INV W 745.22

INV E 743.01

8" INV 752.09

8" INV 745.50

12" HDPE

INV E 746.56

INV W 746.39

PROP. 4" PERF. HDPE

RETAINING WALL

SUBDRAIN TO TAP INTO

EXIST. CURB INTAKE

EXIST. APPOX.

SANITARY, TYP.

PROP. WATER, TYP.

INACTIVE EXIST. LINE

PROP. LIGHTING, TYP.

SEE E SERIES

PROP. MESIC BASIN

WITH BIOCELL.

SEE DTL. 1/C201.

STORM SEWER PLAN NOTES

1. ALL APRONS ARE TO BE SUDAS 4030.222, TYPE II WITH

APRON GUARD PER SUDAS 4030.224. ANY CONCRETE

APRON 24" OR LARGER IN DIAMETER SHALL HAVE A

FOOTING PER SUDAS 4030.221.

Storm Sewer Plan

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
REVIEW

C302

03/18/2020

3/18/2020 3:28:27 PM

Owner

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data,
notes and other documents and instruments prepared by
OPN Architects, Inc. as instruments of service shall remain
the property of OPN Architects, Inc.  OPN Architects, Inc.
shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved
rights, including the copyright thereto.

© 2019 OPN Architects, Inc.

A

19181716151413121110987654

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

PRIN
TED:

R

S

T

U

20 21 22 23 24 25

Project

Sheet Name

Key Plan

Shive - Hattery

222 Third Avenue SE, Ste. 300
Cedar Rapids, IA  52401
P. 319.364.0227
Contact: Nick Hatz

Civil Engineer

Raker Rhodes Engineering, LLC

112 E. Washington Street, Ste. B
Iowa City, IA 52240
P. 319.333.7850
Contact: Brad Hill

Structural Engineer

Modus Engineering

118 E. College St., Ste. 200
Iowa City, IA  52240
P. 319.248.4600
Contact: Tyler Luttenegger

Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing / Technology  Engineer

Schuler Shook

219 Main Street SE, Ste. 200
Minneapolis, MN  55414
P. 612.802.1536
Contact: Jody Kovalick

Theatre Planning and Lighting Design

24 1/2 S Clinton St., Suite 1
Iowa City, IA 52240
P:  319-248-5667
F:
www.opnarchitects.com

321

19181716151413121110987654 20 21 22 23 24 25321

Sheet NumberPRELIMINARY.  NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.

Sheet Issue Date

OPN Project No.

26

26

27

27

28

28

29

29

V

W

X

Y

Threshold Acoustics, LLC

141 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 2080
Chicago, IL  60804
P. 312.386.1400
Contact: Brandon Cudequest

Acoustic & Audio/Visual Design

WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL
ADDITION AND RENOVATION

West Branch Community School
District

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60









Owner

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data, 

notes and other documents and instruments prepared by 

OPN Architects, Inc. as instruments of service shall remain 

the property of OPN Architects, Inc.  OPN Architects, Inc. 

shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved 

rights, including the copyright thereto.

© 2019 OPN Architects, Inc.

A

19181716151413121110987654

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

P
R

IN
T

E
D

:

R

S

T

U

20 21 22 23 24 25

Project

Sheet Name

Key Plan

Shive - Hattery

222 Third Avenue SE, Ste. 300

Cedar Rapids, IA  52401

P. 319.364.0227

Contact: Nick Hatz

Civil Engineer

Raker Rhodes Engineering, LLC

112 E. Washington Street, Ste. B

Iowa City, IA 52240

P. 319.333.7850

Contact: Brad Hill

Structural Engineer

Modus Engineering

118 E. College St., Ste. 200

Iowa City, IA  52240

P. 319.248.4600

Contact: Tyler Luttenegger

Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing / Technology  Engineer

Schuler Shook

219 Main Street SE, Ste. 200

Minneapolis, MN  55414

P. 612.802.1536

Contact: Jody Kovalick

Theatre Planning and Lighting Design

24 1/2 S Clinton St., Suite 1

Iowa City, IA 52240

P:  319-248-5667

F:

www.opnarchitects.com

321

19181716151413121110987654 20 21 22 23 24 25321

Sheet Number
PRELIMINARY.  NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.  

Sheet Issue Date

OPN Project No.

26

26

27

27

28

28

29

29

V

W

X

Y

Threshold Acoustics, LLC

141 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 2080

Chicago, IL  60804

P. 312.386.1400

Contact: Brandon Cudequest

Acoustic & Audio/Visual Design

3
/1

8
/2

0
2

0
 1

2
:3

3
:0

8
 P

M

A200

EXTERIOR VIEWS

WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL

ADDITION AND RENOVATION

19248000

West Branch Community School

District

BID DOCUMENTS 03/18/20

Revision Description Date

N1
1-NE View

A1
2-NW View

PRELIMINARY
SITE PLAN REVIEW



LEVEL 1

0' - 0"

LEVEL 2

14' - 0"

EXISTING T.O. GYM CMU

34' - 8"

EXISTING STAGE ROOF

24' - 0"NEW CLASSROOM ROOF

28' - 0"

AUDITORIUM ROOF

40' - 0"

B.O. COMMONS ROOF

23' - 8"

STAGE ROOF

49' - 9"

BOX RIB METAL PANEL SYSTEM -

COLOR B

RIGGING PIT

-4' - 6"

A2/203V1/A204G1/A204R1/A202R16/A202J1/A202J8/A202J15/A202

NEW EXISTING

T.O. CLERESTORY

WINDOWS

33' - 0"

LEVEL 1

0' - 0"

LEVEL 2

14' - 0"

EXISTING T.O. GYM CMU

34' - 8"

NEW CLASSROOM ROOF

28' - 0"

B.O. COMMONS ROOF

23' - 8"

STAGE ROOF

49' - 9"

F1/A203 4' - 1 1/8" T1/A203T12/A203

NEWEXISTING

NEWEXISTING NEW EXISTING

LEVEL 1

0' - 0"

LEVEL 1

0' - 0"

LEVEL 2

14' - 0"
EXISTNG INDUSTRIAL

ARTS ROOF

15' - 8"

NEW CLASSROOM ROOF

28' - 0"

AUDITORIUM ROOF

40' - 0"
STAGE ROOF

49' - 9"

B19/A202 B1/A202

NEWEXISTING

T.O. CLERESTORY

WINDOWS

33' - 0"

LEVEL 1

0' - 0"

EXISTING CLASSROOM

ROOF

12' - 8"

EXISTNG INDUSTRIAL

ARTS ROOF

15' - 8"

B.O. COMMONS ROOF

23' - 8"

F20/A203

Owner

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data, 

notes and other documents and instruments prepared by 

OPN Architects, Inc. as instruments of service shall remain 

the property of OPN Architects, Inc.  OPN Architects, Inc. 

shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved 

rights, including the copyright thereto.

© 2019 OPN Architects, Inc.

A

19181716151413121110987654

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

P
R

IN
T

E
D

:

R

S

T

U

20 21 22 23 24 25

Project

Sheet Name

Key Plan

Shive - Hattery

222 Third Avenue SE, Ste. 300

Cedar Rapids, IA  52401

P. 319.364.0227

Contact: Nick Hatz

Civil Engineer

Raker Rhodes Engineering, LLC

112 E. Washington Street, Ste. B

Iowa City, IA 52240

P. 319.333.7850

Contact: Brad Hill

Structural Engineer

Modus Engineering

118 E. College St., Ste. 200

Iowa City, IA  52240

P. 319.248.4600

Contact: Tyler Luttenegger

Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing / Technology  Engineer

Schuler Shook

219 Main Street SE, Ste. 200

Minneapolis, MN  55414

P. 612.802.1536

Contact: Jody Kovalick

Theatre Planning and Lighting Design

24 1/2 S Clinton St., Suite 1

Iowa City, IA 52240

P:  319-248-5667

F:

www.opnarchitects.com

321

19181716151413121110987654 20 21 22 23 24 25321

Sheet Number
PRELIMINARY.  NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.  

Sheet Issue Date

OPN Project No.

26

26

27

27

28

28

29

29

V

W

X

Y

Threshold Acoustics, LLC

141 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 2080

Chicago, IL  60804

P. 312.386.1400

Contact: Brandon Cudequest

Acoustic & Audio/Visual Design

3
/1

8
/2

0
2

0
 1

2
:3

3
:2

0
 P

M

A201

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS -

COMPOSITE

WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL

ADDITION AND RENOVATION

19248000

West Branch Community School

District

BID DOCUMENTS 02/17/2020

1/16" = 1'-0"
U1

COMPOSITE - EXTERIOR NORTH ELEVATION

1/16" = 1'-0"
G1

COMPOSITE - EXTERIOR SOUTH ELEVATION

1/16" = 1'-0"
N1

COMPOSITE - EXTERIOR EAST ELEVATION

1/16" = 1'-0"
N17

COMPOSITE - EXTERIOR WEST ELEVATION

Revision Description Date

PRELIMINARY
SITE PLAN REVIEW

03/18/2020



SA SA SA SA SA

SA

SA

SA

SA

SB

SB

SA

SA

Owner

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data, 

notes and other documents and instruments prepared by 

OPN Architects, Inc. as instruments of service shall remain 

the property of OPN Architects, Inc.  OPN Architects, Inc. 

shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved 

rights, including the copyright thereto.

© 2019 OPN Architects, Inc.

100 Court Ave., Suite 100

Des Moines, IA 50309

P:  515-309-0722

F:  515-309-0725

www.opnarchitects.com

A

19181716151413121110987654

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

P
R

IN
T

E
D

:

R

S

T

U

20 21 22 23 24 25

Project

Sheet Name

Key Plan

Shive - Hattery

222 Third Avenue SE, Ste. 300

Cedar Rapids, IA  52401

P. 319.364.0227

Contact: Nick Hatz

Civil Engineer

Raker Rhodes Engineering, LLC

112 E. Washington Street, Ste. B

Iowa City, IA 52240

P. 319.333.7850

Contact: Brad Hill

Structural Engineer

Modus Engineering

118 E. College St., Ste. 200

Iowa City, IA  52240

P. 319.248.4600

Contact: Tyler Luttenegger

Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing / Technology  Engineer

Schuler Shook

219 Main Street SE, Ste. 200

Minneapolis, MN  55414

P. 612.802.1536

Contact: Jody Kovalick

Theatre Planning and Lighting Design

321

19181716151413121110987654 20 21 22 23 24 25321

Sheet Number
PRELIMINARY.  NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.  

Sheet Issue Date

OPN Project No.

26

26

27

27

28

28

29

29

V

W

X

Y

Threshold Acoustics, LLC

141 West Jackson Blvd, Suite 2080

Chicago, IL  60804

P. 312.386.1400

Contact: Brandon Cudequest

Acoustic & Audio/Visual Design

3
/1

8
/2

0
2

0
 9

:5
5

:0
0

 A
M

ME006

MEP PHOTOMETRIC SITE

PLAN

WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL

ADDITION AND RENOVATION

19248000

West Branch Community School

District

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 03/18/20

Revision Description Date

1" = 30'-0"
1

MEP SITE PLAN

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
REVIEW



 

 

RESOLUTION 1885 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WEST BRANCH HIGH SCHOOL EXPANSION 

PROJECT SITE PLAN. 

 

 

WHEREAS, the West Branch Community School District has heretofore submitted a 

proposed Site Plan to construct parking, a secondary entrance, and building improvements at 900 

W. Main Street in the City of West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, said Site Plan (Exhibit A) has heretofore been reviewed by City Staff, 

including the City Engineer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Site Plan has been found to conform to West Branch Code of Ordinances; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed the 

Site Plan and recommended its approval to the West Branch City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said Site Plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned Site Plan for the Project be and the same are hereby 

accepted and approved and that any off-site improvements will need to be approved by separate 

resolution. 

 

* * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 6th day of April, 2020. 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 6, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1883 – Approving either Contract (A) with Johnson County 

Refuse Inc., or Contract (B) with Allied Waste Services, LLC “Doing 

Business As” Republic Services, for Residential Solid Waste Services.   

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  April 1, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

The Solid Waste and Recycling evaluation task group has completed its review of proposals received 

for solid waste and recycling collection services.  After reading, analyzing, and meeting over the 

details of each proposal; the collective through a numbered ranking system has identified 3 top 

proposals.  The proposals and the rankings were presented to City Council at the March 16th City 

Council meeting.  At that meeting there was noticeable consensus that City Council wanted to break 

from the task group’s ranking.  However, were still in deliberation over the top two proposals.  
 

In order to continue to move forward and upon review with legal counsel, it was recommended to 

request the two top vendors to provide contracts and request City Council to choose and approve the 

contract of choice with the vendor of choice. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1883 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 
     

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

PREVIOUS BACKGROUND:  

The Solid Waste and Recycling evaluation task group has completed its review of proposals received 

for solid waste and recycling collection services.  After reading, analyzing, and meeting over the 

details of each proposal; the collective through a numbered ranking system has identified 3 top 

proposals.  These are the top proposals and are recommended in this order: 
 
1) Republic Services – This vendor currently services over 60 communities in the eastern Iowa 

Market.  The pride themselves on using larger carts which are proven to have the capacity to 

meet the needs of residents and provide numerous environmental benefits to collecting half full 

or less recycling carts weekly.  They come highly recommended by the City of Camanche, 

Iowa.  They present several options, their lowest combination of options was $15.95 a month 

with 65 gallon cart and recycling pick-up every other week (and your choice of either a 95 

gallon cart or a 65 gallon cart for recycling – same price).  They received a total ranking of 92.   
 
2) Johnson County Refuse – This is the city’s current vendor has a perfect track record in taking 

care of our solid waste customers.  This is a family owned company and they work very well 

with city staff.  They present are the only company that presented an option for 8 years with 

their lowest combination of $16.50; however, since City Council has expressed interest in a 

shorter term and the RFP focused on five years.  The evaluation task group agreed to evaluate 

in an apples to apples comparison with the other proposals, and therefore; decided to only 

review their 5-year proposal.  This option presented a lowest combination option of $17.50 a 

month with 35 gallon cart and recycling pick-up every week.  They received a total ranking of 

91. 

 

3) ABC Disposal – ABC Disposal Systems prides themselves in the high level of customer service 

they provide.  The hours of live phone operation are 7:00 am – 5:30 pm Monday through Friday 

and 8:00 am – 12:00pm on Saturday.  ABC Disposal is a family business out of Hiawatha, and 

the City of Hiawatha strongly recommends them.  They present the most options, and their 

lowest combination of options was the best price of $14.75 a month for a 35 gallon cart every 

other week service customers that want weekly solid waste pick-up service would be priced at 

$19.75 with a 35 gallon cart.  There are also other options to choose from.  They received a total 

ranking of 91 (the tie was broken by reviewing the induvial scores as opposed to the overall 

tally score.)  

 

4) Waste Management – Pride themselves as a local company with hauling operations 

throughout Iowa.  They have provided superior waste and recycling services for residential, 

municipal, commercial, and industrial customers for more than 51 years.  They presented a 

lowest combination option of $17.38 a month with every other week recycling service, but 

that included a firm annual increase of 4% to start in year 2.  They received a total ranking 

of 61.  (They did not make any of the evaluator’s short list). 

 
Republic Services   

Proposal Flexibility 18  

Value to the Customer 21 Total ____92____ 

Value to the City 26  

Lowest Price 27  



 

 

 

 

Johnson County Refuse   

Proposal Flexibility 23  

Value to the Customer 22 Total ____91____ 

Value to the City 26  

Lowest Price 20  
 

 

ABC Disposal   

Proposal Flexibility 26  

Value to the Customer 26 Total ____91____ 

Value to the City 18  

Lowest Price 21  
 

 

Waste Management   

Proposal Flexibility 15  

Value to the Customer 16 Total ____61____ 

Value to the City 21  

Lowest Price 13  



 

 

 

City Administrator 



 

 

 



 

 

 

Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

 



 

 

 

Mayor 



 

 

 



 

 

 
3/26/2020 

M E M O R A N D U M 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

RE:  Solid Waste Collection 

 

In preparing this matter for City Council direction there is a fact that I discovered regarding the 

way the city provides solid waste collection.  When I started with the City three years ago, I was 

always told that the city’s solid waste service was a “pass through” service.  In other words, the 

city did not collect reimbursement for administrative cost related to selling trash tags, answering 

complaints, or trouble shooting any problems related to solid waste collection service that would 

arise.  The only cost was explained to be the cost of the waste hauler, which was to be a user fee in 

the form of a $1.25 trash tag.  The more waste a customer needed to use, the more tags they would 

need to buy.   

 

In fact, the city pays $15,000 annually to the Cedar County Waste Commission for the right to 

have our solid waste vendor take West Branch trash to the Cedar County Waste Transfer Station.  

Currently this is funded from the city’s General fund; and therefore paid by taxes levied on 

property owners.  To avoid the outcome of having property owners subsidize an activity for which 

a fee is charged to property owners and renters, it is generally recommended an enterprise fund / 

utility be established for this type of activity.    

 

Upon review we have approximately 850 solid waste residential customers currently.  If we 

consider customer growth over the next five years @ 20 new houses a year; we could anticipate an 

estimate of 100 additional customers (before the end of five year contract).  If our current budgeted 

amount holds true ($15,000) then we would see a surcharge of an additional $1.47 a month.  At the 

height of our growth estimate the monthly rate would reduce to $1.31 due to the cost being shared 

by more users.  This would be added to any solid waste hauler’s bid that disposed waste at the 

Cedar County Transfer Station.    

 

It should be noted that Republic Services owns a landfill in the region and their bid would not 

require the use of the Cedar County Waste Commission transfer station.  As a result, the city 

would not need pay approximately $60,000 in solid waste related expenses over the life of the 5 

year contract.  Although, this was not directly mention in the Republic bid it is value add that 

could result in overall lower prices for citizens, as well as less administrative set-up time of the 

new billing system. 

 

After reviewing the March 16th City Council discussion on this topic.  It was apparent that two 

contractors were highly favored by the Council and since making the transition from tags to carts 

will take some time to prepare, it was recommended that staff present City Council with two 

contracts which can be deliberated over at the April 6th meeting.  Both Johnson County Reuse and 

Republic Services will have contracts on the agenda for City Council’s consideration. 

 



 

 

 

Contract for Johnson County Refuse 



 

 

 

Contract for Johnson County Refuse 



 

 

 

Contract for Johnson County Refuse 



 

 

 

Contract for Johnson County Refuse 



 

 

 

Contract for Johnson County Refuse 



 

 

 

Contract for Johnson County Refuse 



 

 

 

Contract for Johnson County Refuse 



 

 

 

Contract for Johnson County Refuse 



 

 

 

Contract for Johnson County Refuse 



 

 

 

Contract for Johnson County Refuse 



 

 

 

Contract for Johnson County Refuse 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contract for Republic Services 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1883 

 

APPROVING EITHER CONTRACT (A) WITH JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC., OR 

CONTRACT (B) WITH ALLIED WASTE SERVICES, LLC “DOING BUSINESS AS” REPUBLIC 

SERVICES, FOR RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION SERVICES. 

 

WHEREAS, managing municipal solid waste is important to a sustainable environment for future 

generations to enjoy a cleaner, safer and healthier world; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch takes this task as important and a critical part of establishing 

a high quality of life in this community; and 

 

WHEREAS, a selection task group evaluated several proposals from vendors who responded to an 

Request for Proposal placed by the City of West Branch for those interested in providing residential solid 

waste and recycling collection services; and 

 

WHEREAS, these proposals were evaluated based on proposal flexibility, value to the customer, 

value to the city, and lowest price.  Upon this review the proposals were scored, ranked, and based these 

outcomes vendors identified as most desirable to least desirable to negotiate a contract for services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council deliberated over these rankings and found consensus on the top two 

vendors; and   

 

WHEREAS, this resolution chooses between authorizing a contract with either Johnson County 

Refuse (noted as contract A), or Republic Services (noted as contract B) for Residential Solid Waste and 

Recycling Collection Services over a 5 period; and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, that the City 

Administrator is authorized to award a five year contract to _______________________________, for 

Residential Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Services. 

 

* * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 6th day of April, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 6, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1886 – A Resolution Approving Change Order # 7 in the amount 

of $17,554.02 for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator / Eric Gould, V&K 

DATE:  April 1, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

Change order number 7, in the amount of $17,554.02 is to address any remaining items for the 

project to prepare for final closeout.  The Change Order does include work required to replace the 

driveway approach near West Branch Roofing due to coordination issues between the Contractor 

and the Engineer.  This cost is included in the contract at the direction of IDOT to document 

payment to the Contractor under the contract.  The cost associated with pavement removal and 

replacement will be deducted from the amount owed for testing services that the Engineer has 

compensated Terracon to complete for material testing.  The materials testing cost exceeded the 

budgeted amount and the Engineer has carried the cost overrun to date.   

 

 

Change Order History on this Project: 

1. Non-Monetary change 

2. $10,335.40 

3. $14,003.42 

4. $19,346.12 

5. $  2,424.00 

6. $11,738.98 

7. $17,554.02 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1886 / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION 1886 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER #7 IN THE AMOUNT OF $17,554.02 

FOR THE COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 

 WHEREAS, the College Street Bridge Project is critical to the flow of transportation in 

the West Branch Community; and  

 

 WHEREAS, this project exist in an area with older infrastructure; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this change order is to address any remaining items for the project to 

prepare for final closeout.  Additionally, the Change Order does include work required to replace 

the driveway approach near West Branch Roofing due to coordination issues between the 

Contractor and the Engineer; and 

 

 WHEREAS, these costs were included in the contract at the direction of Iowa 

Department of Transportation to document payment to the Contractor under the contract; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve change order #7 in the amount of $17,554.02 

for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, that 

Change Order #7 in the amount of $17,554.02 for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project 

is approved. 

 
*  *  *  *  *  *  * 

 

Passed and approved this 6th day of April, 2020. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 6, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: COVID-19 City Protocols 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  April 1, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
Cedar County Public Health has made a news release on 3-26-2020. 

Approximately 80% of Iowans infected with COVID-19, will experience only a mild to moderate 

illness. Most mildly ill Iowans do not need to go to their healthcare provider or be tested to 

confirm they have COVID-19. Sick Iowans, with symptoms including fever, cough or difficulty 

breathing, must stay home and isolate themselves from others in their home until:  

 

• You have had no fever for at least 72 hours (This means 3 full days of no fever without the use of 

medicine to reduce your temperature)  

AND  

• Other symptoms such as cough and shortness of breath have improved  

AND  

• At least 7 days have passed since your symptoms first appeared. 

 

If an employee is sick, that employee should use their sick leave. If the employee presents no 

symptoms of illness but is required to stay home because of Public Health guidance, the employee 

should use sick leave but will not be required to use vacation time if sick leave is exhausted.  

Additional sick leave will be granted to any employee who needs it.  The employee will be put on 

paid administrative leave for the recommended absence from work.     

 

If the employee has a known exposure of Covid19, while working, the exposure would be handled 

as any other known exposures to communicable disease and should be covered under workers 

compensation.     

 

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seeking Direction / Feedback  
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Works Protocol for Covid 19 

 

In light of the Corona Virus (Covid 19) the Public Works Department for the City of West Branch 

is taking the following steps in order to protect our employees, while still allowing for essential 

maintenance needs, meet directives from the IDNR, respond to emergencies and assist in 

resident/customer requests when possible. 
Full Time Employees 

Two man, two week shifts.  
1. The department is being divided into teams of two full time employees who will be on for the 

weeks they are on call and off for the following two weeks. Matt Goodale and Tim Moss will be on 

separate teams due to the certifications for water and wastewater they hold. This will make it 

possible to have a staff member certified to operate our plants working each week and keeps 

them separate of each other should someone in the department become ill.  

2. All employees will be required to be available for emergencies even while they are off for their 

two weeks. 

3. All employees will be required to remain available should the need for them to return to work 

arise unexpectedly. (examples- sickness, injury or other staffing issues) 

4. Employees are expected to use this time off as a measure to social distance themselves and are 

expected to adhere to guidance from the CDC and other governmental agencies on this.  

5. Should an employee become ill they are expected to inform the Public Works Director. 

6. All part time staff have been instructed that they are not to report until notified. 

7. Separate trucks are required to be used for employees working in the same time period. 

Essential duties  
1. Water and wastewater rounds. 

2. Requests from the City Office. 

3. All required testing and reporting per IDNR permit. 

4. Water meter reading. 

5. Backwashing water plant. 

6. Utility locating. 

7. Installation of NEW meters in NEW homes. Any meter repairs, replacements or repairs to existing 

meter equipment that require entrance in a residence that is occupied are on hold indefinitely. 

8. Inspections for NEW homes. 

9. Silt fence inspections and subsequent conversation with contractors should there be an issue. 

10. Alley cleanup after rain events. 

11. Yard waste collection. 

12. Emptying of trash and dog bag receptacles in parks and trails. 



 

 

13. Removal of road kills, branches, trash, mud or other debris from City streets  

14. Safety procedures, vehicle maintenance, daily inspections of City properties and streets. 

15. Sanitation procedures to Public Works facilities on the Friday before rotation of shifts to include 

restrooms, commons areas, eating and gathering areas, doorknobs, light switches, valves and 

commonly used equipment in the water and wastewater plant, shared trucks or any other 

equipment that may be used the following shift by other employees. 

Modes of communication 
1. During this time employees are expected to maintain an open line of communication via the City 

supplied cell phone to include phone calls, texts and emails. There may also be instances where 

Zoom meetings or other mass communication forms will be utilized. All employees are required to 

be available to accept these communications at all times, this is not a vacation and does not afford 

employees the expectation of total isolation from work activities. 

2. Employees are encouraged to avoid face to face interactions when possible and should limit them 

when they must occur. 

 

Communication will be key during these times to be certain that tasks are not duplicated or missed. 

It is expected that each two man team will communicate with the other what tasks have been 

completed each two week period. This rotation will begin Monday March 30, 2020 and will 

continue until Monday April 27th. At that time all employees will be required to return to their 

normal schedule unless otherwise directed. As this seems to be an ever evolving situation the 

Public Works Director will monitor and update the employees with any new direction necessary.  

  

Part Time Employees 

At this time all part time employee staffing will cease until further notice.  

 

Seasonal Work (mowing, trimming or other maintenance) 

Seasonal work is expected to begin over the next few weeks. I fully expect to be mowing by April 

13, 2020 but it is possible that this may be necessary beginning April 6, 2020. At this time a 

schedule for the mowing crews is being developed that will allow them to complete their work 

with minimal to no close interactions with other employees. All employees will be expected to use 

separate vehicles, limit interactions and take appropriate steps to maintain their own health and 

well-being. If at any time the governing bodies determine that a shelter in place directive will be 

enforced only essential tasks will be completed.  

 

 

Public Works Director 

I will be available for all necessary meetings, projects, inspections or other necessary duties during 

this time but will limit exposure to other employees while conducting business. I will be taking 

home workers comp spreadsheets, schedules and other office work in order to fill my time in when 

I will not be physically at work. Hydrant flushing is scheduled to begin April 22, 2020 and I will 

assist Tim with that the first week but will maintain a separation. For the most part I will still be 

here physically but will limit exposure to public or employees during that time. We will not start 

any large projects at this time but will stick to mainly maintenance type and scheduled tasks, 

especially those that allow employees to be isolated from each other.  

 



 

 

Compensation while on leave 

I would like to request that the City Council approve paying the City employees who are being 

requested to remain at home for the time they are off. (40 hours/week for full time and 30 

hours/week part time) At this time I would expect this to last until April 27, 2020 for the full time 

employees which would amount to the equivalent of 6 weeks (240 hours) of man hours for full 

time and 4 weeks (120 hours) of man hours for part time. (part time employees will likely return 

April 13, 2020 with a modified schedule as seen above.) I have not made an allowance for Ben 

Litscher as he has not been brought back to work form the winter yet but was scheduled to return 

as soon as mowing season starts. I have not included anything on myself as I am salary and will 

also not be making a significant change in my presence here. 

 

Thanks 

Matt Goodale 

City of West Branch, Public Works Director 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Mayor: Roger Laughlin · Council Members: Jerry Sexton, Colton Miller, Tom Dean, Jodee Stoolman, Nick 

Goodweiler City Administrator/Clerk: Redmond Jones · Fire Chief: Kevin Stoolman · Library Director: Nick 

Shimmin Parks & Rec Director: Melissa Russell · Police Chief: Mike Horihan · Public Works Director: Matt Goodale 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  
 



 

 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 6, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading of Ordinance 774 Amending Chapters 45 entitled “Alcohol 

Consumption and Intoxication”; and Chapter 47 entitled “Municipal Park 

Policies and Regulations.” 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  February 26, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Park & Recreation Commission recommends and reviews policies, rules, regulations, 

ordinances and budgets relating to parks and playgrounds of the City. The Parks and Recreation 

Commission has evaluated the current ordinances in regard to alcohol use in Beranek Park, Cubby 

Park, Wapsi Park, Heritage Square, Town Hall and Lions Field.  As a result of their review the 

recommendation was to allow the consumption of alcohol during park operation hours at certain 

parks.   
 

After City Council discussion, Staff review from the police department, parks department, and the 

City Attorney, the attached Ordinance amendments are recommended. The amendments in 

chapters of 45 and 47 reflect a special permit approach to allowing alcohol consumption in all 

parks.  In other words, the Council would like the staff to consider requiring no alcohol 

consumption unless a special permit is approved.  Special permit request would be approved at the 

staff level, but can be appealed and/or overturned by the city council. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the First Reading – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

   

(2) Public Parks when a special permit is granted by a city official; 



 

 

 

Chapter 47 



 

 

 

Chapter 47 



 

 

 
 
 



 

 

ORDINANCE 774 

 

ORDINANCE 774 AMENDING CHAPTERS 45 ENTITLED “ALCOHOL 

CONSUMPTION AND INTOXICATION”; AND CHAPTER 47 ENTITLED “MUNICIPAL 

PARK POLICIES AND REGULATIONS. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Commission has recommended to the City Council 

updating the City’s Policy for consumption of alcohol in public parks; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Administrator and city staff have reviewed these recommendations 

and have met to discuss with the City Council and devised changes to the code of ordinances that 

will allow consumption in municipal parks (as recommended by the Parks and Recreation 

Commission) with approval of a special event with a beer and wine provision and/or use permit; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, beverages consider to be hard liquors are not permitted in parks with no 

exceptions; and  

 

 WHEREAS, intoxication is not permitted in parks with no exceptions; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 
 
1. Amendment. Chapter 45 and 47 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, is hereby amended and incorporated into this Ordinance by this reference. 
 
2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
4. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval 

and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  April 6, 2020 

Second reading: April 20, 2020 

Third Reading: May 4, 2020 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 


	368266_PE_9.pdf
	PE_9

	Council Claims packet 4-06-2020.pdf
	20200401140525489
	20200401140550292

	Res1885_WBHS Expansion Site Plan_approved.pdf
	20200326091745004
	2020-03-18_OPN West Branch_Site Plan Submittal
	C001 Civil General Notes & Legends
	Sheets and Views
	C001 Civil General Notes & Legends


	C002 2019 Existing Conditions & Topographic Survey
	Sheets and Views
	C002 2019 Existing Conditions & Topographic Survey


	CD01 Existing Conditions & Demolition Plan
	Sheets and Views
	CD01 Existing Conditions & Demolition Plan


	C101 Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	C101 SITE PLAN


	C201 Grading & Drainage Plan
	Sheets and Views
	C201 Grading & Drainage Plan


	C251 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
	Sheets and Views
	C251 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan


	C301 Utility Plan
	Sheets and Views
	C301 Utility Plan


	C302 Storm Sewer Plan
	Sheets and Views
	C302 Storm Sewer Plan


	L101
	L151
	L301
	West Branch High School Additions and Renovatoins - Exterior Elevations
	A200 - EXTERIOR VIEWS
	A201 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - COMPOSITE

	Preliminary Site Plan Review-Site Photometric-03.18.2020





